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PART I. BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Business
(A) Description of Business
1. Business Development

The Company, formerly United Paracale Mining Conyarvas incorporated on October 9, 1933
as a mining company.

On May 31, 1996, the Company's new set of stockdrsldexecuted deeds of assignment
transferring to the Company their investments iareh of stock of certain companies as full
payment for their subscriptions to 1.5 billion stwpf the Company’s capital stock. On June 18,
1996, the Securities and Exchange Commission apdrdkie assignment of shares and the
following amendments to the Company’s Articles médrporation: (a) change in the Company’s
corporate name to Solid Group Inc.; (b) changetsnprimary purpose to that of a holding

company; (c) change of the par value of its shams P.01 to P1.00; (d) the declassification of
its class A and class B capital stock; and (e)ithesase in its authorized capital stock from P20
million (divided into P1.2 billion Class A shareada0.8 billion Class B shares at P0.01 par
value) to P5 billion divided into 5 billion sharasP1.00 par value, all of one class.

On September 4, 1996, an additional 524,475,000aofipany’s shares of stock were offered to
the public and listed in the Philippine Stock Exute

On the November 21, 2002 special stockholders’ imgetthe stockholders approved the
acquisition of the shares and/or economic inter@stee Destiny Group (consisting of Destiny,
Inc. and subsidiaries (DI) and Destiny Cable, brad subsidiaries) from the Elena Lim family in
exchange for 1.026 billion shares of the Comparii war value of P1.00 per share.

In May 2003, the Company completed the acquisitibthe entire issued and outstanding shares
of DI, which is in the business of broadband muttitia services. The acquisition was approved
by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) on May 2603. A notice of exemption for the
issuance of shares under the Revised SecuritiesvAgtfiled with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on November 6, 2003. Company sharefingt224,461,752 was proposed to be
issued in payment for the DI acquisition upon apatmf the listing of these shares with the
Philippine Stock Exchange. However, in 2004, ufwsther review of the assets and liabilities of
DI, certain receivables from and payables to relgiarties were removed from the valuation of
DI's net assets. The re-valuation resulted in aagban its financial position from a net asset to a
net liability of P23,201,010. The Company and DGteeed that the Company would no longer
issue shares of stock to DCI as payment for itsligtepn of DI, but instead assume the DI's net
liability which represents fair value of the ongoing busirafsBl including its existing cable
internet subscriber base which, in accordance thighpooling of interest accounting applied to
this transaction, was charged to additional paidaipital



The Company has fifteen 15 wholly-owned subsidmes of December 31, 2010, as follows:

Solid Broadband Corporation (SBC) was incorporate@&eptember 22, 2000 to offer broadband
services. SBC obtained a congressional franchiseotwtruct, install, establish, operate and
maintain telecommunications systems throughoutPthidippines under Republic Act No. 9116
which took effect on April 15, 2001. It has beearged provisional authority to use its franchise
by the National Telecommunications Commission omilAp5, 2002. SBC was merged with
Destiny Inc. (DI) as approved by the Securities Brdhange Commission on August 26, 2005,
with SBC as the surviving entity. Henceforth, SB&Swmed the operations of DI of broadband
cable infrastructure and provides transport sesvitean affiliate engaged in cable television
operations. It also provides integrated multimesavices, among which are, VSAT, broadcast
uplink and leased line services. In 2007, SBCtettlathe marketing and distribution of mobile
phones. In 2010, My Solid Technologies & Devicesgration assumed the importation of the
mobile phones from SBC while MyTel Mobility Solutis Inc. took over the distribution of
mobile phones from SBC.

Solid Electronics Corporation (SEC), which was mpavated on August 9, 1982. SEC operates
the repair and service centers for SONY and AlWAnbis of audio and video consumer
electronics equipment. SEC merged with AA ElectertCorporation (AAEC), another wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and Solid Elect®8ervices Inc. (SESI), a wholly owned
subsidiary of SC on April 12, 2004 with SEC as $heviving company.

Solid Video Corporation (SVC) was incorporated owteber 12, 1984. SVC distributes
professional video equipment, accessories and iggppb broadcast networks and other
companies.

Solid Manila Corporation (SMC) was incorporated hme 13, 1983. SMC is engaged in the
lease and development of the Company's real egtadperties. SMC merged with Solid

Distributors, Inc. (SDI), another wholly-owned sigigry of the Company, on December 23,
2003, with SMC as the surviving company.

Solid Manila Finance Inc. (SMFI) was incorporated®eptember 9, 1999. SMFI is engaged in
the financing and extension of business, appliamckeother loans.

Omni Logistics Corporation (OLC) was incorporated May 22, 1998. OLC provides

warehousing and logistics services to third parpescipally the handling and delivery of

consumer electronic products. In February 2003C@tok over from an affiliate, Solid Laguna
Corporation, the color TV assembly operations fmtain brand owners under toll manufacturing
arrangement. OLC'’s customer opted to import thierctelevision, In October 2010, OLC

ceased the color TV assembly operations.

Solid Corporation (SC) was incorporated on Maya5. SC was the exclusive manufacturing
licensee and the distributor of SONY products & Bhilippines until October 1, 1997 when the
marketing and distribution of SONY products wetleetaover by Sony Philippines, Inc. (SPH), a
33%-owned associated company which was organizetlyjevith Sony Corporation. On May 3,
1997, SC permanently closed its manufacturingifgddcated in Valenzuela, Metro Manila and
transferred all manufacturing business to an aféli Solid Laguna Corporation. Thereafter, Solid
Corporation’s revenues principally come from thaske of its properties.



Kita Corporation (Kita) was incorporated on Octolhel994. Kita produced color TV sets under
the AIWA brand at its factory located inside thea®l Special Economic Zone. Kita ceased its
operations effective April 15, 2001 after its agneat with Aiwa expired in April 1, 2000 and
was no longer renewed. Kita has been disposintg @fSisets to settle liabilities. Kita merged with
Clark Plastics Manufacturing Corporation (CPMC)wiaolly owned subsidiary of SC, on April
2004, with Kita as the surviving company. Afteriherger with CPMC, Kita resumed operations
to continue the business of CPMC, which is injeqtledtics manufacturing as well as the lease of
its property. In December 2010, Kita ceased tiperations of its injected plastics
manufacturing business. Henceforth, Kita's revenpencipally come from the lease of its
properties.

Solid Laguna Corporation (SLC) was incorporatedMey 15, 1995. SLC merged with Solid
City Industrial and Commercial Corporation (SCIC@),wholly-owned subsidiary of Solid
Corporation, on December 28, 2001 with SLC as theviing company. SLC ceased its
consumer electronics manufacturing operations irceD#wer 2002 after its manufacturing
agreement with SPH expired in September 2002 argl neh renewed. Subsequently, SLC's
business is injected plastics manufacturing whiams whe business of SCICC prior to their
merger. SLC ceased the operations of the plag&ction manufacturing business at the end of
2009. SLC will operate as lessor of real estate.

Brilliant Reach Limited (BRL) was incorporated orahdh 12, 2003 in the British Virgin Islands
and acquired by the Company on July 31, 2003. B&tdles and manages the placement of the
Company’s investible funds in foreign currency fixéncome financial assets and other
investments.

Zen Towers Corporation (Zen) was incorporated oly &) 2005. Zen is engaged in the
development and sale of real estate properties.initial project is the Zen Tri-Tower
condominium located in Ermita, Manila.

Precos Corporation (Precos) was incorporated ook@ct31, 1989 to engage in real estate and
related businesses. Prior to 2004, Precos was @bfed by SC and 40% owned by Sony
International (Singapore) Ltd. (SONIS). In 2004edds reacquired as treasury stock the shares
held by SONIS, thereby making the Company a wholyed subsidiary of SC. In 2007, Precos
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Companynn®€ declared property dividend to the
Company in the form of its investment in Precos.

SolidGroup Technologies Corporation (SGTC) was lipomted on November 17, 1989 to
engage in the development and implementation obrinétion technology systems and
applications. SGTC was formerly a wholly-owned sdlary of SC. In 2007, SGTC became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company when SC alex property dividend to the Company
in the form of its investment in SGTC.

My Solid Technologies & Devices Corporation wasormorated on April 21, 2009 to engage in
the manufacture, sale, distribution, importationaofy type of digital communication devices,
communication technology, broadband and audio-viegaipment, gadgets and accessories as
well as undertake product research and development.

MyTel Mobility Solutions Inc. (MyTel) was incorpaed on July 6, 2009 to engage in the trading
and distribution of mobile phones and electroniaipepent or devices. On July 30, 2009, the



Company’s board of directors approved the acqaisittf MyTel's 100% ownership interest.
The Company’s acquisition of MyTel was consummatedanuary 10, 2010.

Henceforth, the term “Company” would mean the Pe@ompany and/or any of its subsidiaries.
2. Business of Issuer

Principal Products and Services

Solid Broadband Corp. owns and operates a broadbahté infrastructure, which provides
broadband multimedia services such as data transgosices, high-speed cable internet access,
VSAT, broadcast uplink, leased line services arttkoimultimedia services. The broadband
multimedia business reported revenues of P391amiiln 2010 or 56 % of service income in,
P307 million or 49% of service income in 2009 &®B2 million or 48% of service income in
2008.

Market estimates of regular Internet users in thiégpines have surpassed the 1,000,000 mark
and continue to rise steadily. Concentrated irMe&o Manila area, the heavy or high end users
comprise at least 25% of this total and providargdly underserved premium market that is
willing to pay for unlimited access to broadbaneeleservices. Another growing market is the
medium sized business and institutional requiremgat only for Internet access but also for
private data networks and other business services.

The Company’'s consumer electronic products manufiagt and distribution business was
formerly anchored on 2 leading foreign brands, SO AIWA. However, shifts in global
business practices of brand owners resulted tdridwic reduction and/or cessation of significant
portions of this business activity such that: (@)May 9, 1997, the Company entered into a joint
venture agreement with Sony Corporation for thenttion of Sony Philippines, Inc. (SPH) to
take over the local marketing and distribution @NsY consumer electronic products in the
Philippines, with the Company owning 33% of SPH;adingly, the Company ceased all selling
activities of SONY products on October 1, 1997 amhsferred this activity to SPH; (b) the
Company closed its consumer electronics manufagjurdperations located in Laguna
International Industrial Park in December 2002mfts manufacturing agreement with SPH
expired and was no longer renewed; (c) the Compuy down its color TV manufacturing
operations located in the Clark Special Economioe&Zim April 2001 when Aiwa Co. Ltd., its
principal export customer, stopped its orders after purchase agreement with the Company
expired in April 2000 and was no longer renewed| @) the Company stopped the marketing
and distribution of AIWA brand effective July 1,@®as these activities were taken over by SPH
as part of a worldwide business realignment browghby Sony’s takeover and integration of
Aiwa as a second brand. However, in August 20@idBroadband Corporation Mobile
Division introduced mobile phones in the Philippimarket under the MyPhone brand. As a
result, the Company’s consumer electronic salesee significant progress in the market.

The consumer electronics business of the Compaaf/@ecember 31, 2010 are:

(2) sale of mobile phones and LCD televisions whichegated sales of P1,495 million in
2010 (for 739,721 units )or 92% of sales in 2(AD,005 million in 2009 (for 200,362 units), or
90% of sales in 2009 and P514 million in 2008 ({38,061 units) or 68% of sales in 2008; and
(2) after-sales service for principally SONY andA brands of consumer electronic products
with its 33 company-owned service centers throughbe Philippines and 125 independent
authorized service centers as of end of 2010 whéaterated service income of P203 million or
29% of service revenues in 2010, P 210 million 8¥3of service revenues in 2009 and P203



million or 34% of service revenues in 2008 ; angdwarehousing and distribution of consumer
electronic products with service revenue of P5llianior 7% of service revenues in 2010, P60
million or 10 % of service revenues in 2009, Pabion or 11% of service revenues in 2008 and
(4) subcontract or toll manufacturing of color Tets for other brand owner (i.e. TCL) which

generated tolling fee of P10 million in 2010 (fof,959 units) or 2% of service revenues, P20
million in 2009 (for 121,347 units produced)or 3%service revenues in 2009, P17 million in

2008 (for 102,604 units produced) or 3% of servimeenues; and (5) other service income of
P39 million or 6% of service revenues in 2010,2 @8llion or 6% of service revenues in 2009,

and P22 million or 4% of service revenues in 2008.

The Company’s other business activities are: theeldpment and sale of industrial estates in
joint venture with Samsung Corporation of Korea ttevelopment of residential condominium
for sale and the development and lease of othdremtate properties, injected plastics parts
manufacturing, and sale of broadcast/professiaqaipenent and accessories.

The Company’s products are sold in the Philippifescenues for the last 3 years, are as follows:
broadcast/professional equipment and accessoried I million or 7 % of sales in 2010, P88
million or 8% of sales in 2009, P87 million or 12%osales in 2008 ; and other products of P15
million or 1% of sales in 2010, P31 million or 3%sales in 2009 and P153 million or 20% of
sales in 2008. Real estate sales amounted to PRGN or 8% of revenues in 2010, P361
million or 16% of revenues in 2009, P31 million2% of revenues in 2008.

Distribution

The broadcast/professional equipment and accesssralso sold directly to its corporate clients
such as broadcast stations.

The Company distributes through its subsidiariessamer electronic products and devices in the
Philippines. The MyPhone brand is distributed byTedl Mobility Solutions Inc. (MyTel)
through an independent dealer network. As of Désem3l, 2010, MyTel supplied
approximately 200 dealer accounts.

Status of any-publicly announced new product oviser

None.

Competition

The broadband cable services that the Companysatifeough the Destiny hybrid fiber coaxial

cable infrastructure competes with cable compangg;, Cable and Home Cable in Metro

Manila, and to some extent with other market playerthe telecommunication industry such as
PLDT, Bayantel, Globe and Eastern.

The cable television service of Global Destiny logerates throughout Metro Manila via the
Company's broadband cable network infrastructutr@rovides value programming for various
markets at competitive monthly service fee ratesuemajor competitors Sky Cable and Home
Cable. Smaller cable companies also compete ifleanoa limited franchise areas.

The MyDestiny Internet service is providing Internsers a higher service level through its
broadband technology versus the prevailing diasygiem of the some of ISP’s operating in
Metro Manila. Unlike some ISP’s, which need s& & third party telephone network,



MyDestiny uses its own broadband infrastructure aardoffer the market an integrated service
delivery system.

The broadcast/professional equipment and accesstivé¢ the Company sells competes with
other brands like Panasonic, JVC and Sharp.

The Company has state of the art hybrid fiber @dagable network capable of two-way
transmission and strong after-sales service netveortt that would enable it to effectively
compete with other market players.

The broadband cable network is a complex data ¢tepafastructure using HFC (hybrid fiber
and co-axial cables) that covers most of Metro ManiPlanned and built as one integrated and
contiguous system, the network’s fiber backboneriobnnects 21 hubs in key locations. The
various video and data services riding on this ndtvare delivered to customers in the 21 cities
and municipalities that compose Metro Manila o¥er2,400 strand miles of cable. The network
is capable of delivering these services to 5000@fes and other destinations. The services
include cable television, Internet access and eseailices, virtual private networks; file transfers
and downloads, video and audio streaming and \iee Internet Protocol (VOIP).

The MyPhone brand celphones distributed by SBC ebetpwith other brands in the Philippine
market mainly Nokia, Samsung, Sony Ericsson, Md#éoand other grey market phones.

Raw Materials, Parts and Components

The Company through its subsidiaries procures raterials for manufacture of its products and
finished products from a number of sources in thdigpines and foreign suppliers. The
Company is not dependent on a single or limited memof suppliers. There is no major existing
supply contracts.

Broadband Facilities

The Company operates broadband cable infrastruetssets in Metro Manila from its headend
located in Makati City, providing data transpordamultimedia services. The broadband cable
network is a complex data capable infrastructuiegusiFC (hybrid fiber and co-axial cables)
that covers most of Metro Manila. Planned andt &g one integrated and contiguous system,
the network’s fiber backbone inter-connects 21 hiobey locations. The various video and data
services riding on this network are delivered tetomers in the 21 cities and municipalities that
compose Metro Manila over its 2,400 strand milesatfle. The network is capable of delivering
these services to 500,000 homes and other destisatiThe services include cable television,
Internet access and email services, virtual privegsvorks; file transfers and downloads, video
and audio streaming and Voice over Internet ProtadoIP).

Dependency of the business upon a single or fetomess

The Company is not dependent on any single or festomers. There are no major existing sales
contracts.



Service

The Company provides through its subsidiariesy-@fdes service for all the consumer electronic
products it manufactures. As at December 31, 2(18as 33 service centers throughout the
Philippines and 125 independent authorized secgogers.

Related Party Transactions

The Company provides non-interest bearing cashraggato its subsidiaries for their working
capital requirements except for a loan granteddiidanila Finance Inc. Subsidiaries of the
Company generally depend on one another for supfptgrtain parts and components and lease
of properties. (See Item 12- Certain Relationships Related Transactions of form 17-A)

The Company provides broadband transport servicastble television client, which is 49%
owned by the ultimate majority stockholder of then@any.

Principal Terms and Expiration Dates of all Licenaed Agreements

* Franchise

Solid Broadband Corporation (SBC) obtained a caosgiomal franchise for 25 years to construct,
install, establish, operate and maintain telecomaoations systems throughout the Philippines
under Republic Act No. 9116 which took effect onrih@d5, 2001. SBC has been granted
provisional authority to use its franchise by thetiNinal Telecommunications Commission.

+ Joint Venture Agreement

The Company has a Joint Venture Agreement (JVA) ®idny Corporation until May 8, 2005 as

a result of which Sony Philippines, Inc. (SPH) warganized. The Company invested an

equivalent share of 33% ownership in SPH whichtethcommercial operations on October 1,

1997 at which date the Company and Solid Corparq8) ceased all selling activities direct to

dealers and transferred this activity to SPH inoatance with the JVA. Upon expiration of the

term or termination of the JVA, Sony Corporationymat its option, purchase the Company’'s

shares in SPH at its book value or the Company maqyire Sony to purchase its shares in SPH
also at its book value.

The Company received a formal notice that the J\MAaxpire on May 8, 2005. The Company
and Sony Corporation have agreed to pursue neigotistward an equitable settlement of all
matters relating to the JVA and its expiration amarder to ensure continuity and harmony of
the good relationship.

* Memorandum of Understanding with Sony Philippirias, (Sony)

On July 1, 2003, Solid Electronics Corporation ($E€htered into a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with Sony for network suppfant Sony and Aiwa products. Under the
MOU, Sony authorized the Company to perform in-amty and out-of warranty services to
customers in the Philippines for a fee calculated percentage of Sony’s annual sales.

In-warranty services shall be rendered free of ghato customers. The actual cost of
replacement parts related to in-warranty servibadl be shouldered by Sony. Also, Sony agrees
to pay the Company network support fee equal tool¥et sales for SONY products and 1% or



P50,000 per month whichever is higher for AIWA prots. In the first quarter of 2009, SEC and
Sony agreed to lower the network support feeset®d5%. Effective April 2009, SEC and
Sony agreed that the network support fees shalitlee fixed rate of P1.25 million per month.
The Agreement is effective unless revoked by arthefparties.

» Distributoship Agreement with Sony Corporation

Solid Video Corporation has a non-exclusive Distriln Agreement with Sony Corporation of
Hong Kong Limited (Sony HK), a corporation orgamlznd existing under the laws of Hong
Kong. Under the agreement , SVC was designategbby HK as its non-exclusive distributor
of Sony products in the Philippines. In additi®V,C shall provide the customers in the
Philippines with repair and parts replacement sesjiincluding but not limited to repair and
parts replacement services rendered by SVC whigkb@rered under the 12 month warranty
period at its own costs and expenses.

Need for any government approval

MyTel Mobility Solutions Inc. (MyTel) has a pendingpplication with the Securities and
Exchange Commission for the increase in its autkdricapital stock from P1 million divided
into 100,000 shares with a par value of P10 perestmP5 million divided into 500,000 shares
with par value of P10 per share.

Zen Tower Corporation is awaiting the approvallef Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board
(HLURB) for its amendment to its licenses to sell.

Effect of existing and probable governmental retjoies on the business

There are proposed legislations currently pendingéngressional action that will reclassify
cable infrastructure companies as non-mass médiauch, they will also be removed from the
strict foreign investment prohibition that govefiBpino mass media companies. Cable
companies with more advanced infrastructure or mideerage areas are expected to attract
more foreign investments to further capitalize bliout of services to the Filipino market.

Research and development activities

The Company has not spent any significant amounefearch and development activities in the
last three years.

Costs and effects of compliance with environmelatab

The Company has complied with environmental lawsiaimal costs.

Employees

The Company and its subsidiaries have 554 regrgployees as at December 31, 2010 as
shown in the table below. It estimates to have @®dployees by the end of December 31, 2011.
There is no existing union as of December 31, 20I8ere are no employees who would be on
strike nor have been on strike in the past thrgey€ars, nor are threatening to strike. The
Company has no supplemental benefits and inceatramgements with its employees other than
the regular Christmas bonus, thirteenth month pagformance incentives and leave conversions.



Number of employe

Managemet 17
Sales and Distributic 88
Operatiol 64
Broadbanc 144
Service 127
Administratior 61
Financ: 53
Total 554

Major Risks involved in the Businesses of the Comypa

The Company and its subsidiaries identify the majsks of the businesses by assessing the
business environment in which they operate. Mdgks and threats are addressed through the
corporate planning process, which defines apprtspstiategic directions and actions to be taken.
These directions and actions are managed by reguidit and management review of the
operations and financial results of the Company ismdubsidiaries. Significant issues, which
may arise as a result of the management reviewtharepresented to the Executive Committee
and the Board of Directors for resolution.

The Company has certain risks in its businessek asacfinancial risk associated with certain
long-term financial investments, specifically bond¥he Company relies on the advice and
research of major leading international financiahgultants on the handling of these financial
investments.

Certain infrastructure assets, particularly in tiheadband business, are subject to technological
advances which could affect their economic life #rel cost of providing the service/ product to
clients /customers. The Company monitors developsnan technology advances that could
affect its business.

ltem 2. Properties

B. Description of Property

Certain properties owned by the Company throughubsidiaries are as follows:

Land Are: Current and Intende:
Location (insg. m.) Use

Laguna International Industrial Park, Bin: 73,53 Warehouse for least
Laguna

La Huerta, Bicutan, Paranac 18,49( Office buildinc & warehouse
San Dionisi, Paranaqt 6,69( Warehouses for lea

San Antonio, Paranaq 4,05¢ Warehouses for lea
Valenzuel 10,49 Warehouse

Laguna International Industrial Park, Bin:

Laguna 5,141  Warehouse for lease
Pasong Tamo, Makati C 5,00C  Office building

Concepcion St., Ermita, Man 4,50¢ Condominium tower unde



1C

construction (for sal

Osmena Blv., Cebu Cit 3,85¢ Service center & office buildin

Outlook Drive, Baguio Cit 3,84¢ Raw land (Intended for lea:

Brgy. Tabuco, Naga Ci 3,05¢ Raw land (Intended for sa

Tandang Sora, Quezon C 2,511 Office building

Barrio Pantal, Dagupan Ci 1,91¢ Raw land (Intended for sa

Barrio San Rafael, lloilo Ci 1,75C Service Center and Office buildi

J. Bocobo St., Ermita, Man 1,72¢ Office buildingand Hote

Brgy. San Roque, San Pablo ( 1,71« Service center and office buildii

Oliveros, Balintawak, Quezon C 1,40( Raw land (Intended for si)

Bacoor, Cavit 1,33¢ Office building

Cabanatuan City, Nueva Ec 1,212 Service ceter and office buildin

Brgy. San Rafael, Tarlac, Tar 1,00(¢ Warehouse for lea

Calamba Premiere Industrial P 22,06 Industrial/ Commerci lots for
sale

Araneta, Quezon Ci 1,00( Land for leas

Brgy. Parian, Prinza and Barandal, Cala 132,929 Raw Lant

Solid Corporation also owns a parcel of land in 8glalipapa and Pamaldan, Cabanatuan City,
Nueva Ecija with an area of 1,914,180 square meldiis property is the subject of a case filed
by the Solid Corporation on October 17, 1995 whth Department of Agrarian Reform Regional
Adjudication Board (RARAB) to declare the emancipatpatents issued to several tenant
farmers of the said property and any patents tlat snbsequently be issued covering the same,
null and void on the ground that the requiremetitBresidential Decree No. 27 have not been
complied with. The portion of the property that mag subject to litigation consists of 47,211
square meters. On February 6, 1997, the case Wastted for resolution. On June 26, 1997, the
RARAB ordered the processing of the Certificaté.afid Transfer for issuance to the tenants. On
July 31, 1997, Solid Corporation appealed the RARAE8cision to the DAR’s Central
Adjudication Board (DARAB). The appeal was resolegtverse to Solid Corporation on January
31, 2002. Solid Corporation appealed the DARAB sieai to the Court of Appeals on February
11, 2002. The Court of Appeals dismissed the petitf Solid Corp. on March 1, 2002. In
November 2002, Solid Corporation withdrew its apmaathe Court of Appeals preparatory to
negotiating with DAR and Landbank, which the CaafrAppeals granted last June 28, 2004. No
amicable settlement was however reached. Thug] Soliporation filed for a Petition for Higher
Valuation of Land before the Provincial Agrarianf&ten Adjudication Board of the Department
of Agrarian Reform in Cabanatuan City as of on Noker 18, 2007. The case is ongoing as of
April 2010. Solid Corporation also filed for a Rieth for Retention of land with Office of the
Regional Director of DAR on July 19, 2007. The peti of Solid Corporation was granted.
Municipal Agrarian Reform Officer of the DAR ruletthat Solid Corporation is entitled to 5
hectares retention. This is pending the approwaR&gional Director as of April 2011.

Solid Manila Corporation also owns a property ilillRj Rizal with a land area of 645,193 square
meters. The Department of Agrarian Reform has mémt Solid Manila Corporation that this

property is within the coverage of the Comprehangigrarian Reform Law which may result in

future litigation. Portion of the property that miag subject to future litigation consists of

210,000 square meters. Solid Manila Corporation fited its opposition with the Provincial
Agrarian Reform Adjudication Board (PARAB) on theverage of the land under agrarian
reform. On August 13, 1997, Solid Manila Corporatébtained a certification from the Office of
the Municipal Planning and Development Coordingf@itilla, Rizal) stating that the subject
properties belonging to Solid Manila Corporation sweeclassified for Agro-industrial &
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Industrial use as per Sangguniang Bayan Resoldtiorb dated March 6, 1980 and duly ratified
by the government’'s Housing & Land Use Regulatooai® (HLURB) under their Resolution
No. R-42-A-3 series of 1981, which was adopted ebr&ary 11, 1981. Thus, according to
company's legal counsel, the said properties ammpk from CARP coverage under the
provisions of Department of Justice opinion No. #e Company's legal counsel believes that
the Board will declare the CARP coverage of thejesttbproperties void since Solid Manila
Corporation was clearly denied due process of l&wthe meantime, Solid Manila Corporation
filed for exemption in January 14, 1999 and saipliaption has been indorsed to Center for Land
Use Policy Planning Implementation (CLUPPI) -2 DARreau of Agrarian Legal Affairs on
March 8, 1999. Solid Manila Corporation’s applioatfor exemption was however subsequently
withdrawn. In lieu of the withdrawal, Solid Manil@orporation filed a Protest before the
Department of Agrarian Reforms on the Notice of €age for TCT Nos. 25264, 25265, 25267 ,
26578 and 25268. It likewise filed a Petition faghier Valuation before the Provincial Agrarian
Reform Adjudication Board last June 24, 2009 whigtpending resolution as of date. Solid
Manila Corp. was able to secure a retention orPilitia lot covered by TCT No. 25265 while
the remaining area of around 3 hectares more ar s subjected to the Voluntary Land
Transfer Program of the Dept. of Agrarian Refornthte Solid Manila Corporation's recognized
farmers-beneficiaries. The Pillilia lots covered B@T Nos. 25267, 25264 and TCT No. 25268
were likewise subjected to the Voluntary Land TfansProgram by the Dept. of Agrarian
Reforms and distributed to the recognized farmerekheiaries of Solid Manila Corp. The Pillilia
lot covered by TCT No. 26578, subject to an on-goApplication for Exemption as of June 1,
2009, is still pending approval by the Dept. Of &gan Reforms as of April 2011.

There are two other cases involving certain progef Solid Manila Corporation. Its titles to
the Balintawak, Quezon City property with land apé81,423 square meters, currently used as a
service center and office building, are sought éodnnulled in a civil action filed on 25th
September, 1990, with the Regional Trial Court Brai20 on the ground that another title
covers the same area claimed by Lilia Sevilla eCal July 14, 1995, the in-house counsel
assumed the case. On January 20, 2003, the RTCHB120 rendered a decision in favor of Lilia
Sevilla annulling seven titles of Solid Manila Coration to wit-- TCT Nos. 12729 up to 12736.
SMC filed an appeal with the Court of Appeals. T@mpany's legal counsel believes that the
titles of Solid Manila Corporation will prevail ov¢hose of the claimants on the grounds that the
titles of the claimants are being sought to beifiedl and voided by the government itself. The
government’s case filed by the Land Registratiothatity (which is represented by the Office of
the Solicitor General) before the Regional Triau@dRTC) Branch 122 was for the annulment
of claimant’s title. Solid Manila Corporation filedn intervention in the government’s case
despite opposition by Lilia Sevilla et.al. The Coalfowed Solid Manila Corporation to intervene
in the government’s case. Pending the incidentludrathird party intervenors, the Department of
Justice recommended the dismissal of the Regidtddemds (ROD) and Deputy ROD of
Caloocan based on inquiry of the antecedent facthe case. In November 2000, the RTC
Branch 122 rendered a decision in favor of the guwent, thus nullifying the land titles of Lilia
Sevilla et. al., who subsequently appealed thesaetiof RTC Branch 122 to the Court of
Appeals. SMC consolidated these cases as of Fgl2084. Lilia Sevilla et. al. filed a motion
for reconsideration to the Court of Appeals’ ordensolidating these cases.



12

Plant and equipment

The Company through its subsidiary owns plant apdpement for its broadband operations (See
Broadband Facilities). The plant and equipmentofmadband operations are located in Makati
City and in the various hub sites in Metro Manifeldave been written down after recognizing
value impairment.

Franchise

A Company's subsidiary, Solid Broadband Corporati@BC), obtained a congressional
franchise to construct, install, establish, operatel maintain telecommunications systems
throughout the Philippines under Republic Act N&18 which took effect on April 15, 2001.
SBC's applications for provisional authority to ugse franchise was approved by the National
Telecommunications Commission on April 15, 200he Tompany uses the Destiny broadband
infrastructure in operating the franchise

Mortgage, lien or encumbrance and limitation on emship or usage on the properties

Except for the above third party claims filed aghaithe Company’'s subsidiaries as disclosed
above, there are no other mortgage, lien or encamalerand limitation on the ownership or usage
on the properties.

Lease agreements

The Company through its subsidiaries has entetedcigrtain lease contracts with several lessors
for the following properties:

Locatior Annual Rett Expiration Dat

(In Thousand

Pesos)
Clark, Pampanc 6,46(* March and August 20:
Dr. A. Santos Ave., Paranac 3,098 October 31, 201
Metro Manile 26,04¢* December 31, 20:
Metro Manile 31,68%**  April 15, 201:
Orbital spac 13198+  December 31, 211

* With increase after every five years on the leastand and 10% annual increase on lease of
the improvements after the first five years.

** Represents lease of poles for the operatiorable television in Metro Manila.
*** Represents lease of internet connection.
**** Represents lease of transponder for telecomitation and satellite uplink services

The above lease contracts are renewable upon nagregment of the parties.
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Also, the Company through its subsidiaries, pritgagolid Manila Corporation and Kita
Corporation, leases out to tenants certain reategiroperties as summarized below. These
leases are renewable on terms mutually acceptalte tparties.

Location Annual Rent  Expiretion Date

(In Thousand

Pesos)
Bacoor, Cavit 3,671 Juy 31, 201:
Balintawak, Quezon Ci 14,912 Various up to September 30, 2
Cagayan de O 1,16z Various up to August 1, 20
Chino Roces Ave, Makati Ci 20,00¢ Various up to April 30, 201
Clark,Pampang 14,9172 Various up tcJune 15, 201
lloilo 1,86S Various up to August 31, 20
Laguna International Industrial Pa 31,83t Various up to August 31, 20

Binan, Laguna

Laguna International Industrial Pa 3,535  April 30, 201(

Binan, Laguna

Ermita, Manile 7,83E Various up to February , 201:
San Antonio, Paranaque C 444€ October 31, 201

San Dionisio, Paranaque C 2,19C January 31, 20:

Properties the Company intends to acquire in thé tagelve months

The Company estimates capital expenditures foy#iae 2011 to amount to P400 million for the
construction of Tower 2 of our condominium projeaeial estate development and upgrade of the
broadband infrastructure. The purchase and/ortieani®n of these capital expenditures will be
financed through the funds of the Company.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

C. Legal Proceedings

As discussed Item 2 (See Properties), certainidgiabes of the Company are involved in
litigation or other proceedings affecting theirpestive titles to real estate property and certain
other litigation in relation to property, the outge of which could individually or taken as a
whole, not adversely affect the financial resuttserations or prospects of the Company. The
Company does not believe any such litigation wdlvé a significant impact on the financial
results, operations or prospects of the Company.
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Iltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of SecugtHolders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of tharigg holders during the fourth quarter of the
fiscal year covered by this report.

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Iltem 5. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Relded Stockholder Matters

A. Market Price of and Dividends on Registrant's Common Equity and Related
Stockholders Matters

(1) Market Information

€) Principal Market

The principal market for the registrant’'s commoniggis the Philippine Stock Exchange

® The registrant's common equity is listed anddid only at the Philippine Stock

Exchange. The high and low sales prices for eaelnter within the last two years are as follows:
Stock Prices

High (P) Low (P)

201(

First quarte 0.8¢ 0.71
Second quart 0.8: 0.71
Third quarte 1.04 0.6¢
Fourth quarte 1.04 0.7¢
2009

First quarte 0.4% 0.2¢
Second quart 0.8: 0.3C
Third quarte 0.7¢ 0.6(
Fourth quarte 1.0¢ 0.64

(ii)
Not applicable. The principal market is the Plulipe Stock Exchange.

(b) The Company share was trading at P1.30 as ot 26, 2011 (the latest practicable
trading date).

(c) Notapplicable. This reportis not filedriglation to registration of securities.

(2) Holders

The number of shareholders of record as of DeceBthe2010 was 4,658. Common shares

outstanding as of December 31, 2010 were 1,821)88Z%hares. Total issued shares as of
December 31, 2010 were 2,030,975,000.
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Top 20 stockholders of the Company’s common stecsfdecember 31, 2010:
No. of Share: % to Total

Name of Stockholder Held Outstanding

1. AA Commercial, Inc 583,377,81 32.0¢
2. AV Value Holdings Corporatic 499,999,99 27.4¢
3. PCD Nominee Corporation (| 350,886,222 19.2¢
4, Lim, David S 179,488,59 9.8t
5. Lim, Vincent S 71,887,18 3.9t
6. Lim, Jason ¢ 65,176,16 3.5¢
7. PCD Nominee Corporation (N 17,987,80 0.9¢
8. Chua, Willington Chua &/or Constanti 11,610,00 0.6
9. Chua, Constantino &/or Willington &/or Geotr 1,750,001 0.1C
1C. Hottick Development Corporati 1,408,001 0.0¢
11. John Peter C. Yu &/c JuanG. Yu 1,210,001 0.0
12. Chua, Willingtor 1,110,001 0.0¢
13. Paz, Vensc 1,065,00!I 0.0¢
14. Columbian Motors Corporatit 1,000,001 0.0t
Lucio W. Yan &/or Clara Ya 1,000,001 0.0t

15. Uy Chun Bing 800,00( 0.0¢
16. Ong, Victori¢ 632,00( 0.0z
17. Juar Go Yu &/or Grace Chu Y 630,00( 0.0¢
18. Union Properties, In 625,00( 0.0¢
19. Lim Florencio | 600,00( 0.0¢
2C. Lim, Julic 590,00( 0.0z
19. Camarines Minerals Ir 562,32¢ 0.0¢
20. Castillo Laman Tan Pantaleon & San Jose 536,00( 0.03

Offices

b. Not applicable. This report is not filed in atbn to registration of securities or any
acquisition, business combination or other reogtian.

c. Not applicable. This report is not filed in id@ to any acquisition, business combination or
other reorganization.

d. Not applicable. This report is not filed idatton to registration of securities.

(3) Dividends

a. No cash dividends were declared in 2010 and 2009.

b. The Company’s retained earnings as of DeceBibe2010 included undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries and unconsolidated investees, whieh raot currently available for dividend
declaration until such time that the subsidiariagendistributed them. The Company’'s retained
earnings is also restricted for the cost of 209,@@3 treasury shares amounting to P115.6 million
as of December 31, 2010.

4) Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Seeasriti

There was no sale of unregistered or exempt sasuitit 2008 to 2010.



16

a. Securities Sold.

No securities were sold by the Company from 20030tt0.

b. Underwriters and Other Purchases

Not applicable. There were Becurities were sold by the Company from 2008002
c. Consideration

Not applicable. There were securities were sold by the Company from 2008002
d. Exemption from Registration Claimed

Not applicable. There were securities were sold by the Company from 2008002
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Item 6. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis anRif Operation

A. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan dperation

(1) Plan of Operation

Not applicable. The Company have revenues fromatipas in each of the last two fiscal years.
(2) Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Full Fiscal Years

Key Performance Indicators

The following key performance indicators were idiied by the Company: asset turnover,
revenue growth, operating expense ratio, earningfr® interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA), earnings per share, curmatip and debt to equity ratio.

Revenue growth was determined as follows: revefurethe current year less revenues for last
year or change in revenues divided by the reveofit®e previous year.

Asset turnover was computed based on the reverare®ede during the year divided by the
average total assets.

Operating expense ratio was calculated as folloggerating expenses for the period divided by
revenues for period.

EBITDA was determined by adding back interest egpedepreciation and amortization charges,
and impairment losses to income before tax on pointg operations fahe year.

Earnings per share was computed based on the gwhénor loss for the period divided by the
weighted average shares outstanding during the year

Current ratio was computed as follows: total curi@ssets as of end of the year divided by total
current liabilities as of end of the year.

Debt to equity ratio was computed by dividing tbtat liabilities (excluding amounts due to
related parties) as of end of the year by the &xalty as of end of the year.

Key performance indicators for 2010, 2009 and 2008 are asfollows:

December 31, 20: Dec. 31, 200 Dec. 31, 200
Revenue growth 17% 44% 13%
Asset turnover 26% 24% 18%
Operating expense 19% 15% 20%
ratio
EBITDA P495 million P414 million P423 million
Earnings (loss) per P0.13 P0.12 P0.15
shart
Current ratio 2.81:1 3.94:1 333:1

Debt to equity ratio 0.29:1 0.23:1 0.23:1
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2010

Revenue improved by 17% in 2010 vs. revenue traxf 44% for the same period in 2009.
Revenue improved by 17% in 2010 but not as higm&009 mainly due to lower real estate
sales offset by higher sales of the trading anddisand segments in 2010.

Asset turnover improved to 26% in 2010 from 2422009 principally from higher revenues of
the trading and broadband segments.

Operating expense ratio was higher at 19% in 2@hdpared with 15% in 2009 mainly due to
higher operating expenses of the trading segment.

EBITDA amounted to P495 million in 2010 againstlR4million in 2009. The increase was
mainly due to higher operating profit during tfear.

Earnings per share amounted to P0.13 in 2010 sé?8ul2 in 2009 mainly from higher net
income in 2010.

Current ratio stood lower at 2.81 :1 as of Decan®ie 2010 from 3.94 : 1 as of December 31,
2009 mainly due to higher current liabilities fréoans incurred for the Golden Hill Project.

Debt to equity ratio was higher at 0.29 : 1 aBe€ember 31,2010 from 0.23 : 1 as of December
31, 2009 primarily due to higher liabilities.

2009

Revenue growth improved to 44% in 2009 vs. 13%2008. The improvement was mainly
contributed by higher mobile sales of the tradiagrsent, sale of industrial lots of the real estate
segment and higher broadband revenues.

Asset turnover was 24% in 2009 compared with 1892008 principally due to higher revenues
generated during the year.

Operating expense ratio was 15% in 2009 which imvguiofrom last year's 20% mainly due to
higher revenues as explained above.

EBITDA amounted to P414 million in 2009 againd2B million in 2008. The decrease was
mainly due to finance costs from losses on saléinaihcial assets by Brilliant Reach Limited
offset by higher operating profits of the tradingldroadband segments.

Earnings per share amounted to P0.12 in 2009 ¥e?Ou15 in 2008 mainly from lower net
income for the year.

Current ratio stood at 3.94 : 1 as of December2B09 and 3.33 : 1 as of December 31, 2008
mainly due to higher current assets.

Debt to equity ratio was 0.23: 1 as of Decengier2009 and 2008 .
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008
The Company posted revenue decline of 13% in 28023% growth in 2007 principally due to
lower revenues from broadband services of the diraad segment .

Asset turnover grew to 18% in 2008 from 17% in 26@4nly from higher revenues as explained
above.

Operating expense ratio went down to 20% in 20081f21% in 2007 due to improved revenues
as explained above and effective control of expemddch increased only by 13% or a little over
one-half of the increase in revenues..

EBITDA reached P423 million in 2008 from P155 oill in 2007. The increase was mainly
attributed to higher operating profit as explairgobve and fair value gains on investment
property of the real estate segment.

Earnings per share reached P0.15 in 2008 compatiedoss per share of P0.01 in 2007 mainly
due to improved net income in 2008 principally frémgher revenues and fair value gains on
investment property as explained above.

Current ratio declined to 3.33 : 1 as of Decemlder 3008 vs. 3.47:1 as of December 31, 2007
primarily from lower current assets of the invegtifinancing and other business segment as
certain investments in foreign currency denominditedds were classified as non-current assets
in 2008.

Debt to equity ratio was slightly lower at 0.23 a4 of December 31, 2008 from 0.24 : 1 as of
December 31, 2007.

Results of Operations

2010

Revenues reached P2,709 million in 2010, or higlge 17% from P2,323 million in 2009 as
discussed below.

Sale of goods amounted to P1,622 million in 20d@roving by 44 % from P1,124 million in
2009 mainly due higher volume of sales of thetdigiroducts.

Service revenue amounted to P694 million in 2Q§® by 10% from P630 million in 2009
principally higher broadband revenues as a resiuticoease in subscribers in 2010.

Sale of real estate amounted to P207 million B2 or lower by 43% from P360 million in
2009. This was principally due the lower salenafuistrial lots for the period.

Rental income amounted to P121 million in 2018lamhtly higher by 8% from P112 million in
2009 principally due to more space rented out.

Interest income amounted to P63 million in 20110down by 34% from P95 million in 2009
mainly from lower yield of the placements and &s@009, the Company earned interest income
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from the amortization of discounts on held to migguinancial assets versus none in 2010 as a
result of the reclassification of these financeEdets to available for sale.

Cost of sales, services and rentals amounted & B1million in 2010, or higher by 15% from
P1,624 million in 2009 as discussed below.

Cost of sales went up to P1,225 million in 2000 higher by 44%, from P849 million in 2009 in
relation to the increase in sales.

Cost of services amounted to P460 million in 20d@lmost the same level as last year of P458
million in 2009.

Cost of real estate sold amounted to P151 miliio@010, or a decrease of 46% from P282
million in 2009. The decrease was mainly in relatio lower sale of real estate.

Cost of rentals amounted to P38 million in 201®nf P33 million in 2009, or an increase of
15%. The increase was principally due to highésida services

Gross profit amounted to P834 million in 2010nfird?699 million in 2009, up by 19%
principally due to higher revenues and higher giraargin of the broadband segment.

Other operating expenses (income) amounted to Pd#lion in 2010 against P325 million in
2009 as explained below.

General and administrative expenses amounted t&@ R28lion in 2010, or up by 12% from
P250 million in 2009 principally due to higheropision for warranty and others.

Selling and distribution costs amounted to P22Tianiin 2010, up by 134% from P97 million
in 2009 mainly from higher commissions, persoramal advertising costs .

Other operating income amounted to P87 million204.0, increasing by 283% compared with
P22 million gains in 2009. This was primarilyedto higher fair value gains on investment
property and return on retirement plan assets 1920

Operating profit amounted to P412 million in 20i®@m P374 million in 2009, or a increase of
10%, mainly from higher gross profit.

Other income (charges) amounted to P46 millios las 2010 against P82 million loss in 2009
mainly from the following:

Finance costs amounted to P88 million in 2010, eksing by 26% against P118 million in
2009 mainly due to the losses on the sale of fareigrrency denominated financial assets in
2009, none in 2010. Impairment losses on findrasets was however incurred in 2010.

Finance income amounted to P38 million in 2010, loyp 12% compared with P34 million in
2009 mainly due to the reversal of impairment lessgtrade and other receivables.

Other gains amounted to P2.7 million in 2010 verBd.6 million in 2009 principally due to
income from common usage area.
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Income before tax reached P366 million in 20Xthigher by 25% from P292 million in 2009
mainly due to higher operating profit as explaiabove.

Tax expense amounted to P122 million in 2010 fi®®3 million in 2009 principally due to
higher pre-tax income of certain subsidiaries.

Profit from continuing operations amounted to P&iBion in 2010 from P228 million in 2009
as a result of the higher profit in 2010.

Loss from discontinued operations amounted to Pilliomin 2010 vs. P2 million in 2009. In
2009, the Company started phasing out its plasjection manufacturing business which had
been incurring operating losses.

Net income amounted to P226 million in 2010 and®0espite higher revenues in 2010 mainly
due to higher tax expense in 2010.

Net income attributable to equity holders of theepaamounted to P229 million in 2010 against
P203 million in in 2009 as discussed above.

Net income attributable to minority interest amaehto P2.6 million in 2010 compared with
P23 million income in 2009 due to higher earnimds the industrial estate business of the
Company in 2009 .

009

Revenues reached P2,323 million in 2009, achiegimmgvth of 44% from P1,608 million in
2008 as discussed below.

Sale of goods reached P1,124 million in 2009, pgsgrowth of 49% from P754 in 2008
mainly due higher volume of sales of the digitalducts.

Service revenue amounted to P630 million in 2Q@Rby 7% against P589 million in 2008,
mainly due to improved broadband revenues.

Sale of real estate amounted to P360 million @9 improving by 1,078% from P30 million in
2008. This was principally due the sale of indaktots.

Rental income amounted to P112 million in 2009@wver by 17% from P136 million in 2008
primarily due to reduction in rates.

Interest income amounted to P95 million in 2009]osver by 2% from P97 million in 2008
mainly due to lower interest from business loans.

Cost of sales, services and rentals amounted &22illion in 2009, or an increase of 46%
from P1,111 million in 2008 as discussed below.

Cost of sales amounted to P849 million in 2009% higher by 38%, from P616 million in 2008
is mainly in relation to higher sales.
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Cost of services was higher by 5% at P458 milll2009 from P435 million for the same period
of 2008 principally in relation to increase in seevrevenues.

Cost of real estate sold amounted to P282 milla2009, or up by 1,159% from P22 million in
2008. The increase was mainly in relation to higlae of land.

Cost of rentals amounted to P33 million in 2009 lawer by 7% from P36 million in 2008
primarily from lower taxes and licenses and udiit

Gross profit went up to P699 million in 2009 frd?d97 million in 2008, improving by 41%
due to improved margins from the sale of digitaidarcts.

Other operating expenses (income) amounted to RBEBN in 2009 against P229 million in
2008 as explained below.

General and administrative expenses amounted t0 P@bon in 2009, or slightly lower by 3%
from P258 million in 2008.

Selling and distribution costs amounted to P97iomlin 2009, up by 38% from P70 million in
2008 mainly from higher advertising and warrantgenses.

Other operating income —net amounted to P22 millia 2009 compared with P98 million in
2008 or lower by 77% principally from lower faiale gains on investment property.

Operating profit amounted to P374 million in 2008m P267 million in 2008, or higher by
40%, mainly from higher gross profit as explained\e.

Other income (charges) amounted to P82 million ias2009 against P38 million income in
2008 mainly from the following:

Finance income amounted to P34 million in 200%ymby 52% compared with P72 million in
2008 primarily due to decrease in foreign curreg@yns.

Finance costs amounted to P118 million in 2066rdasing by 196% against P40 million in
2008 mainly due to loss on sale of investmentsbffy lower interest expenses.

Income before tax was lower at P292 million @®2 from P305 million in 2008 mainly due to
the higher finance costs as explained above.

Tax expense amounted to P63 million in 2009 fromnflion in 2008 due to higher taxable
income of certain subsidiaries.

Net income from continuing operations amounted 288million in 2009 against P300 million
in 2008 due to the higher tax expense as discugz®ee.

Loss from discontinued operations — net of tax amedito P2 million in 2009 from P31 million
in 2008.

Net income amounted to P226 million in 2009 agai®68 million in 2008 due to the higher
tax expense as discussed above.
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Net income attributable to equity holders of theepaamounted to P203 million in 2009 against
P268 million in 2008 as discussed above.

Net income attributable to non-controlling interastounted to P23 million in 2009 compared
with P406 thousand in 2008 due to earnings ofirttiestrial estate business of the Company.

2008

Results of Operations

The Company posted revenues of P1,608 million i68820achieving growth of 13% from
P1,425 million in 2007 as discussed below.

Service revenue amounted to P589 million in 2@08pwer by 6% against P625 million for the
in 2007, mainly due to revenue earned for servieeslered for the ASEAN Summit in 2007,
partly offset by higher broadband revenues forctimeent period.

Sale of goods reached P754 million in 2008, posgimyvth of 59% from P474 million in 2007
mainly due to mobile phone sales.

Rental income amounted to P136 million for thetfirme months of 2008, higher by 15% from
P117 million for the same period in 2007 primafilym higher occupancy.

Sale of land amounted to P30 million in 2008, ddwn70% from P102 million in 2007. The
decline was principally because of zero salesahstrial lots for the period.

Interest income amounted to P97 million in 2008a atecline of 8% from P105 million in 2007
mainly from lower investible funds and lower averafpllar conversion rate for the year.

Cost of sales, services and rentals amounted tal P illion in 2008, or higher by 13% from
P983 million in 2007 as discussed below.

Cost of services reached P435 million in 2008, deerease of 10% from P482 million in 2007,
principally in relation to the decline in servi@venues.

Cost of sales amounted to P616 million in 2008higher by 53% from P403 million in 2007
mainly in relation to higher sales for the period.

Cost of rentals amounted to P36 million in 2008,upr by 1% from P35 million in 2007
primarily in relation of higher rental income.

Cost of land amounted to P22 million in 2008, alosvn by 64% from P61 million in 2007. The
decrease was mainly in relation to the declineala sf land.

Gross profit improved by 12% to P497 million in 30€ompared with P442 million in 2007 due
to higher volume from mobile phone sales.

Other operating expenses (income) amounted to REE®N in 2008 against P279 million in
2007 as explained below.
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General and administrative expenses amounted t8 B#Bon in 2008, lower by 5% from P271
million in 2007.

Selling and distribution costs amounted to P70iamlin 2008, up by 129% from P30 million in
2007 mainly from higher advertising charges foe tmobile phone and digital devices
businesses.

Other operating income amounted to P98 millior2G08 compared with P23 million in 2007, or
an increase of 324% principally due to fair valaéng on investment property.

Operating profit amounted to P267 million in 20@8npared with P162 million in 2007 mainly
from higher gross profit and other operating incamexplained above.

Other income (charges) amounted to P38 million @& against P127 million loss in 2007
mainly from the following:

Finance income amounted to P72 million in 2008, bud20% compared with P33 million for
the same period of last year primarily due to higheeign currency gains.

Finance costs went down to P40 million in 2008, ddwy 76% against P165 million in 2007
mainly from lower interest rates in 2008 and alse tbreign currency losses incurred last year.

Income before tax reached P305 million in 2008rowing from P35 million in 2007 mainly
due to higher operating profit and other incomexgdained above.

Tax expense amounted to P5 million in 2008 from PR#ifion in 2007 or lower by 91% due to
lower deferred tax expense resulting from decr@asegular income tax rate to 30%.

Net income amounted to P268 million in 2008 agait#i million loss in 2007 due to the factors
discussed above.

Net income attributable to equity holders of theepaamounted to P268 million in 2008 against
P26 million loss in 2007 as discussed above.

Net income attributable to minority interest amagshto P406 thousand in 2008 compared with
P750 thousand in 2007 due to share in net logsesred by the China real estate project of the
Company.

Earnings per share amounted to P0.15 in 2008 vé8u&l loss in 2007 mainly from higher
income for the period.

Financial Position

2010

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to P 1,62m@méls of December 31, 2010, up by 28%
from P1,263 million as of December 31, 2009. Casis provided from financing activities
mainly from proceeds of loans and used for opegadictivities for increase in receivables and
inventories. It was also used for investing atigi for acquisition of property and equipment.
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Trade and other receivables reached P890 madisonf December 31, 2010 against P501 million
as of December 31, 2009, or higher by 78% pridlgipdue to higher receivable for digital
products. Trade customers are generally establistmel stable companies with reasonable
assurance of collectibility of their accounts. MNtheless, trade accounts are periodically
reviewed to assess the possible losses from ndeetioh and allowance is provided for possible
losses on accounts which are considered doubtitbligction.

Available-for-sale financial assets stood at P1iflion as of December 31, 2010, lower by 55%
from P305 million as of December 31, 2009, mafnyn disposal of financial assets.

Merchandise inventories and supplies - net amoumtét892 million as of December 31, 2010,
increasing by 371% compared with P83 million afetember 31, 2009 mainly from higher
merchandise and finished goods for digital products

Real estate inventories amounted to P1,328 millisnof December 31, 2010 from P1,046
million as of December 31, 2009 or higher by 27%he increase was mainly due to additions
made during the period offset by real estate sold.

Advances to related parties amounted to P201 milis of December 31, 2010 from P504
million as of December 31, 2009 or lower by 60%.ertain advances as at December 31, 2009
were mainly provided to MyTel Mobility Solutionsdn(MyTel) for working capital purposes.
The acquisition of MyTel was consummated in Jan2&30. The said advances were included
and eliminated in the consolidated financial staets in 2010.

Other current assets amounted to P242 million faBDexember 31, 2010, lower by 19%
compared with P299 million as of December 31, 2@@@cipally from lower advances to
suppliers and contractors.

Total current assets amounted to P4,813 millioof &ecember 31, 2010 from P4,003 million as
of December 31, 2009 as discussed above.

Non-current trade and other receivable amounteB640 million as of December 31, 2010
from P679 million as of December 31, 2009 or loe6% mainly from lower non-current trade
receivables on real estate sales and finance sdies.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assetodtat P12 million as of December 31, 2010
against P8 million as of December 31, 2009 or arefmse of 51% mainly from club shares.

Property, plant and equipment amounted to P1,39liomas of December 31, 2010 from
P1,397 million as of December 31, 2008 or almostsiime level.

Investment property amounted to P3,646 milliomBecember 31, 2010 from P3,617 million
as of December 31, 2009 or almost the same level.

Retirement benefit assets amounted to P74 millmofaDecember 31, 2010 or higher by 63%
from P45 million December 31, 2009 mainly from wdmutions made during the year and lower
unrecognized actuarial gains.

Deferred tax assets - net amounted to P32 milisrof December 31, 2010, higher by 20% from
P27 million as of December 31, 2009 principally doi¢ax assets from temporary differences.
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Other non-current assets amounted to P24 millonfdDecember 31, 2010 and December 31,
2009 or almost the same level.

Total non-current assets amounted to P5,828 mildie of December 31, 2010 from P5,801
million as of December 31, 2009 as discussed above.

Non-current assets held for sale stood at noneeasmber 31, 2010 from P12 million as of end
of 2009 mainly due to sale of equipment.

Total assets reached P10,642 million as of Decemi3d, 2010 from P9,817 million as of the
December 31, 2009 as discussed above.

Interest-bearing loans amounted to P989 millimwfaDecember 31, 2010, higher by 136% from
P419 million as of December 31, 2009 principallyedi» additional loan availments for the
Golden Hill Project in China offset by payment ofiee loans.

Trade and other payables amounted to P442 millimrof December 31, 2010 against P322
million as of December 31, 2009, up by 37% prinyadilie to higher trade and accrued expenses,
refundable deposits, advances from customers.

Advances from related parties amounted to P168amilis of December 31, 2010, down by 16%
from P201 million as of December 31, 2009 due tnpents made.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeosts amounted to P68 million as of December
31, 2010 and December 31, 2009. There was no nmawsior this account.

Income tax payable amounted to P44 million as ofdbeber 31, 2010 from P4 million as of
December 31, 2009 mainly from due to higher piowigor income tax.

Total current liabilities stood at P1,713 millias of December 31, 2010, higher by 69% from
P1,016 million as of December 31, 2009 as explaatmie mainly due to higher interest bearing
loans and trade and other payables.

Non-current interest bearing loans amounted to rmenef year-end 2010 from P135 million as
of December 31, 2009 principally due to reclasatfan of non-current loans to current for
financial statement presentation since Fil-Dragas wot able to comply with the debt to equity
ratio covenant.

Non-current refundable deposits amounted to P18iomias of December 31, 2010, higher by
37% from P11 million as of December 31, 2009 tydirom additional deposits received.

Retirement benefit obligation amounted to P3 millms of December 31, 2010 , up by 110%
from P1 million as of December 31, 2009 mainly frbigher present value of obligation.

Deferred tax liabilities -net amounted to P798 lioml as of December 31, 2010 from P825
million as of December 31, 2009 from lower accurteddair value gains as of year-end.

Total non-current liabilities amounted to P817 limil as of December 31, 2010 from P973
million as of December 31, 2009.



27

Capital stock stood at P2,030 million as of Decen#i, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

Additional paid-in capital amounted to P4,641 roilias of December 31, 2010 and December
31, 2009.

Treasury shares amounted to P115 million as of Dbee 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

Revaluation reserves amounted to P43 million lessfaDecember 31, 2010 from P101 million

loss as of December 31, 2009 due to other compsaleimcome for the period consisting of

currency differences on translating financial stadets of foreign operations, fair value gains on
available for sale financial assets and reclasdifio adjustments for losses recognized in profit
or loss.

Retained earnings amounted to P1,183 million aBetember 31, 2010 from P954 million as of
December 31, 2009 as a result of net income dihiageriod.

Total equity attributable to Equity holders of Rgramounted to P7,697 million as of December
31, 2010 from P7,409 million as of December 31,200e to higher retained earnings.

Minority interest amounted to P414 million as ofdember 31, 2010 from P417 million in
December 31, 2009 primarily from share of minoiityet income.

2009

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to P 1,263méls of December 31, 2009, up by 13%
from P1,118 million as of December 31, 2008. Casak mainly provided by operating activities
primarily from decrease in merchandise inventodesl supplies and by financing activities
mainly from proceeds on loans.

Trade and other receivables reached P501 maéigoof December 31, 2009 against P313 million
as of December 31, 2008, increasing by 60% mamoiynfincrease in trade receivables on digital
products. Trade customers are generally establistmel stable companies with reasonable
assurance of collectibility of their accounts. MNteless, trade accounts are periodically
reviewed to assess the possible losses from ndeetioh and allowance is provided for possible
losses on accounts which are considered doubtftoltgction.

Available-for-sale financial assets amounted to3P3fillion as of December 31, 2009 from P63
million as of December 31, 2008, or higher by 381%he increase was principally due to
additions and reclassifications of certain heldvaturity investments to available-for-sale
financial assets in 2009.

Merchandise inventories and supplies - net amoutwtdeB3 million as of December 31, 2009,
down by 62% compared with P219 million as of Debem31, 2008 mainly from lower
merchandise and finished goods.

Real estate inventories amounted to P1,046 miliemmf December 31, 2009, or an increase of
1% from P1,036 million as of December 31, 2008. er€éhwas no material variance for this
account.

Advances to related parties amounted to P504 milis of December 31, 2009 from P192
million as of December 31, 2008. The increase6@® was mainly due to additional advances.
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Other current assets amounted to P299 million aPetember 31, 2009, lower by 21%
compared with P376 million as of December 31, 20f8cipally from decrease in advances to
suppliers and contractors.

Total current assets amounted to P4,003 millioofda3ecember 31, 2009 from P3,319 million as
of December 31, 2008 as discussed above.

Non-current trade and other receivable amounteB@&o9 million as of December 31, 2009,
increasing by 2% from P666 million as of Decembgr 2008. There was no material variance
for this account.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assetodtat P8 million as of December 31, 2009
against P7 million as of December 31, 2008 or are@@se of 7% mainly from higher club shares.

There was no non-current held-to-maturity investt®ies of end of 2009 against P161 million
as of end of 2008 principally due to disposal official assets and reclassification to available
for-sale financial assets.

Property, plant and equipment amounted to P1,3%ibmas of December 31, 2009 or lower by
3% from P1,438 million as of December 31, 2008. efehwas no material variance for this
account.

Investment property amounted to P3,617 million a®ecember 31, 2009 from P3,631 as of
December 31, 2008. There was no material variforahis account.

Retirement benefit assets amounted to P45 millsoafddecember 31, 2009 from P36 million as
of December 31, 2008. The increase was primdtig/to contributions for the year.

Deferred tax assets - net amounted to P27 millsoofdecember 31, 2009 from P26 million and
December 31, 2008. There was no material variforahis account.

Other non-current assets amounted to P24 millioof &ecember 31, 2009, down by 11% from
P28 million December 31, 2008 mainly from loweegsid expenses and refundable deposits.

Total non-current assets amounted to P5,801 millisnof December 31, 2009 from P5,997
million as of December 31, 2008 as discussed above.

Non-current assets held for sale amounted to Plilbmas of December 31, 2009 vs. none in
2008 mainly as a result of reclassification of aertproperty, plant and equipment of Solid
Laguna Corpoation.

Total assets reached P9,817 million as of Dece®hbe2009 from P9,317 million as of the
December 31, 2008 as discussed above.

Interest-bearing loans amounted to P419 milliorofaBecember 31, 2009, down by 9% from
P458 million as of December 31, 2008 mainly dupagments during the period.

Trade and other payables amounted to P322 millormfaDecember 31, 2009 against P352
million as of December 31, 2008, lower by 9% priityadue to decrease in refundable deposits
and other payable offset by higher accrued expenses
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Advances from related parties amounted to P20liomiths of December 31, 2009 from P111
million as of December 31, 2008. The increaseduesto advances availed during the period.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeasts amounted to P68 million as of December
31, 2009 and December 31, 2008. There was no nmawsior this account.

Income tax payable amounted to P4 million as ofdbamer 31, 2009 from P6 million as of
December 31, 2008 mainly from payments made.

Total current liabilities stood at P1,016 millios af December 31, 2009, higher by 2% from
P998 million as of December 31, 2008 as explaira/@ mainly due to higher advances from
related parties.

Non-current interest-bearing loans amounted to RadBton as of December 31, 2009 vs. none
in 2008 mainly due to availment of loan.

Non-current refundable deposits amounted to P1liomias of December 31, 2009 from P9
million as of December 31, 2008. The increass mainly due to additional deposits during the
year.

Retirement benefit obligation amounted to P1 milless of December 31, 2009 from P7 million
as of December 31, 2008 mainly due to payments made

Deferred tax liabilities -net amounted to P825 lionl as of December 31, 2009 from P812
million as of December 31, 2008. The increase prascipally in relation to additional fair
value gains.

Total non-current liabilities amounted to P973 iwoill as of December 31, 2009 from P829
million as of December 31, 2008.

Capital stock stood at P2,030 million as of Decen8i, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

Additional paid-in capital amounted to P4,641 roitlias of December 31, 2009 and December
31, 2008.

Treasury shares amounted to P115 million as of Dbee 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

Revaluation reserves amounted to P101 million ésssf December 31, 2009 from P213 million
loss as of December 31, 2008 principally due to ¥alue gains on available for sale financial
assets and reclassification adjustments for oth&sels, gain on reclassification adjustments of
financial assets offset by currency differencesti@mslating financial statements of foreign
operations

Retained earnings amounted to P954 million as eteinber 31, 2009 from P751 million as of
December 31, 2008 as a result of net income dihiageriod.

Total equity attributable to Equity holders of Ragramounted to P7,409 million as of December
31, 2009 from P7,095 million as of December 31,8200e to higher retained earnings and lower
revaluation reserves.
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Non-controlling interest amounted to P417 millianat December 31, 2009 from P394 million
as of December 31, 2008, or an increase of 6%e ifltrease was due to minorityshare in net
income during the year.

Total equity amounted to P7,827 million as of Dmeber 31, 2009 from P7,489 million as of
December 31, 2008.

2008

The Company reported cash and cash equivalentslgf B8 million as of December 31, 2008,
down by 7% from P1,206 million as of December 3102 Cash was mainly used for operating
activities primarily for increase in real estatedntories.

Held-to-maturity investments amounted to none aBaxdfember 31, 2008 against P53 million as
of end of last year mainly due to maturity of theseestments.

Trade and other receivables reached P313 milkoof ®ecember 31, 2008 against P428 million

as of December 31, 2007, decreasing by 27% mairdyn fdecrease in trade and other

receivables. Trade customers are generally estedoliand stable companies with reasonable
assurance of collectibility of their accounts. MNtheless, trade accounts are periodically
reviewed to assess the possible losses from ndeetioh and allowance is provided for possible

losses on accounts which are considered doubtitbligction.

Advances to related parties amounted to P192amilis of December 31, 2008 from P130
million as of December 31, 2007 mainly from additil advances.

Available-for-sale financial assets amounted to Rfiilion as of December 31, 2008, down by
84% from P388 million as of December 31, 2007 nyathle to reclassification of certain bonds
to held to maturity investments.

Merchandise inventories and supplies - net amouttd®219 million was higher by 25% as of
December 31, 2008 compared with P175 million aPetember 31, 2007 principally due to
higher merchandise and finished goods.

Real estate inventories amounted to P1,036 milisrof December 31, 2008, up by 12% from
P925 million as of December 31, 2007, primarilynfradditional cost on property development.

Other current assets amounted to P376 million d3emfember 31, 2008, increasing by 113%
compared with P176 million as of December 31, 2@fiicipally from creditable withholding
taxes.

Total current assets amounted to P3,319millionfa3ecember 31, 2008 from P3,484 million as
of December 31, 2007 as discussed above.

Non-current trade and other receivable amountd&b&6 million as of December 31, 2008, up by
38% from P482 million as of December 31, 2007 nyafirdm higher cash surrender value of life
insurance policy.

Non-current available-for-sale financial asset®dtat P7 million as of December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007. There was no material changaifbaccount.
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Non-current held-to-maturity investments amounted161 million as of December 31, 2008
versus none as of end of last year. The accoumesented investments in foreign currency
denominated bonds which was reclassified as heattatority in 2008.

Property, plant and equipment amounted to P1,48®mas of December 31, 2008 or lower by
1% from P1,455 million as of December 31, 2007.er€hwas no material variance for this
account.

Investment property amounted to P3,631 millionfadecember 31, 2008 against P3,493 million
as of December 31, 2007 or higher by 4% principdllg to fair value gains from appraisal of
investment property.

Retirement benefit assets amounted to P36 millonfaDecember 31, 2008 and P42 million as
of December 31, 2007 or an decrease of 13% fropheimentation of limit on retirement assets.

Deferred tax assets - net amounted to P26 millmafddecember 31, 2008 from P13 million as
of December 31, 2007. The increase was mainlytaltex assets from temporary differences.

Other non-current assets amounted to P28 millioof &ecember 31, 2008, or down by 8% from
P30 million as of December 31, 2007 mainly froméowrepaid expenses.

Total non-current assets amounted to P5,997 millisnof December 31, 2008 from P5,524
million as of December 31, 2007 as discussed above.

Total assets reached P9,317 million as of Dece®hbe2008 from P9,009 million as of the
December 31, 2007 as discussed above.

Interest-bearing loans amounted to P458 milliomfaBecember 31, 2008, higher by 12% from
P409 million as of December 31, 2007 mainly fromghleir US dollar conversion rate as of end of
the period.

Trade and other payables amounted to P352 millorofaDecember 31, 2008 against P370
million as of December 31, 2007, down by 5% prityadiue to lower trade payables and accrued
expenses offset by higher refundable deposits.

Advances from related parties amounted to P11lomiths of December 31, 2008 from P179
million as of December 31, 2007 mainly from paynsesftadvances.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeasts amounted to P68 million as of December
31, 2008 compared with P36 million as of Decemldgr2®07, or higher by 85% primarily due to
recognition of additional project development costs

Income tax payable amounted to P6 million as ofdbamer 31, 2008 from P7 million as of
December 31, 2007 mainly from lower tax expense.

Total current liabilities stood at P998 million asDecember 31, 2008 from P1,004 million as of
December 31, 2007 as explained above.

Non-current refundable deposits amounted to P9iamilas of December 31, 2008 from P8
million as of December 31, 2007, up by 15% fraiditional deposits received.
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Retirement benefit obligation amounted to P7 millass of December 31, 2008 from P3 million
as of December 31, 2007 from higher present valypéan obligation.

Deferred tax liabilities -net amounted to P812 imill as of December 31, 2008 from P867
million as of December 31, 2007 or lower by 6%. Teerease was principally in relation to
lower fair value gains.

Total non-current liabilities amounted to P829 iwmill as of December 31, 2008 from P879
million as of December 31, 2007.

Capital stock stood at P2,030 million as of Decen#i, 2008 and December 31, 2007.

Additional paid-in capital amounted to P4,641 roilias of December 31, 2008 and December
31, 2007.

Treasury shares amounted to P115 million as of Dbee 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007.

Revaluation reserves amounted to P213 million &ssef December 31, 2008 from P210 million
loss as of December 31, 2007. There was no miatariance for this account.

Retained earnings amounted to P751 million as afebdwer 31, 2008 from P524 million as of
December 31, 2007 as a result of net income foyelae.

Total equity attributable to Equity holders of Rgramounted to P7,095 million as of December
31, 2008 from P6,870 million as of December 31,7200e to higher retained earnings.

Minority interest amounted to P394 million as ofdember 31, 2008 from P254 million as of
December 31, 2007, or an increase of 55% pringifatim additional issuance of shares of a
subsidiary.

Total equity amounted to P7,489 million as of Dmeber 31, 2008 from P7,125 million as of
December 31, 2007.

Past and future financial condition and results obperations, with particular emphasis on
the prospects for the future.

For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 ar&] 286 Company has consistently
maintained a strong financial condition as showitsithalance sheets for those periods so that it
was always poised to take advantage of investnmgdrtunities that would contribute to its
overall business strategy. It increased its taaéts to P10.64 billion in 2010 from P9.82 hillio
in 2009 and P9.32 billion in 2008. It increasedetjuity to P8.11 billion in 2010, P7.83 billion in
2009 and P7.49 billion in 2008. It has maintainddw debt to equity ratio of 0.29:1 in 2010,
0.23:1in 2009 and 2008 and even a lower gggémncentage (computed as net financial debt
divided by total equity) of 12% in 2010, 7% in0®and 6% in 2008) resulting frominimal
financial borrowings thereby reducing its credikr{the risk of default in payment of loans) to
minimal level. Additionally, the company kept sifitant amounts of cash and cash equivalents
and short-term cash investments as part of itentiassets to maintain its liquidity such that its
current ratio had always exceeded the conservatleeof thumb of 2 : 1 by achieving a current
ratio of 2.81:1 in 2010, 3.94 : 1 in 2009 (frod33: 1 in 2008).
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The Company will continue to maintain its strongafiicial condition in the future. Although its
low debt load provides the company with substaiidot capacity to borrow funds to finance
future projects/investments, management has setita bn financial borrowings to a maximum
gearing of 50% of equity.

The results of operations of the Group for the ywated December 31, 2010 was a net income
of P226.70 million from P226.28 Million in 2009&iP268.71 Million in 2008. Despite higher
revenues in 2010, net income remained flat mainlg do higher tax expense in 2010.
(Meanwhile, net income in 2009 was lower becausebmpany reported higher fair value gains
in 2009.) Improvement in profitability was posteg the broadband segment in 2010 driven by
subscriber growth. (In 2009, profitability waswdn by trading and broadband segments).

The Group expects its consolidated operation®itimue to be profitable in the future as robust
growth is forecasted in its trading business segrasmew products and models are introduced
and as brand equity continues to grow. This stratdigection is consistent with the company’s
conscious effort to continue leveraging on itsdrisal core competence in consumer electronics
and similar products. The promising results shdyrthis business segment is a confirmation
that the company has retained its long-establithesiness strengths in sourcing, production,
marketing, and distribution. Moreover, its realagstbusiness segment will continue to be a
significant value driver in the future and, witbnstant revenue streams, provide a significant
hedge against possible downturns in the other basisegments. The construction of Tower 2 of
the condominium project will start in 2011. Prdpedevelopment project studies of significant
properties in the Philippines are being undertag@rihat these properties would eventually be
converted into higher-value assets to benefit trapany’s shareholders. Also, the revenue from
Broadband business segment is expected to groveast by 10% annually from Internet
subscriptions and data services, and from tran$pest

i.
Known Trends or Demands, Commitments, Events oedainties that will impact Liquidity.

The Company is not aware of any known trends, desjacommitments, events or uncertainties
that will materially impact on its liquidity.

ii. Events that will trigger Direct or Contingent Fircéad Obligation that is material to the
Company, including any default or accelerationrobhligation.

As discussed in Notes of the financial statementieu Contingencies, certain subsidiaries of the
Company are involved in litigation or proceedinti® outcome of which could individually or
taken as a whole, not adversely affect the findneaults, operations or prospects of the
Company. Except of these contingencies, the Comjmmpt aware of other events that will
materially trigger direct or contingent financidiligation.

iii. Material Off-Balance Sheet Transactions, Awgaments, Obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationshipsttid Company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the rempperiod.

The Company has no material off-balance sheetactiosis, arrangements, obligations and other
relationships with unconsolidated entities or othersons created during the period that is not
included in the financial statements.
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iii. Material Commitments for Capital Expenditures, glemeral purpose of the Commitment
and Expected Sources of Funds

The Company estimates capital expenditures foydiae 2011 to amount to P400 million for the
construction of Tower 2 of our condominium projeeial estate development and upgrade of the
broadband infrastructure. The purchase and/orteat®n of these capital expenditures will be
financed through the funds of the Company.

V. Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties that willpact Sales/Revenues/Income from
Continuing Operations

The Company received a formal notice of the exjinabf the Joint Venture Agreement on May
8, 2005. The Company and Sony Corporation haveeggto pursue negotiation toward an
equitable settlement of all matters relating tolWé and its expiration.

On November 23, 2009, the Company’'s managemerntodext in public its plan of phasing out
its unprofitable plastic injection manufacturingsiness which includes Kita Corporation (Kita)
and Solid Laguna Corporation (SLC). SLC ceasesl dperations of the plastic injection
manufacturing business at the end of 2009. Alsita Keased the operations of its injected
plastics manufacturing business in December 20Kjta and SLC are expected to reduce about
1% and 5% of revenues, respectively.

Vi. Significant elements of Income or Loss thiat mot arise from Continuing Operations

In 2009, the Company started phasing out its glasfiection manufacturing business. SLC
ceased the operations of the plastic injection rfaenturing business at the end of 2009. Also,
Kita ceased the operations of its injected plastiemufacturing business in December 2010. As
a result, the Company reported loss from discoatinaperations of P17 million, P2.7 million
and P31 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respedtivel

Vii. Causes for any Material Changes from PerioBedod

In 2008, the Company’s board of directors approtleel change in accounting policy for

investment property from the cost model to the Yailue model in order to present reliable and
more relevant information on the carrying amourftsngestment property. As a result, the
carrying values of investment property increasedPiy8 billion as of January 1, 2008. The
retained earnings balance as of January 1, 2088 irtreased by P888 million. The Company
also reported fair value gains on investment pityp&fr61 million in 2008.

Balance Sheet Items (2010 vs. 2009)
The discussion of material changes of the balartoeets accounts was included in the
management discussion and analysis.
Balance Sheet Items (2009 vs. 2008)

(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhstagéements)

Cash and cash equivalents — 13% increase to PIn#i®n from P1,118 million
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Mainly provided by operating activities primarilypoi decrease in merchandise inventories and
supplies and by financing activities mainly fromopeeds on loans. This account stood at 13%
and 12% as a percentage of total assets in 20020408 respectively.

Trade and other receivables — 60% increase to Rlion from P313 million
Mainly from increase in trade receivables on digit@ducts. This account stood at 5% and 3%
as a percentage of total assets in 2009 and 2€§8ectively.

Available-for-sale financial assets — 381% increé&s P305 million from P63 million

The increase was principally due to additions aewlassifications of certain held-to-maturity
investments to available-for-sale financial asg&et®009. This account stood at 3% and 1% as a
percentage of total assets in 2009 and 2008, rixgpkyc

Held-to-maturity investments — no balances in 2808 2008

Merchandise inventories and supplies — 62% decrea&83 million from P219 million
Mainly from lower merchandise and finished goodsis account represented 1% and 2% as a
percentage of total assets in 2009 and 2008, rixgpkyc

Real estate inventories — 1% increase to P1,04komifrom P1,036 million
There was no material variance for this accounts Blecount stood at 11% as a percentage of
total assets for both years.

Advances to related parties- 162% increase in 200@504 million from P192 million
Mainly from additional advances. This account dt@d 5% and 2% as a percentage of total
assets in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Other current assets — 21% decrease in 2009 to P@fi@n from P376 million
Principally from decrease in advances to supph&id contractors. This account stood at 3% and
4% as a percentage of total assets in 2009 and B&}&:ctively.

Non-current trade and other receivables — amourniteB679 million as of December 31, 2009,
increasing by 2% from P666 million as of DecembkrZ)08.

There was no material variance for this accounis @bcount remained at 7% as a percentage of
total assets for both years.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assets % increase in 2009 to P8 million from P7
million

Mainly from higher club shares. This account stab®.08% as a percentage of total assets for
2009 and 2008.

Non-current held-to-maturity investments — 100%réase to none from P161 million

There was no non-current held-to-maturity investt®ie@s of end of 2009 against P161 million
as of end of 2008 principally due to disposal official assets and reclassification to available-
for-sale financial assets. This account stood abPtal assets in 2008.

Property, plant and equipment — 3% decrease to %18illion from P1,438 million
There was no material variance for the account Tapresented 14% and 15% as a percentage of
total assets in 2009 and 2008.

Investment property — P3,617 million from P3,63lion



36

There was no material variance for this accounis Htcount stood at 37% and 39% as a
percentage of total assets in 2009 and 2008, rixgpkyc

Retirement benefit assets -25% increase to P4tomiiiom P36 million
Increase was primarily due to contributions for ylear. This represented 0.46% and 0.39% of
total assets for both years.

Deferred tax assets —net - 2% increase to P27amifrom P26 million
There is no material variance for this accountis@tcount stood at 0.27% and 0.28% of total
assets in 2009 and 2008 respectively.

Other non-current assets — 11% decrease to P24omiltom P28 million
Mainly from lower prepaid expenses and refundatdpogits. This represented 0.25% and
0.30% as percentage to total assets in 2009 arir2epectively.

Non-current assets held for sale amounted to Plibmas of December 31, 2009 vs. none in
2008 mainly as a result of reclassification of airtproperty, plant and equipment of Solid
Laguna Corporation.

Interest-bearing loans — 9% decrease to P419 milfrom P458 million
Mainly due to payments during the period. This actstood at 4% and 5% as a percentage of
total liabilities and equity in 2009 and 2008, resjvely.

Trade and other payable — 9% decrease to P322anifliom P352 million

Due to decrease in refundable deposits and othyabpmoffset by higher accrued expenses. This
account stood at 3% and 4% as a percentage ofli@dities and equity in 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

Advances from related parties — 80% increase tolRadlion from P111 million
The increase was due to advances availed duringettied. This account stood at 2% and 1% as
a percentage of total liabilities and equity in 2@hd 2008, respectively.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeasts — no change
There was no movement during the period. This attcapresented 1% as a percentage of total
liabilities and equity for both years.

Income tax payable —amounted to P4 million as ofdbgber 31, 2009 from P6 million as of
December 31, 2008

Mainly from payments made. This account was pegged.05% and 0.07% of the total
liabilities and equity in 2009 and 2008, respedyive

Non-current interest-bearing loans — 100% increts®135 million vs. none in 2008
The increase was mainly due to availment of loahis Taccounted for the 1% of the total
liabilities and equity in 2009.

Non-current refundable deposits — 14% increaseld million from P9 million
The increase was mainly due to additional depakiting the year. This represented 0.11% and
0.10% of the total liabilities and equity in 2008da2008, respectively.

Retirement benefit obligation — 80% decrease taoriilllon from P7 million
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Mainly due to payments made. This account stoddCGit% and 0.08% of the total liabilities and
equity in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Deferred tax liabilities — 2% increase to P825 inifl from P812 million

The increase was principally in relation to additibfair value gains. No material variance for
this account. This account stood at 8% and 9% pereentage of total liabilities and equity in
2009 and 2008, respectively.

Capital stock — no change
This account stood at 21% and 22% of total lidgbsitand equity in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Additional Paid-In-Capital — no change
This account represented 47% and 50% of total lii@si and equity in 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

Treasury Shares — no change
This account represented 1% of total liabilitied aquity in both years

Revaluation reserves — 52% increase to(P101) mififom (P213)million

Principally due to fair value gains on availableg f&ale financial assets and reclassification
adjustments for other losses, gain on reclassificaadjustments of financial assets offset by
currency differences on translating financial steats of foreign operations. This account stood
at 1% and 2% total liabilities and equity in 200@12008, respectively.

Retained earnings — 27% increase to P954 milliamfiP751 million

As a result of net income during the period. Thiscaint stood at 10% and 8% of total liabilities
and equity in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Balance Sheet Items (2008 vs. 2007)

(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhstagéements)

Cash and cash equivalents — 7% decrease to P1jllib finom P1,206 million

Mainly used for operating activities primarily forcrease in real estate inventories. This account
stood at 12% and 13% as a percentage of totakagss2®08 and 2007, respectively.

Trade and other receivables — 27% decrease to P@llidn from P428 million

Mainly from advances to suppliers for the purchabénventories decrease in trade and other
receivables. This account stood at 3% and 5% ay@eptage of total assets in 2008 and 2007,
respectively..

Advances to related parties — 48% increase to RBion from P130 million
Mainly from additional advances. This account esgnted 2% and 1% as a percentage of total
assets in 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Available-for-sale financial assets — 84% decre@sB63 million from P388 million
Mainly due to reclassification of certain bondsheld to maturity investments. This account
represented 1% and 4% as a percentage of totas as@908 and 2007, respectively.
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Merchandise inventories and supplies - net — 2&¥rease to P219 million from P175 million
Principally due to higher merchandise and finishgedds. This account stood at 2% for both
years.

Real estate inventories — 12% increase to P1,0Bi@miirom P925 million
Primarily from additional cost on property develagmh This represented 11% and 10% as a
percentage of total assets in 2008 and 2007, rixgpkyc

Other current assets — 113% increase to P376 milliom P176 million
Principally from creditable withholding taxes. $hiccount stood at 4% and 2% of total assets in
2008 and 2007, respectively.

Non-current trade and other receivable — 38% ince#o P666 million from P482 million
Mainly from higher cash surrender value of lifsurance policy. This account represented 7%
and 5% in 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assets -material change
This account stood at 0.08 % for both years.

Non-current held-to-maturity investments — 100%ease to P161 million from none
Due to the reclassification to held to maturitytiod investments in foreign currency denominated
bonds in 2008. This account represented 2% of astets in 2008.

Property, plant and equipment — 1% decrease to 38Lidillion from P1,455 million
There was no material variance for this accounlis Rccount stood at 15% and 16% of total
assets in 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Investment property — 4% increase to P3,631 miliiom P3,493 million
Principally due to fair value gains from appraisfinvestment property. This account stood at
39% as a percentage of total assets for both years.

Retirement benefit assets — 13% decrease to P#E6mfilom P42 million
Decrease was mainly from implementation of limit retirement assets. This account stood at
0.39% and 0.47%% of total assets in 2008 and 2@8pgctively.

Deferred tax assets — 103% increase to P26 millan P13 million
The increase was mainly due to tax assets fromaeary differences.

Other non-current assets — 8% decrease to P2®@mritibm P30 million

Primarily from investments made in relation to #uguisition of the China property project. This
account represented 0.30% and 0.34% as a percepfat®al assets in 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

Interest-bearing loans — 12% increase to P458aniftiom P409 million
Mainly from higher US dollar conversion rate asofl of the period. This account remained at
5% for both years.

Trade and other payables — 5% decrease to P35miitom P370 million
Primarily due to lower trade payables and accrixpeeses offset by higher refundable deposits.
This account stood at 4% of total liabilities aboc&holders’ equity for both years.
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Advances from related parties — 38% decrease td Pdillion from P179 million
Mainly from payments of advances. This accountasgnted 1% and 2% as a percentage of total
liabilities and stockholders’ equity in 2008 andZ0respectively.

Estimated liability for land and land developmensts — 85% increase to P68 million from P36
million
Primarily due to recognition of additional projeetvelopment costs.

Income tax payable — 12% decrease to P6 milliomfR7 million
Mainly from lower tax expense.

Refundable deposits — 15% increase to P9 milliomfP8 million
Mainly from additional deposits received.

Retirement benefit obligation — 127% increase tariifion from P3 million
Principally from higher present value of plan ohbtign.

Deferred tax liabilities — 6% decrease to P812 imillfrom P867 million
Principally in relation to lower fair value gains.

Capital stock — no change
Capital stock stood at 22% and 23% as a perceofagéeal liabilities and stockholders’ equity in
2008 and 2007, respectively.

Additional paid-in capital — no change
Additional-paid-in capital stood at 50% and 52%tathl liabilities and stockholders’ equity in
2008 and 2007, respectively.

Treasury shares — no change
Treasury shares remained at 1% of total liabiliied equity in 2008 and 2007.

Revaluation reserves — 1% decrease to (P213) millan (P210) million
There was no material variance for this accourttis femained at 2% for both years.

Retained earnings— 43% increase to P751 milliom fR524 million
As a result of net income for the year. This aot@tood at 8% and 6% as a percentage of total
liabilities and stockholders’ equity in 2008 andZ0respectively.

Minority interest — 55% increase to P394 millioorfr P254 million
Principally from additional issuance of shares afulsidiary. This account represented 4% and
3% as a percentage of total liabilities and stottkrs’ equity in 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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Income Statement Items (2010 vs. 2009)
(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhstagéements)

The discussion of material changes of the incomestent accounts was included in the
management discussion and analysis.

Income Statement Items (2009 vs. 2008)
(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhstaéements)

Service revenue — 7% increase to P630 million fR589 million
Mainly due to improved broadband revenues. Asraqgmdage of total revenues, this account
represents 27% and 37% in 2009 and 2008, resplctive

Sale of goods — 49% increase to P1,124 million fR3B4 million
Mainly due to higher volume of sales of the digjtabducts. As a percentage of total revenues,
this account represents 48% and 47% in 2009 ang, 288pectively.

Rental income — 17% decrease to P112 million frd@@million
Primarily due to reduction in rates. This accodatlined to 5% in 2009 from 8% of total
revenues in 2008.

Sale of real estate — 1078% increase to P360 mifliom P30 million
The material change was principally due to saleéndfistrial lots. As a percentage of total
revenues, this account increased to 16% in 2000 &% in 2008.

Interest income — 2% decrease to P95 million frdd Rillion
Mainly due to lower interest from business loaAs. a percentage of total revenues, this account
declined to 4% in 2009 from 6% in 2008.

Cost of sales, services and rentals amounted &22illion in 2009, or an increase of 46%
from P1,111 million in 2008 as discussed below:

Cost of services —-5% increase to P458 million flR35 million
Principally in relation to the increase in serviewenues. This account decreased to 20% from
27% in 2009 and 2008, respectively, as a percemtbiggal revenues.

Cost of sales - 38% increase to P849 milliomfi®616 million
Mainly in relation to higher sales. As a perceptafjtotal sales, this account represented 37% in
2009 from 38% in 2008.

Cost of rentals — 7% decrease to P33 million fradé nillion
Primarily from lower taxes and licenses and uéiti This account decreased to 1% in 2009 from
2% in 2008 as a percentage of total revenues.

Cost of real estate sold — 1159% increase to P2@iibmfrom P22 million
The increase was mainly in relation to higher sélland. This account increased to 12% in 2009
from 1% in 2008 as a percentage of total revenues.
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General and administrative expenses — 3% decreaB50 million from P258 million
No material change for this account. As a pergentH total revenues, this account decreased to
11% in 2009 from 16% in 2008.

Selling and distribution costs — 38% increase t@ R8llion from P70 million
Mainly from higher advertising and warranty expensghis account remained at 4% of total
revenues for both years.

Other operating income —net - 77% decrease to Pllibmfrom P98 million
Principally due to lower fair value gains on invaent property. This account decreased to 1%
in 2009 from 6% in 2008 as a percentage of totamaes.

Finance income — 52% decrease to P34 million fr@a illion
Primarily due to decrease in foreign currency gairss account decreased to 1% in 2009 from
5% in 2008 as a percentage of total revenues.

Finance costs — 196% increase to P118 million fix#® million
Mainly due to loss on sale of investments offsetldyer interest expenses. This account
increased to 5% in 2009 from 2% in 2008 as a péagerof total revenues.

Tax expense amounted to P63 million in 2009 fromnflion in 2008 due to higher taxable
income of certain subsidiaries.

Income Statement Items (2008 vs. 2007)
(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhstagéements)

Service revenue — 6% decrease to P589 million ff&25 million

Mainly due to revenue earned for services rendimethe ASEAN Summit in 2007, partly offset
by higher broadband revenues for the current periégd a percentage of total revenues, this
account decreased to 37% from 44% in 2008 and 288gectively.

Sale of goods — 59% increase to P754 million frof@4Pmillion
Mainly due to mobile phone sales. As a percentdgetal revenues, this account increased to
47% from 33% in 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Rental income — 15% increase to P136 million frabd Pmillion
Primarily from higher occupancy. This account rerad at 8% of total revenues for both years.

Sale of land — 70% decrease to P30 million from2ifillion
The decline was principally because of zero sakesndustrial lots for the period. As a
percentage of total revenues, this account dectm@& in 2008 from 7% in 2007.

Interest income — 8% decrease to P97 million frat@%million
Mainly from lower investible funds and lower avesagpllar conversion rate for the year. As a
percentage of total revenues, this account dectmé&o in 2008 from 7% in 2007.

Cost of services —10% decrease to P435 million f#R2¥82 million
Principally in relation to the decline in servicevenues. This account decreased to 27% from
34% in 2008 and 2007, respectively, as a percermtbiggal revenues.
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Cost of sales - 53% increase to P616 milliomfri®403 million
Mainly in relation to higher sales for the periods a percentage of total sales, this account
represented 38% in 2008 from 28% in 2007.

Cost of rentals — 1% increase to P36 million fro@bFnillion
Primarily in relation of higher rental income inGx)

Cost of land sold — 64% decrease to P22 milliomfi®61 million
The decrease was mainly in relation to the dediirgale of land. This account decreased to 1%
in 2008 from 4% in 2007 as a percentage of totamaes.

General and administrative expenses — decreasB@3%8 million from P271 million
As a percentage of total revenues, this accowredsed to 16% in 2008 from 19% in 2007.

Selling and distribution costs — 129% increase 1@ Inillion from P30 million
Mainly from higher advertising charges for the ni®phone and digital devices businesses.

Other operating income — 324% increase to P98 amilfrom P23 million
Principally due to fair value gains on investmerdperty. This account increased to 6% in 2008
from 2% in 2007 as a percentage of total revenues.

Finance income — 120% increase to P72 million frBB8 million
Primarily due to higher foreign currency gains.

Finance costs — 76% decrease to P40 million fror@3rillion
Mainly from lower interest rates in 2008 and als® doreign currency losses incurred last year.
This account decreased to 2% in 2008 from 12 %00V s a percentage of total revenues.

Tax expense amounted to P5 million in 2008 from PR#ifion in 2007 or lower by 91% due to
lower deferred tax expense resulting from decr@asegular income tax rate to 30%.

viii. Seasonal Aspects that had Material Effect on timarf€ial Condition or Results of
Operations

There are no significant seasonality in the Comjsahysiness that materially affects financial
condition or results of operations.
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Item 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements and schedal€mancial Statements and Supplementary
Schedules are filed as part of this Form 17 - A.

(B) Information On Independent Accountant And Other Related Matters
(1) External Audit Fees And Services

(a) Under the caption Audit and Audit-Related Fees atpgregate fees billed for each of the last
two fiscal years for professional services rendénethe external auditor for :

1. The audit of the registrant’s annual financial etants or services that are normally
provided by the external auditor in connection veitlitutory and regulatory filings or
engagements for those fiscal years:

The audit fees of our present external auditoroRghayan and Araullo for the examination of
our annual audited financial statements, includige of our subsidiaries for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009 amounted to abou8 Pdillon and P3.4 million , respectively.
The audit fee of Grant Thornton for the examinatb Fil-Dragon for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009 amounted to 195,000dHKrsl and 24,000 US dollars,
respectively.

2. Other assurance and related services by the ektrdior that are reasonably related to the
performance of the audit or review of the regigtsafinancial statements.

None for 2010 and 2009.

(b) Under the caption “Tax Fees”, the aggregate fdéedkin each of the last two (2) fiscal years
for professional services rendered by the externditor for tax accounting, compliance,
advice, planning and any other form of tax servideegistrant shall describe the nature of
the services comprising the fees disclosed undgcétegory.

The tax fees paid to the Tax Division of Punonginagad Araullo for tax consultation and

advisory services of our Company and those of ohsigliaries for the year ended December 31,

2010 and 2009 amounted to P204 thousand for battsye

(c) Under the caption “All Other Fees”, the aggregatesfbilled in each of the last two (2) fiscal
years for products and services provided by thereat auditor, other than the services
reported under items (a) & (b) above. Registrahtdl describe the nature of the services
comprising the fees disclosed under this category.

There were no other fees paid for the years 208®a09 .

(d) The audit committee’s approval policies and procesldior the above services.

All of the above services were approved by the BadDirectors.



44

tem 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

The Company has no disagreements with the curga@ountant on accounting and financial
disclosure.

On September 30, 2010, the Company reappointed ngbagan and Araullo (P&A) as its
external auditors for the year 2010.

There was no change in our existing accountarthioyears 2010 and 20009.

PART Il - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Isuer
A. Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters and ttarPersons
() Directors, including Independent Directors &xcutive Officers

There are nine (9) seats in the Board. The terwifafe of each member is one (1) year. The
names, ages and citizenship of current directadseancutive officers are as follows:

Positior Name Age Citizenshiy

Chairman Emeritu Elena S. Lin 81 Filipino
Chairman of the Boa Susan L. Ta 57 Filipino
Director and President and Ct

Executive Officer David S. Lim 55 Filipino
Director and Sr. VP and Chi
Operating Officer Jason S. Lim 54 Filipino
Director and Sr. VPand Chief
Financial Officer Vincent S. Lim 52 Filipino
Director Quintin Chui 51 Australiar
Directol Luis-Maria Zabaljaureq! 65 Filipino
Directol Joseph Lir 84 Filipino
Director and VP for Busines Beda T. Manale 50 Filipino
Development and Investor
Relations
VP andTreasure Lita Joaquil 50 Filipino
Corporate Secrete Roberto V. San Jo 68 Filipino
Assistant Corporate Secret Ana Maria Katigba-Lim 42 Filipino
VP andChief Accounting Office Mellina T. Corpu 44 Filipino

Ms. Elena S. Lim is Chairman Emeritus since MayR20@rior to that, she was President/ Chief
Executive Officer from 1996 to May 2001 and is aeltor since 1996. She is also Chairman of
the Board of Laguna International Industrial Pdrg. and Starworld Corporation. She was
formerly the President of Solid Corporation, Sdbéstributors, Inc., AA Export and Import
Corporation, AA Marine Development Corporation, @ubian Autocars Corporation, Solid
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Electronics Corporation, Solid Video CorporationA Alectronics Corporation, Solid Manila
Corporation and Kita Corporation. Ms. Lim is madito Joseph Lim.

Ms. Susan L. Tan is Chairman of the Board since @§1. She was Vice President of the
Company from April 1999 to April 2001 and is a lurer since 1996. She was Chief Operating
Officer of the Company since 1996 up to March 1988e is currently President of Solid Laguna
Corporation and Solid Corporation and is also MamagDirector of Solid Electronics
Corporation and Solid Video Corporation. Ms. Tathe daughter of Joseph and Elena Lim.

Mr. David S. Lim is President and Chief ExecutivHiégr since May 2001. He is also Director

since 1996. He was Vice-President since 1996 uxptd 2001. He is also President and Chief
Executive Officer of Solid Broadband Inc. sincel38% presently Chairman of Destiny Cable
Inc. and also Vice-President of Solid Corporation fore than five years and was formerly
VP/Managing Director of Solid Video Corporation fmore than five years. He is also presently
Chairman of Zen Towers Corporation. Mr. Lim ie #on of Joseph and Elena Lim.

Mr. Jason S. Lim is Sr. Vice President and Chiek@ping Officer since May 2002. He is a
Director since May 1998. He was also EVP and Chigé¢rating Officer of Destiny Cable Inc. up
to September 2000. He is also currently PresideKita Corporation and Solid Manila Finance
Inc. He was formerly VP/ Managing Director of (dPlastics Manufacturing Corporation and
Solid City Industrial and Commercial Corporatiom foore than five years. Mr. Lim is the son of
Joseph and Elena Lim.

Mr. Vincent S. Lim is Sr. Vice President and CHig@fancial Officer in September 2010 and was
Sr. Vice President for Finance and Investmentsesiume 2006 up to September 2010. He was
Sr. VP and Chief Financial Officer from May 2002 t@pJune 2006. He is a director since 1996
and was VP/ Chief Financial Officer from 1996 upMay 2002. He has also been VP Finance,
Treasurer and Corporate Secretary for Solid Cotjardor more than five years and is also VP
Finance and Treasurer for Solid Laguna Corporatom Solid Distributors, Inc., Solid
Electronics Corporation, AA Electronics Corporatiétita Corporation, Solid Video Corporation
and Solid Manila Corporation. Mr. Lim is the sdnJoseph and Elena Lim.

Mr. Quintin Chua is the Independent Director sihtarch 25, 2003. He is the Chairman and
Managing Director of QC Investments Pty. Ltd, Chein and President of Nature's Harvest
Corp. and Director of Hexagon Financing Corp.

Mr. Luis-Maria L. Zabaljauregui is Independent Ritar effective September 23, 2008. He was
Executive Vice President of Leyte Agri Corporatiom 2001 up to 2003. He was vice

President and Resident Manager of Central Azucatera Carlota, Inc. from January 2004 to
June 2008. He is currently Vice-President — Eth&mnoject of Central Azucarera de la Carlota,
Inc. effective July 2008. He has business expeédar more than five (5) years.

Mr. Joseph Lim is the Founding Chairman of Soli@@r of Companies and served as Chairman
of the Board of the Company from 1996 until 2008e is presently the Chairman of Phil-
Nanning Consortium, Inc. (Phil-Nanning), a whollwred subsidiary of the Company; and
Chairman of Guangxi Fil-Dragon Real Estate Develepiritd., a company in Nanning, China,
where Phil-Nanning has a 51% ownership. In thet fias years to present, he has been
Chairman of various manufacturing and trading camgmin Hongkong and China among which
are Solid Co. Ltd., Solid Trading Ltd. and Solidiustrial (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. Mr. Lim is the
incumbent Chairman of the China-Philippines Chandf€€ommerce. Mr. Lim is married to the
Company’s Chairman Emeritus, Ms. Elena S. Lim, enthe father of Chairman Ms. Susan L.
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Tan and Directors Mr. David S. Lim, Mr. Jason SmLand Mr. Vincent S. Lim. Mr. Lim
assumed position as Director in June 2010.

Mr. Beda T. Mafialadgs Director and Vice President for Business Develept and Investor
Relations on September 30, 2010. He is Vice Peasitbr Business Development of MyPhone
mobile phones under MySolid Technologies and Devi€erporation and Solid Broadband
Corporation since 2007. Prior to that, he was \Roesident for Sales and Marketing of Destiny
Cable Inc and Vice President for Broadband Serw¢&olid Broadband Corporation.

Ms. Lita Joaquin is the Treasurer since May 2082e was also director from June 2006 up to
August 2007. She was Comptroller in 1996 to AR€iD2 and Director in May 1997 where she
held office up to May 1998. She also became Géméaaager of Solid Manila Finance Inc. in
October 1999. She is also Assistant Treasur8&obfl Corporation for more than five years and
holds the same position for Solid Distributors, .Jn&olid Electronics Corporation, Kita
Corporation, Solid Video Corporation and Solid MarCorporation. Ms. Joaquin is the niece of
Mr. Joseph Lim.

Mr. Roberto V. San Jose is the Corporate Secrsiapg 1996. He is a member of the Philippine
Bar and a Senior Partner of the Castillo Laman Famtaleon and San Jose Law Offices. He is a
Director of Mabuhay Holdings Corporation, ABC Dewginent Corporation (Channel 5),
Director/ Corporate Secretary of CP Group of Cong®mnCP Equities Corporation, Atlas
Resources Management Group and MAA Consultants, ke is also Corporate Secretary of
Premiere Entertainment Productions, Inc., Alsonagotdated Resources, Inc., United Paragon
Mining Corporation, ISM Communications Corp., Andhhilippine Holdings Corporation and
Philweb Corp. He is also a director, corporateretacy and/or officer of various client
corporations of their law firm.

Atty. Ana Maria Katigbak-Lim ighe Assistant Corporate Secretary. She is a meailtbe
Integrated Bar of the Philippines and a gradua®aahelor of Laws at the University of the
Philippines. She is a Partner at the Castillo Lafian Pantaleon & San Jose Law Offices. She is
also a director and assistant corporate secratd8M Communications Corporation and
Mabuhay Holdings Corporation, both publicly-listeatporations. She also serves as assistant
corporate secretary in other publicly-listed conmpamnd registered membership clubs such as:
AJO.net Holdings, Inc., Boulevard Holdings, Inaemiere Entertainment Productions, Inc.,

Solid Group, Inc., Paxys Inc., The Metropolitan i;linc. and PhilWeb Corporation.

Mellina T. Corpuz is the Chief Accounting Officeffextive June 2006. Prior to that, she was
the Senior Accounting Manager since 2002 and tva#\tcounting Manager since 1996.

(2) Significant Employee

There is no significant employee that is not pathe Company directors and executive officers.
3) Family Relationship

Ms. Elena S. Lim is married to Mr. Joseph Lim. iflehildren, namely, Ms. Susan L. Tan, Mr.
David S. Lim, Mr. Jason S. Lim and Vincent S. Line all directors and executive officers of the

Company. Ms. Lita Joaquin, treasurer of the Compirthe niece of Mr. Joseph Lim.

4) Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
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Ms. Elena S. Lim is included as co-defendant imsediled by a certain bank against AA Export
and Import Corporation for the collection of unseclibusiness loans granted to that company.
In another collection case filed by another bardkiregt AA Export and Import Corporation, Ms.
Elena S. Lim, Mr. Joseph Lim, Ms. Susan L. Tan, Bavid S. Lim, Mr. Jason Lim and Mr.
Vincent S. Lim are impleaded as co-defendants. epixby above, none of the directors and
officers was involved in the past five years upAjrii 2011 in any bankruptcy proceeding.
Neither have they been convicted by final judgmerany criminal proceeding, nor been subject
to any order, judgment or decree of competent digi®n, permanently enjoining, barring,
suspending, or otherwise limiting their involvemeimt any type of business, securities,
commodities or banking activities, nor found iniaetby any court or administrative body to
have violated a securities or commodities law.
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Iltem 10. Executive Compensation
B. Executive Compensation

Executive and Directors Compensation
(2) General

The Company’s executive officers are regular empdsyof the Company and its subsidiaries and
are similarly remunerated with a compensation pgekeomprising of regular salary, bonuses,
thirteenth month pay and leave conversions thatCihimpany extends to its regular employees.
Directors are paid specified amounts per meetimticization.
(2) Summary Compensation Table
The following table summarizes certain informati@ygarding compensation paid or accrued
during the last two fiscal years and paid in theuémg fiscal year to the Company’s Chairman
and each of the Company’s four most highly compieasaxecutive officers.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Annual Compensation

(a) (b) (©) (d) (e)
Other Annua
Compensation
Name and Principal Year Salary Bonus B Income (B
Position
Chairman and four mo 2011 (Est. 15,500,00C 900,00( 1,100,00(
highly compensated 2010 13,880,000 797,500 938,314
executive officers 2009 13,100,000 725,000 1,035,804
Susan L. Ta Chairman of the Boa
David S. Lin Director, President and Chief Executive Off
Jason S. Lir Director, Senior VP and Chief Operating Offi
Vincent S.Lim Director, Senir VP and Chief Financial Offic
Lita L. Joaquil VP and Treasur
All officers and director: 2011 (Est.’ 1,900,001 180,00( 1,85(,00C
as a group unnamed 2010 1,720,000 145,583 1,669,444
2009 2,783,196 233,183 2,430,202

3) Compensation of Directors

Please see executive and directors’ compensation.
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(4) Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control
Arrangements.

Not applicable. There are no employment contriaeta/een the registrant and executive officers/
directors nor any compensatory plan or arrangenirgeityding payments to be received from the
registrant, if such plan or arrangement resultsviirresult from resignation, retirement or any

other termination of such executive officer or diog’'s employment with the registrant and its

subsidiaries or from change-in-control of the rgi®t or a change in the executive officer or
directors’ responsibilities following a change-iorntrol.

(5) Warrants and Options Outstanding: Repricing

Not applicable. The Company has no outstandingamts and options.

Iltem 11. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficialDwners and Management

C. Security Ownership of Certain Record and Benefiial Owners and Management

(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and BexefiOwners

Owners of more than 5% of the Company’s voting gtea as of December 31, 2010 were as
follows.

(3)Name of (4)Citi (5)No. of (6) %
Beneficial Owner zenshi Shares Held to
(1) Title  (2) Name and address of and Relationship p record (r)or Total
of Class record owner and with Record beneficial (b) Outsta
relationship with issuer Owner nding
Commor AA Commercial, Inc’ Vincent S. Lin  Filipino 583,377,817 (r) 32.0:
1172 Edsa, Balintawak Treasurer of AA !
Quezon City Commercial Inc.
Affiliate
Commor AV Value Holdings David S. Lin Filipino 499,999,999 (rj  27.4¢
Corporation President of AV
2285 Pasong Tamo Ext,  Value Holding
Makati Corp.
Affiliate
Commor PCD Nominee Various Filipino 350,886,277 (1]~ 19.2¢
Corporation (FY stockholders
G/F MSE Bldg., 6767 None
Ayala Ave., Makati
Stockholder
Commor Lim, David £ Not applicabl:  Filipino 179,488,591 (r 9.8t
c/o Solid House, 2285 and b)

Pasong Tamo Ext, Makati
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Note 1: AA Commercial Inc. is owned by the Lim Familir. Vincent S. Lim is authorized
to vote the shares of stock registered in the nafided Commercial Inc. Mr. Vincent S. Lim is
the Treasurer of AA Commercial Inc.

2. AV Value Holdings Corporation is owned by thienLFamily. Mr. David S. Lim is
authorized to vote the shares of stock registerédeé name of AV Value Holdings Corporation.
Mr. David S. Lim is the President of AV Value Haidis Corporation.

3: There is no participant lodged und€D Nominee Corporation that owns more than
5% of the voting securities of the Company.

(2) Security Ownership of Management

The following directors and officers own shareshiea Company as of December 31, 2010.

(1) Title of (2) Name of Beneficie (3) Amount and Natur (4) B) % to
Class Owner of Beneficial Citizenship Total
Ownership Outstanding
Commor Lim, Elena & 1,894 (direc Filipino -
Commor Tan, Susan | 78,645 (direc Filipino -
Commor Lim, David S 179,488,591 (direc Filipino 9.8t
499,999,999 (indirecd 27.45
Commor Lim, Vincent S 71,887,187 (direc Filipino 3.9t
583,377,817 (indirect) 32.03
Commor Lim, Jason ¢ 65,176,160 (direc Filipino 3.5¢
Commor Chua, Quintii 5,000 (direct  Australiar -
3,500,000 (indirect) 0.19
Commor Zabaljauregui, Lu-Maria 5,C00 (direct Filipino -
Commor Lim, Josep 2 (direct Filipino -
Commor Beda T. Manale 1,001 (direct Filipino -
Commor San Jose, Roberto 242,000 (direc Filipino 0.01
Commor Katigbak, Ana Mari - Filipino -
Commor Joaquin, Liti 10,000 (direc Filipino -
Commor Uy, James - Filipino -
Commor Corpuz, Mellina T - Filipino -

The aggregate amount of ownership of all directansl officers as a group unnamed is
1,403,773,296 or 77.07% of the total issued anstantiing shares.

Note 1. AA Commercial Inc. is owned by the Lim F&miMr. Vincent S. Lim is authorized to
vote the shares of stock registered in the namedo€ommercial Inc. Mr. Vincent S. Lim is the
Treasurer of AA Commercial Inc.

2. AV Value Holdings Corporation is owned by thienLFamily. Mr. David S. Lim is
authorized to vote the shares of stock registerédeé name of AV Value Holdings Corporation.
Mr. David S. Lim is the President of AV Value Haidis Corporation.



51

(3)  Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

The Company is not aware of any stock held undestiag trust agreement. However,
AA Commercial Inc. and AV Value Holdings Corporati@are companies owned by the Lim
Family. Mr. Vincent S. Lim is authorized to voteetbhares of stock registered in the name of AA
Commercial Inc. Mr. Vincent S. Lim is the Treasuoé AA Commercial Inc. Mr. David S. Lim
is authorized to vote the shares of stock regidtére the name of AV Value Holdings
Corporation. Mr. David S. Lim is the President®f Value Holdings Corporation.

(4) Changes in Control

There are no arrangements, which may result ingggimn control of the registrant.
Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transaains

D. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

1.
Solid Broadband Corporation sold majority of itshite phone inventories to MyTel Mobility
Solutions Inc.

Solid Video Corporation sells professional equiptmancessories and tapes to Avid Sales
Corporation (Avid), a company owned by Company’garity stockholders. SVC also earns
commissions from the sales of a company owned &¢ttmpany’s majority stockholders, to
customers in the Philippines.

Mytel Mobility Solutions, Inc. sold mobile phonevientories to Solid Trading Limited.

Solid Broadband Corporation’s broadband cable #tftecture is used by Destiny Cable Inc.
(DCI), a company owned by the Company’s majoribckholders. Billings were based on a
fixed fee per subscriber and per type of service.

Solid Group provides management services to CPR2gx€orporation (CPD), a company
owned by the Company’s majority stockholders inoagance with a management contract.

Revenue from sale of goods and services are retasipart of revenues and the related
outstanding receivables are recorded as part afeTaad Other Receivables

Solid Electronics Corp. purchases parts and supfiioien CPD while Solid Manila Corporation
avails of management services from AA Commerciabmpany also owned by the Company’s
ultimate majority stockholders.

Purchases of goods and availment of managemeri¢ag@are recorded as part of Cost of
services and Cost of Services, respectively andellaged outstanding payables are recorded as
part of Trade and Other Payables.

Solid Manila Corporation leases out certain land lanildings to Avid Sales Corporation.

Income from these leases is shown as part of Rientlaé consolidated statements of income.
Uncollected billings, on the other hand, forms mdrfrade and Other Receivables account in the
consolidated statements of financial position.
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Solid Laguna Corporation rents portion of a buitdof a company owned by the Company’s

majority stockholders. Rental expense relatinthi®lease is shown as part of Rentals under
General and Administrative Expenses in the conatdii statements of income. There are no
outstanding liabilities related to this lease.

Solid Manila Finance Inc. grants interest-bearingibess and other loans to its related parties.
Interest earned on these loans are presentedtasf paterest Income under Revenues in the
consolidated statements of income while outstandalance are shown as Finance Receivables
under Trade and Other Receivables account in theotidated statements of financial position.

Advances to and from Related Parties

Certain subsidiaries of the Company grants to dotdiios unsecured, non-interest bearing cash
advances to and from related parties companiegdWwy Group’s ultimate majority
stockholders for working capital requirements atiteppurposes. Outstanding balances arising
from these transactions are presented as Advao@sltfrom Related Parties accounts in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Solid Video Corporation (SVC) earns commissiomfrsales of Solid Trading Limited (STL), a
company owned by the company’s majority stockh@ddéo customers in the Philippines.
Commission revenue are presented as part of RegdefiServices account in the consolidated
income statements. SVC also advances funds tot&phay foreign suppliers. The outstanding
balance of these transaction are included as fartAalvances to Related Parties in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

My Solid Technologies & Devices Corporation (My @89l and Solid Broadband Corporation
(SBC) purchases mobile phone from Solid Companyited (Hongkong), a related party owned
by the Company’s majority stockholders. Total jmases are presented as part of Cost of Sales
in the consolidate statements of income. Therenar@utstanding liabilities relating to these
purchases.

Brilliant Reach Limited granted an unsecured, iegétbearing loan denominated in Chinese
Yuan Renminbi to Solid Company Limited amountingR20.8 million in 2008 which will
mature on March 1, 2011. The loan bears an arintexkest of 6% payable annually with any
unpaid interest compounded annually at the sangeafathe principal amount. In 2009, the
parties agreed to amend the loan agreement redtlengnnual interest rate to 4% and making
the loan payable in US dollars. The amount of lisapresented as part of Finance Receivables
under the Trade and Other Receivables account.

Other than the foregoing, there were no transagtituming the past two fiscal years to which the
Company was a party, in which a director, executffecer, nominee for director, stockholder
owning more than 10% of the outstanding shareseftompany had a direct interest.

2. The Company has no transactions involving rdlpeeties where the service fees or rates
are fixed by law or government authority, nor aassbank depository of funds, transfer agent,

registrar or trustee under a trust indenture nerdmgy other interest except for those arising from

the ownership of securities of the registrant rdedras treasury shares nor received extra or
special benefit that was not shared equally bh@tiers of the registrant.



53

3. The Company has no parent company holding or ciinfyanore than 50% of its
outstanding capital stock. However, AA Commertial and AV Value Holdings Corporation
separately own and control 32.03% and 27.45%, otispdy, of the Company’s outstanding
shares.

4, There are no transactions with promoterassets acquired by the Company from any
promoters.

PART IV CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Item 13. Corporate Governance

The Company adopted a Manual on Corporate Goveenémdnstitutionalize the rules and
principles of good corporate governance in accardamith the Code of Corporate Governance
promulgated by Securities and Exchange Commiss®BC]. Its Manual on Corporate
Governance was submitted to the SEC on Septembe20@2 in accordance with SEC
Memorandum Circular No. 2 Series of 2002.

Pursuant to the Manual, three Board Committees ditAdlomination and Compensation and
Renumeration Committees were created in 2003 tarmaicbomplying with principles of good
corporate governance. In 2003, the Company inetedise number of independent directors
from one (1) to two (2). In 2004, in compliancetwSEC Memorandum Circular No. 6. the
Company increased the number of independent dinedinits Audit Committee, from one
independent director to two (2) independent dinegtand appointed an independent director to
head the Audit Committee. The company has reelédtreduintin Chua and Mr. Luis Maria L.
Zabaljauregui as Independent Directors during thaual Stockholders’ meeting on September
30, 2010. In 2008, the company created anothenttiee, the Risk Management Committee in
addition to the 3 existing committees composedoaf {4) members chaired by an independent
director. During the same year, the Company, evfétaining the services of Punongbayan &
Araullo as external auditor, designated a new emgagt partner for the audit of the financial
statements of the Company beginning the year erid@ggmber 31, 2008 in compliance with its
Manual on Corporate Governance, which requiresttteeCompany’s external auditor be rotated
or the handling partner changed every five (5) yearearlier.

A Compliance Officer was appointed in 2002, dingetporting to the Chairman of the Board to
monitor compliance with the provisions and requieais of the Manual. The Compliance Officer
has established an evaluation system to measudetermine the level of compliance of the
Company with its Manual.

The Board of Directors approved the Company’s Relisanual of Corporate Governance in
compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6, &edf 2009 on September 30, 2010. The

Company adopted the Revised Manual of Corporateefhance and submitted it to the SEC on
September 30, 2010.

The Company complied with the appropriate selfitpassessment and performance evaluation
system to determine and measure compliance witMtraial and submitted a certification of its
compliance on January 31, 2011. There are nornigeiations from the adopted Revised
Manual on Corporate Governance.

The Company reappointed Punongbayan and Araul@y'€as its independent accountant for
the year 2010 during the Annual Stockholders’ nmgetin September 30, 2010.
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The Company, its Directors, Officers and Employeasiplied with all the leading practices and
principles on Good Governance as embodied in thepaay's Manual. All members of the
Board of Directors as well as Senior Managemernt&f completed and were duly certified to
have attended a 2- day special seminar on Corp@ateernance conducted by Institute of
Corporate Directors and a 1-day SEC Revised Cod€awporate Governance conducted by
Center for Global Best Practices.

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
Item 14. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C
€) Exhibits - See accompanying Index to Exhibit.
The following exhibit is filed as a separate settid this report:
(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C
The following were reported under SEC Form 17-Grduthe last six-month period.
The Company advised on February 22, 2011 that dsdof Directors authorized management
to study and explore the feasibility of engaging business of setting up modular housing units
using pioneering technology. The Board approvednaastment of up to P20 million for the

importation of modular materials and systems irirsgtup of pilot units to determine their
suitability to Philippine conditions.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation Code,
this report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the
City of Makati, Metro Manila, Philippines on ,2011.
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Vin S. Lim
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Director Corpgfrate Secretary

~

Ana Maria gbak-Lim
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Director VP and Chief Accounting Officer
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Luis-Maria Zabaljauregui "Beda T. M
Director VP for Business Development and Investor
Relations
e
/ M
Beda T. Manalac

Director
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February 5, 2010, Manila
September 14,2007, Manila
June 20, 2008, Manila

July 10, 2010, Manila

May 25, 2007, Manila

MELVYN S, FLTZQ. NCID

NOTAR { PUBLIC
UNTIL  DECEMBER 31 JolL
FTR NO. 98061

1SSUED ON_L{iIn AT MENDEUINONG



57

SOLID GROUP, INC.
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

FORM 17-A, Item 7

Page No.
Consolidated Financial Statements
Statement of Management’s Responsibility for Finalrf8tatemen 1
Report of Independent Public Account: 1
Consolidated Balance Slts as of December 32010, 2009 ar 2008 1-2
Consolidated Income Statements for the years eDdedmber 312010, 1
2009 and 2008
Consolidatd Statements of Comprehensive Income for the yeatsd 1
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
Consolidated ‘atements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity foryters 1
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yarated Decembe 1-2
31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 1-75
Supplementary Schedules
Report of Independent Public Accountants on Supeleaary 1
Schedules
A. Marketable Securitie- (Current Marketable Equity Securiti 2
And Other Short-Term Cash Investments)
B. Amounts Receivable from Directc Officers, Employees, Relatt *x
Parties and Principal Stockholders (Othan Affiliates)
C. Nor-Current Marketable Equity Securities, Other L-Termr 3
Investments and Other Investments
D. Indebtedness of Unconsolidated Subsies and Affiliate 4
E. Intangible Asset- Other Assel *
F. Lon¢-Term Deb *
G. Indebtedness to Related Parties (I-Term 5
Loans from Related Companies)
H. Guarantees of Securities of Other Iss *
I. Capital Stoc 6
J. Reconciation of Retained Earning s for Dividend Declana 7

*  These schedules, which are required by Rajtaf SRC Rule 68.1, have been omitted
because they are either not required, not appécabthe information required to be presented is
included in the Company’s consolidated financiateshents or the notes to consolidated
financial statements.

**  Omitted; advances or receivable in ordineoyrse of business.



SorLip Group INC.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Solid Group Inc. is responsible for all information and representations contained in the
consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 and for each of the
three years in the pericd ended December 31, 2010. The financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and reflect amounts that are based on the best
estimates and informed judgment of management with appropriate consideration to materiality.

In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides for the necessary
internal controls to ensure that transactions are propertly authorized and recorded, assets are safeguarded
against unauthorized use or disposition and liabilities are recognized. The management likewise discloses to
the Company’s audit committee and to its external auditor: (1) all significant deficiencies in the design or
operation of internal controls that could adversely affect its ability to record, process, and report financial
data; (i) material weaknesses in the internal controls; and (iii) any fraud that involves management or other
employees who exercise significant roles in internal controls.

The Board of Directors reviews the financial statements before such statements are approved and submitted
to the stockholders of the Company.

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent auditors and appointed by the stockholders, has examined the
financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing and has expressed
their opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination, in its report to the Board
of Directors and stockholders.

Signed under oath by the following:

7 g Z ,
SUSAN L. TAN

Chairghan of the Board

o
VI NT S. LIM
SVP & Chief Financial Officer

DA S.L
President &
Chief Executive Officer

<
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Vincent S. Lim XX0711071 March 10, 2008, Manila
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Punongbayan & Araullo

Report Of Independent AuditOI'S 20th Floor, Tower 1

The Enterprise Center
6766 Ayala Avenue
1200 Makati City
Philippines

T +63 2 886-5511
F +63 2 886-5506; +63 2 886-5507
www. punongbayan-araullo.com

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries

2285 Don Chino Roces Avenue Extension
Makati City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Solid Group
Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as at December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, and the consolidated
statements of income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash
flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Certified Public Accountants
P&A is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd

Offices in Cebu, Davao, Cavite

BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002
SEC Accreditation No. 0002-FR-2



Punongbayan & Araullo

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosutes in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedutes that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the approptiateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries as at
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, and of their consolidated financial performance
and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

By: Dalisay B. Duque j

Partner

CPA Reg. No. 0022692

TIN 140-240-854

PTR No. 2641851, January 3, 2011, Makati City

Partner’s SEC Accreditation No. 0012-AR-2 (until Feb. 1, 2012)
BIR AN 08-002511-9-2008 (until Nov. 24, 2011)

Firm’s BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2012)
Firm’s SEC Accreditation No. 0002-FR-2 (until Feb. 1, 2012)

April 1, 2011

Certified Public Accountants
P&A is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd



SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

2009 2008
(As Restated - (As Restated -
Notes 2010 see Note 24) see Note 24)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 1,620,114,468 P 1,263,142,145 P 1,118,462,976
Trade and other receivables - net 7 890,983,646 501,285,288 313,205,104
Advances to related parties 26 201,193,407 504,328,415 192,327,778
Available-for-sale financial assets - net 8 138,606,153 305,804,353 63,519,015
Merchandise inventories and supplies - net 10 392,709,244 83,440,928 219,260,928
Real estate inventories - net 11 1,328,002,830 1,046,881,038 1,036,949,872
Other current assets 14 242,126,879 299,085,713 376,261,035
Total Current Assets 4,813,736,627 4,003,967,880 3,319,986,708
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 7 640,911,201 679,762,808 666,890,976
Available-for-sale financial assets - net 8 12,106,527 8,001,527 7,461,527
Held-to-maturity investments 9 - - 161,289,378
Property, plant and equipment - net 12 1,396,868,972 1,397,744,432 1,438,147,224
Investment property - net 13 3,646,518,637 3,617,517,861 3,631,925,344
Retirement benefit asset 22 74,917,955 45,935,962 36,658,396
Deferred tax assets - net 23 32,807,044 27,240,012 26,801,104
Other non-current assets - net 14 24,578,668 24,919,357 28,148,145
Total Non-current Assets 5,828,709,004 5,801,121,959 5,997,322,094
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 5 - 12,090,324 -

TOTAL ASSETS P 10,642,445,631 P 9,817,180,163 P 9,317,308,802




2009 2008
(As Restated - (As Restated -
Notes 2010 see Note 24) see Note 24)
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans 15 P 989,502,559 P 419,206,324 P 458,760,609
Trade and other payables 16 442,663,550 322,604,948 352,635,622
Advances from related parties 26 168,911,611 201,439,920 111,704,972
Estimated liability for land and land
development costs 1 68,304,647 68,304,647 68,304,647
Income tax payable 44,020,603 4,764,696 6,782,075
Total Current Liabilities 1,713,402,970 1,016,320,535 998,187,925
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Refundable deposits - net 17 15,252,534 11,096,848 9,710,038
Retirement benefit obligation 22 3,121,593 1,484,596 7,362,600
Deferred tax liabilities - net 23 798,720,443 825,464,013 812,624,346
Interest-bearing loans 15 - 135,742,000 -
Total Non-current Liabilities 817,094,570 973,787,457 829,696,984
Total Liabilities 2,530,497,540 1,990,107,992 1,827,884,909
EQUITY
Equity attributable to the
Parent Company's stockholders
Capital stock 24 2,030,975,000 2,030,975,000 2,030,975,000
Additional paid-in capital 4,641,701,922 4,641,701,922 4,641,701,922
Treasury shares - at cost 24 ( 115,614,380 ) ( 115,614,380 ) ( 115,614,380 )
Revaluation reserves 24 ( 43,480,551 ) ( 101,653,736 ) ( 213,026,395)
Retained earnings 24 1,183,851,839 954,505,529 751,251,378
Total equity attributable to the
Parent Company's stockholders 7,697,433,830 7,409,914,335 7,095,287,525
Non-controlling interests 414,514,261 417,157,836 394,136,368
Total Equity 8,111,948,091 7,827,072,171 7,489,423,893
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P 10,642,445,631 P 9,817,180,163 P 9,317,308,802

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

2009 2008
(As Restated - (As Restated -
Notes 2010 see Note 24) see Note 24)
REVENUES
Sale of goods 2 P 1,622,862,107 P 1,124,432,782 P 754,477,429
Rendering of services 2 694,808,001 630,591,746 589,947,707
Sale of real estate 2 207,355,479 360,841,142 30,625,359
Rentals 2 121,663,078 112,880,787 136,222,127
Interest 2 63,089,091 95,230,153 97,198,817
2,709,777,757 2,323,976,610 1,608,471,439
COST OF SALES, SERVICES, REAL ESTATE
SOLD AND RENTALS
Cost of sales 18 1,225,420,110 849,411,001 616,711,773
Cost of services 18 460,191,618 458,164,630 435,837,110
Cost of real estate sold 20 151,396,685 282,889,925 22,470,496
Cost of rentals 18 38,569,193 33,568,032 36,134,717
1,875,577,607 1,624,033,588 1,111,154,096
GROSS PROFIT 834,200,150 699,943,022 497,317,343
OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES (INCOME)
General and administrative expenses 20 281,046,941 250,979,458 258,160,163
Selling and distribution costs 20 227,552,333 97,041,397 70,519,743
Other operating income 19 ( 87,379,618 ) ( 22,809,568 ) ( 98,746,565 )
421,219,656 325,211,287 229,933,341
OPERATING PROFIT 412,980,494 374,731,735 267,384,002
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Finance costs 21 ( 88,223,148 ) ( 118,599,858 ) ( 40,097,465 )
Finance income 21 38,921,553 34,748,630 72,814,405
Other gains - net 2,736,192 1,599,175 5,503,312
( 46,565,403 ) ( 82,252,053 ) 38,220,252
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 366,415,091 292,479,682 305,604,254
TAX EXPENSE 23 122,651,703 63,514,404 5,518,931
PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 243,763,388 228,965,278 300,085,323
LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - Net of Tax ( 17,060,653 ) ( 2,689,659 ) ( 31,373,810)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR P 226,702,735 P 226,275,619 P 268,711,513
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the:
Parent Company's stockholders P 229,346,310 P 203,254,151 P 268,304,620
Non-controlling interests ( 2,643,575 ) 23,021,468 406,893
P 226,702,735 P 226,275,619 P 268,711,513

Earnings per share attributable to the:
Parent Company's stockholders - basic and diluted 25 P 0.13 P 0.11 P 0.15




SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

2009 2008
(As Restated - (As Restated -
Notes 2010 see Note 24) see Note 24)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR P 226,702,735 P 226,275,619 P 268,711,513
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Reclassification adjustments for losses recognized
in profit or loss 49,498,034 62,432,561 5,201,422
Fair value gains (losses) on available-for-sale
financial assets, net of taxes 8 14,474,181 35,128,701 ( 313,038,441
Currency exchange differences on translating balances
of foreign operations 2 ( 5,799,030 ) ( 14,426,000 ) 305,787,998
Fair value gain on reclassification of financial assets 9 - 28,237,397 -
58,173,185 111,372,659 ( 2,049,021)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR P 284,875,920 P 337,648,278 P 266,662,492
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year
attributable to:
Parent Company's stockholders P 287,519,495 P 314,626,810 P 266,255,599
Non-controlling interests ( 2,643,575) 23,021,468 406,893
P 284,875,920 P 337,648,278 P 266,662,492

See Notes to Ce lidated Financial Si




Notes

Balance at January 1, 2010
As previously reported
Prior period adjustments, net of tax 2

As restated
Transaction between owners -
Net loss for the year attributable

to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable
to the Parent Company's stockholders:
Net profit
Fair value gains 2,8,9

Balance at December 31, 2010

Balance at January 1, 2009
As previously reported

Prior period adjustments, net of tax 2

As restated
Transaction between owners -
Net profit for the year attributable

to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
Net profit for the year
Fair value gains 289

Balance at December 31, 2009

Balance at January 1, 2008
As previously reported

Prior period adjustments, net of tax 2

As restated
Transaction between owners:
Additional non-controlling interests on
acquired subsidiary
Net profit for the year attributable

to non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income

Net profit for the year
Fair value losses 2,89

Balance at December 31, 2008

SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

to Parent Company's

Capital Additional Treasury Revaluation Retained Non-controlling Total
Stock Paid-in Capital Shares - at Cost Reserves Earnings Total Interest Equity
P 2,030,975000 P 4,641,701,922 (P 115,614,380) ( P 101,653,736) P 1,065,972,835 7,521,381,641 P 417,157,836 P 7,938,539,477
- - - - ( 111,467,306 ) ( 111,467,306 ) - 111,467,306 )
2,030,975,000 4,641,701,922  ( 115,614,380 ) ( 101,653,736 ) 954,505,529 7,409,914,335 417,157,836 7,827,072,171
- - - - - - 2,643,575) ( 2,643,575 )
- - - - 229,346,310 229,346,310 - 229,346,310
- - - 58,173,185 - 58,173,185 - 58,173,185
- - - 58,173,185 229,346,310 287,519,495 - 287,519,495
2030975000 P 4641701922 (P 115,614,380) ( P 43480551) P 1,183,851,839 7,697.433830 P 414514261 P 8,111,948,091
P 2030975000 P 4641701922 (P 115614,380) ( P 213,026395) P 834,589,062 7178625209 P 394136368 P 7,572,761,577
- - - - ( 83337.684) ( 83,337,684 ) - ( 83,337,684 )
2030975000 4641701922 ( 115.614380) ( 13,026,395 ) 751,251,378 7,095,287, 94,136,36 7.480,423,89
- - - - - - 23021468 23021468
- - - - 203,254,151 203,254,151 - 203,254,151
- - - 111,372,659 - 111,372,659 - 111,372,659
- - - 111,372,659 203,254,151 314,626,810 - 314,626,810
P 4641701922 (P, 115614380) ( P 101,653736) P 954,505,529 7409914335 P 417157836 P 7.827,072171
P 2030975000 P 4,641,701922 (P 115614,380) ( P 210977,374) ( P 350,220,141 5995856027 P 254792475 P 6,250,648,502
- - - - 833175809 833175809 - 833175809
2,030.975.000 4641701922 ( 115614380) ( 210977374) 482946758 6.829.031.926 254792475 7.083,824.401
- - - - - - 138,937,000 138,037,000
- - - - - - 406,893 406,893
- - - - 268,304,620 268,304,620 - 268,304,620
- - - ( 2,049,021 ) - 2,049,021 ) - ( 2,049,021 )
- - - ( 2,049,021 ) 68,304,620 66,255,500 - 66,255,500
P 2030975000 P 4641701922 (P 115614380) ( P 213026395) P 751251378 7095287525 P 394136368 P 7489423893

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax from continuing operations

Loss before tax from discontinued operations

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Interest income
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on inventory obsolescence
Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets
Fair value gains on investment property - net
Reversals of allowance for inventory obsolescence

Reversals of impairment losses on trade and other receivables

Interest expense
Impairment losses on trade and other receivables
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Unrealized foreign currency losses (gains) - net
Interest amortization on refundable deposits
Gain on disposal of non-current assets held-for-sale
Loss on sale of foreign currency-denominated bonds
Write-off of investment property

Operating profit before working capital changes
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease (increase) in advances to related parties
Decrease (increase) in available-for-sale financial assets
Decrease in held-to-maturity investments

Decrease (increase) in merchandise inventories and supplies

Increase in real estate inventories
Decrease (increase) in other current assets
Decrease (increase) in retirement benefit asset
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase in estimated liability for land and
land development costs
Increase (decrease) in advances from related parties
Increase in refundable deposits
Increase (decrease) in retirement benefit obligation
Cash generated from (used in) operations
Interest received

Cash paid for income taxes

Net Cash From (Used in) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets held-for-sale
Additions to investment property

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Loans granted to a related party

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Balance forwarded

2009 2008
(As Restated - (As Restated -
Notes 2010 see Note 24) see Note 24)
P 366,415,091 P 292,479,682 P 305,604,254
5 ( 16,445,538 ) ( 3,542,601 ) ( 27,736,447 )
349,969,553 288,937,081 277,867,807
21 ( 86,478,277 ) ( 121,702,409 ) ( 128,389,679 )
12 75,588,976 74,998,874 79,372,652
10 59,288,554 15,765,265 8,114,168
8 33,657,338 - 170,000
13 ( 27,648,081 ) ( 15,136,545 ) ( 61,436,486 )
10 ( 19,184,724 ) ( 1,796,955 ) ( 10,860,332)
7 ( 11,104,219 ) ( 8,488,254 ) ( 7,879,232)
21 10,530,521 19,345,255 21,161,120
7 9,266,502 27,735,676 17,603,434
( 6,646,929 ) ( 222,898) ( 945,857 )
1,119,803 9,842,241 ( 33,374,532)
17 864,519 1,386,810 1,264,997
5 ( 452,503 ) - -
21 - 59,852,713 -
13 - 73,076 -
388,771,033 350,589,930 162,668,060
( 349,009,034 ) ( 220,199,438) 41,942,055
303,135,008 ( 312,000,637 ) ( 62,236,402 )
187,609,047 ( 34,156,408 ) 161,570,905
- 4,140,394 53,000,000
( 349,372,147 ) 121,851,690 ( 40,995,505 )
( 281,121,792) ( 9,931,166 ) ( 140,652,893 )
( 47,045,684 ) 81,823,216 ( 191,091,967 )
( 28,981,993 ) ( 9,277,566 ) 5,553,275
( 9,494,057 ) 33,501,878 ( 18,301,485)
120,058,602 ( 30,030,674 ) 21,932,081
- - 31,418,302
( 32,528,309 ) 89,734,948 ( 68,292,959 )
3,291,167 - -
1,636,997 ( 5,878,004 ) 4,114,692
( 93,051,163 ) 60,168,163 ( 39,371,841)
63,089,091 95,230,153 97,198,817
( 12,316,993 ) ( 56,925,976 ) ( 37,377,514)
( 42,279,065 ) 98,472,340 20,449,462
12 ( 56,800,567 ) ( 46,696,633 ) ( 62,404,867 )
21 23,389,186 26,472,256 31,190,862
9,690,330 - -
13 ( 1,352,695 ) ( 802,138) ( 19,789,527 )
1,421,223 233,125 1,269,817
26 - - ( 120,783,064 )
( 23,652,523 ) ( 20,793,390 ) ( 170,516,779 )
(P 65,931,588 ) P 77,678,950 (P 150,067,317 )




2009 2008
(As Restated - (As Restated -
Notes 2010 see Note 24) see Note 24)
Balance brought forward (P 65,931,588 ) P 77,678,950 (P 150,067,317 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Proceeds from interest-bearing loans 21 434,554,235 96,187,715 49,325,088
Interest paid ( 10,530,521 ) ( 19,345,255 ) ( 21,161,120)
Net Cash From Financing Activities 424,023,714 76,842,460 28,163,968
Effect of Currency Rate Changes on Cash and
Cash Equivalents ( 1,119,803 ) ( 9,842,241) 33,374,532
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 356,972,323 144,679,169 ( 88,528,817 )
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,263,142,145 1,118,462,976 1,206,991,793
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR P 1,620,114,468 P 1,263,142,145 P 1,118,462,976

Supplement Information on Noncash Investing Activities

In 2009, the Board of Directors of Solid Laguna Corporation, a subsidiary, approved the phasing out of its plastic injection manufacturing division. As a result, certain
property, plant and equipment with a total carrying amount of P12.1 million were reclassified as Non-current Assets Held for Sale (see Note 5). In 2010, the assets were
subsequently sold to third parties.

In 2008, the Group reclassified certain investments in foreign currency-denominated bonds, previously classified as Available-for-sale Financial Assets, to the Held-to-
maturity Investments account, with a total fair value of P165.2 million at the time of reclassification. However, in 2009, the Group disposed of a significant portion of its
held-to-maturity investments. Accordingly, management reclassified the remaining held-to-maturity investments with a total carrying amount of P125.2 million back to
Available-for-sale Financial Assets (see Notes 5, 8 and 9).

Also, in 2008, Zen Towers Corporation, another subsidiary, reclassified certain assets amounting to P116.9 million, previously classified as part of Real Estate Inventories,
to Investment Property (see Note 13).

See Notes to C lidated Financial Si




SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

11 Company Background

Solid Group Inc. (SGI or the Parent Company) was registered with the Philippine Securities
and Exchange Commission on October 16, 1933. The Parent Company currently conducts
business as an investment holding company. Its shares of stock are publicly traded at the

Philippine Stock Exchange.

The Parent Company holds ownership interests in the following subsidiaries
(the Parent Company and the Subsidiaries are collectively referred to as “the Group”):

Percentage of Ownership

Subsidiaries 2010 2009 2008 Notes Nature of Business
Brilliant Reach Limited (BRL) 100 100 100 (a) Investment company
Kita Corporation (Kita) 100 100 100 Real estate and manufacturing of
injected plastics
Omni Logistics Corporation (OLC) 100 100 100 Logistics and assembly of
colored televisions
Solid Broadband Corporation (SBC) 100 100 100 Broadband, cable and satellite

services, sale of mobile phones
and LCD televisions

Solid Corporation (SC) 100 100 100 Real estate
Solid Group Technologies Corporation
(SGTC) 100 100 100 (© Information and

communications and
technology systems

Precos, Inc. (Precos) 100 100 100 (¢) Real estate
Solid Electronics Corporation (SE Corp.) 100 100 100 Repair services for audio and
video products
Solid Laguna Corporation (SLC) 100 100 100 Real estate
Solid Manila Corporation (SMC) 100 100 100 Real estate
Casa Bocobo Hotel, Inc. (CBHI)
[formerly Zen By The Park, Inc.] 100 100 100 (e),(g) Real estate
Solid Manila Finance, Inc. (SMFI) 100 100 100 Financing
Solid Video Corporation (SVC) 100 100 100 Trading of professional audio
and video equipment
Zen Towers Corporation (ZTC) 100 100 100 Real estate
Phil-Nanning Consortium, Inc. (PNCI) 100 100 100 (¢), (h)  Real estate
My Solid Technologies & Devices
Corporation (My Solid) 100 100 - () Sale of mobile phones
Mytel Mobility Solutions, Inc. (Mytel) 100 - - k) Sale of mobile phones
Skyworld Corporation (Skyworld) 75 75 75 (¢), (¢ Investment holding company
Interstar Holdings Company, Inc.
(Interstar) 73 73 73 (), (¢)  Investment holding company
Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development,
Ltd. (Fil-Dragon) 51 51 51 (c), @) Real estate
Starworld Corporation (Starworld) 50 50 50 (e), ()  Real estate

Laguna International Industrial Park,
Inc. (LIIP) 50 50 50 (b), (d)  Real estate



Notes:
(a) Incorporated and domiciled in the British Virgin Islands
(b) Indirectly owned through SC
(c) Pre-operating or non-operating
(d) LIIP is 22.5% owned by SC and 37.5% owned by Interstar
(¢) Indirectly owned through SMC
(f) Starworld is 20% owned by SMC and 40% owned by Skyworld
(g) Incorporated in 2007 and started commercial operations in August 2008
(h) Acquired in 2008; indirectly owned through Precos
(i) Acquired in 2008; indirectly owned through PNCI; incorporated and domiciled in
the People’s Republic of China
() Incorporated in 2009 and started commercial operations in January 2010
(k Incorporated in 2009 and acquired in 2010

SBC holds a provisional authority, granted by the National Telecommunications
Commission, to use its legislative franchise under Republic Act (RA) No. 9116, An Act
Granting Solid Broadband Corporation a Franchise to Construct, Install, Establish, Operate and Maintain
Telecommunications Systems throughout the Philippines.

SMFTI is subject to the rules and regulations provided under RA 8556, The Financing Company
Act of 1998.

1.2 Status of Operations
(a)  Revaluation of Investment Property

Prior to the revaluation of the Group’s investment property in 2008, the Group incurred net
losses in prior years that resulted in significant deficits. In 2008, the Group reported net
profit for the year of P268.7 million, which together with the effects of the change in the
remeasurement of investment property (see Note 13), reduced the balance of the Deficit
account by a significant amount allowing the Group to present Retained Farnings amounting
to P226.7 million as of December 31, 2008. In 2010 and 2009, the Group showed much
better results of operations reporting net profit for the years then ended of P229.3 million
and P226.3 million, respectively. Management strongly believes that the Group will continue
to report positive results and better financial position in the future.

(b)  Phasing-out of Manufacturing Business and Related Services of Certain Subsidiaries

On November 23, 2009, the Parent Company’s management disclosed to the public its plan
of phasing-out its unprofitable manufacturing business and related services, which include the
plastic injection molding parts operations of Kita and SLC, with the expectation that this will
positively impact the overall financial performance of the Group. Kita and SLC have ceased
their plastic injection manufacturing business as of December 31, 2010 (see Note 5).



1.3 Other Corporate Information

The registered office and principal place of business of the Company and its subsidiaries,
except those listed below, is located at 2285 Don Chino Roces Avenue Extension, Makati
City. The registered offices and principal places of business of the other subsidiaries are as
follows:

BRL - 2nd Floor, Abbott Building, P.O. Box 933, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands
Kita - 7175 Gil Puyat Ave. cor. Feati St., Clark Freeport Zone, Clarkfield, Pampanga
OLC - Ganado Street, Laguna International Industrial Park, Mamplasan, Bifian, Laguna
SC - 17 A. Fernando St., Marulas, Valenzuela, Metro Manila
SGTC - 1172 Bo. Unang Sigaw, EDSA, Balintawak, Quezon City
SMC and

CBHI - 1000 J. Bocobo St., Ermita, Manila
SE Corp. - 1172 E. delos Santos Avenue, Balintawak, Quezon City
SL.C - Solid St., LIIP, Mamplasan, Bifian, Laguna
Starworld - Bo. Prinza, Calamba City
7TC - 1111 Natividad A. Lopez Street, Brgy. 659-A, Zone 79 District 5, Ermita, Manila
PNCI - 139 Joy St. Balingasa, Quezon City
Fil-Dragon - Room 1913B, Oriental Manhattan, Nanning City, Guanxi Province, China

Starting March 3, 2011, My Solid’s new principal place of business is located at 2000 East
Service Road, Bicutan, Parafiaque City; Omni’s new principal place of business, starting
January 5, 2011, is located at 17 A. Fernando St., Marulas, Valenzuela, Metro Manila.

1.4 Approval for Issuance of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2010
(including the comparatives for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008) were
authorized for issue by the Parent Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) on April 1, 2011.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are summarized below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements
(a)  Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC), from the pronouncements issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases
specified by PERS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies in the
succeeding pages.
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Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standard (PAS) 1 (Revised 2007), Presentation of Financial Statements. The
Group presents the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in two
statements: a Consolidated Statement of Income and a Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Two comparative periods are presented for the consolidated
statement of financial position when the Group applies an accounting policy
retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement of items in its consolidated financial
statements, ot reclassifies items in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group presented two comparative periods for the consolidated statement of
financial position, i.e., December 31, 2009 and 2008 as a result of the prior period
adjustments and reclassification of accounts (see Note 24.3).

Functional and Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the
Company’s functional and presentation currency, and all values represent absolute
amounts except when otherwise indicated.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured
using the Parent Company’s functional currency, which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Parent Company operates.

Adoption of New Interpretations, Revisions and Amendments to PFRS
Effective in 2010 that are Relevant to the Group

In 2010, the Group adopted the following new revisions, interpretations and annual

improvements that are relevant to the Group and effective for consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on or after July 1, 2009 or January 1, 2010:

PAS 27 (Revised 2008) ¢ Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements
PFRS 3 (Revised 2008) : Business Combinations
Philippine Interpretation
International
Financial Reporting
Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) 17 :  Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Various Standards ¢ 2009 Annual Improvements to PFRS
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Discussed below are the effects on the consolidated financial statements of the new and
amended standards.

@

(i)

PAS 27 (Revised 2008), Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. The revised
standard requires the effects of all transactions with non-controlling interests to be
recorded in equity if there is no change in control and these transactions will no
longer result in goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also specifies the
accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest in the entity is re-measured
to fair value and a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. The Group’s
adoption of the standard did not result in any adjustment to its consolidated
financial statements as there were no transactions covered under the standard
during the year.

PEFRS 3 (Revised 2008), Business Combinations. The revised standard continues to
apply the acquisition method to business combination with significant changes. For
example, all payments to purchase a business are to be recorded at fair value at the
acquisition date, with contingent payments classified as debt subsequently
remeasured through the profit or loss. There is a choice on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
in the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All acquisition-related costs should be
expensed. The Group did not have any business acquisition during the year; hence,
the adoption of the revised standard has no effect on the 2010 consolidated
financial statements.

(iii) Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 17, Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners.

IFRIC 17 clarifies that dividend payable should be recognized when the dividend is
appropriately authorized and is no longer at the discretion of the entity. Also, an
entity should measure the dividend payable at the fair value of the net assets to be
distributed and the difference between the dividend paid and the carrying amount
of the net assets distributed should be recognized in profit or loss. The Group’s
adoption of this interpretation did not have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements since the Group did not distribute non-cash assets to its
stockholders during the current year and in prior years.

(iv) 2009 Annual Improvements to PFRS. The FRSC has adopted the Improvements to

PFRS 2009. Most of these amendments became effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2009 or January 1, 2010. Among those improvements,
only the following amendments were identified to be relevant to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements but which did not also have any material impact
on its consolidated financial statements:

e  PAS 1 (Amendment), Presentation of Financial Statements. The amendment clarifies
the current and non-current classification of a liability that can, at the option of
the counterparty, be settled by the issue of the entity’s equity instruments.

e PAS 7 (Amendment), Statement of Cash Flows. The amendment clatifies that only
an expenditure that results in a recognized asset can be classified as a cash flow
from investing activities. Under its current policies, only recognized assets are
classified by the Group as cash flow from investing activities.
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e PAS 17 (Amendment), Leases. The amendment clarifies that when a lease
includes both land and building elements, an entity assesses the classification of
each element as finance or an operating lease separately in accordance with the
general guidance on lease classification set out in PAS 17. The amendment has
no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

e PAS 18 (Amendment), Revenue. The amendment provides guidance on
determining whether an entity is acting as a principal or as an agent. Presently,
the Group is the principal in all of its business undertakings.

Elffective in 2010 that are not Relevant to the Group

The following amendments and interpretations to published standards are mandatory
for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2010 but are not relevant to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements:

PAS 32 (Amendment) :  Classification of Right Issues
PAS 39 (Amendment) :  Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items
PFRS 1 (Amendment) :  Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters
PFRS 2 (Amendment) :  Share-based Payment
Philippine Interpretations
IFRIC 9 :  Embedded Derivatives — Amendments
to IFRIC 9 and PAS 39
IFRIC 18 :  Transfers of Assets from Customers

Elffective Subsequent to 2010

There are new PERS, revisions, amendments, interpretations and annual improvements
to existing standards that are effective for periods subsequent to 2010. Among those,
management has initially determined the following pronouncements, which the Group
will apply in accordance with their transitional provisions, to be relevant to its
consolidated financial statements:

®

PAS 12 (Amendment), Income Taxes (effective from January 1, 2013). An entity is
required to measure the deferred tax relating to an asset depending on whether
the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of the asset through use or sale.
However, when the asset is measured using the fair value model in PAS 40,
Investment Property, it can be difficult and subjective to assess whether the recovery
will be through use or through sale; accordingly, an amendment to PAS 12 was
made.

As a practical solution to the problem, the amendment introduces a presumption
that recovery of the carrying amount will be or normally be through sale.
Consequently, SIC 21 Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-depreciable Assets
would no longer apply to investment properties carried at fair value. The
amendments also incorporate into PAS 12 the remaining guidance previously
contained in SIC 21, which is accordingly withdrawn.



(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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Since the amendment is related to the issuance of PFRS 9 in 2009, management is
still evaluating the effect of this amendment to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in conjunction with its adoption of PFRS 9 in 2013

(see PFRS 9 below).

PAS 24 (Revised), Related Party Disclosures (effective from January 1, 2011). Earlier
application of the standard, in whole or in part, is permitted but the Group opted
not to early adopt the standard. The revised standard clarifies and simplifies the
definition of a related party and removes the requirement for government-related
entities to disclose details of all transactions with the government and other
government-related entities. The Group is currently reviewing the impact of the

standard on its related party disclosures in time for its adoption of the revised
standard in 2011.

PERS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Disclosures (effective from

July 1, 2011). The amendments will allow users of consolidated financial
statements to improve their understanding of transfer transactions of financial
assets (e.g., securitizations), including understanding the possible effects of any
risks that may remain with the entity that transferred the assets. The amendments
also require additional disclosures if a disproportionate amount of transfer
transactions are undertaken at the end of a reporting period. The Group believes
that adoption of the amendments in 2012 will not have any significant effect on
its consolidated financial statements as they only affect disclosures and the Group
usually provides adequate information in its consolidated financial statements in
compliance with disclosure requirements.

PYRS 9, Financial Instruments (etfective from January 1, 2013). PAS 39, will be
replaced by PFRS 9 in its entirety which is being issued in phases. The main
phases are (with a separate project dealing with derecognition):

Phase 1:  Classification and Measurement
Phase 2:  Impairment Methodology
Phase 3:  Hedge Accounting

To date, the chapters dealing with recognition, classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and liabilities have been issued. These chapters
are effective for annual periods beginning January 1, 2013. Other chapters
dealing with impairment methodology and hedge accounting are still being
finalized.

Management is yet to assess the impact that this amendment is likely to have on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. However, it does not expect
to implement the amendments until all chapters of PFRS 9 have been published
at which time the Group expects it can comprehensively assess the impact of the
revised standard.



(vi)
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Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14 (Amendment), Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement (eftective from January 1, 2011). This interpretation addresses
unintended consequences that can arise from the previous requirements when an
entity prepays future contributions into a defined benefit pension plan. It sets out
guidance on when an entity recognizes an asset in relation to PAS 19, Employee
Benefits, surplus for defined benefit plans that are subject to a minimum funding
requirement. Management does not expect that its future adoption of the
amendment will have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements
because it does not usually make substantial advance contribution to its
retirement fund.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for Construction of Real Estate,
(effective from January 1, 2012). This interpretation provides guidance on how to
determine whether an agreement for the construction of real estate is within the
scope of PAS 11, Construction Contracts, or PAS 18, and accordingly, when revenue
from the construction should be recognized. The main expected change in
practice is a shift from recognizing revenue using the percentage-of-completion
method (i.e., as a construction progresses, by reference to the stage of completion
of the development) to recognizing revenue at a single time (i.e., at completion
upon or after delivery). The Group will adopt this interpretation in 2012 and is
currently evaluating the impact of such adoption in its consolidated financial
statements.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments (eftective from July 1, 2010). It addresses accounting by an entity
when the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and result in the entity
issuing equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the financial
liability. These transactions are sometimes referred to as “debt for equity”
exchanges or swaps, and have happened with increased regularity during the
financial crisis. The interpretation requires the debtor to account for a financial
liability which is extinguished by equity instruments as follows:

e the issue of equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all (or part of a
financial liability) is the consideration paid in accordance with PAS 39;

e the entity measures the equity instruments issued at fair value, unless this
cannot be reliably measured,;

e if the fair value of the equity instruments cannot be reliably measured, then
the fair value of the financial liability extinguished is used; and,

e the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognized in profit or loss.

Management has determined that the adoption of the interpretation will not have
a material effect on its consolidated financial statements as it does not normally
extinguish financial liabilities through equity swap in the subsequent periods.
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(viii) 2010 Annual Improvements to PFRS. The FRSC has adopted the Improvements to
PFRS 2070. These amendments became effective for annual periods beginning
on or after July 1, 2010, or January 1, 2011. The Group expects the amendments
to the following standards to be relevant to the Group’s accounting policies but
does not expect any material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements:

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements — Clarification of Statement of Changes in
Eguity (effective from July 1, 2010). Clarifies that entities may present the
required reconciliations for each component of other comprehensive income
cither in the consolidated statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

PAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, PAS 28, Investment in
Associates, PAS 31, Investments in Joint Ventures — Transition Requirements for
Amendments Arising as a Result of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements Revised 2008) (effective from July 1, 2010). This amends the
transition requirements to apply certain consequential amendments arising
from the 2008 PAS 27 amendments prospectively, to be consistent with the
related PAS 27 transition requirements.

PYRS 3, Business Combinations (etfective from July 1, 2010). This clarifies that
contingent consideration balances arising from business combinations that
occurred before an entity’s date of adoption of PFRS 3 (Revised 2008) shall
not be adjusted on the adoption date. It also provides guidance on the
subsequent accounting for such balances.

It further clarifies that the choice of measuring non-controlling interest at fair
value or at the proportionate share in the recognized amounts of an acquiree’s
identifiable net assets, is now limited to non-controlling interest that are
present ownership instruments and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets in the event of liquidation.

The guidance for the accounting of share-based transactions of the acquiree
that were voluntarily replaced by the acquirer and acquiree awards the
acquirer chooses not to replace is clarified as well.

PYRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Clarification of Disclosures (effective
from January 1, 2011). Clarifies that disclosure requirements of the standard
to remove inconsistencies, duplicative disclosure requirements and specific
disclosures that may be misleading.

2.3 Basis of Consolidation

The Parent Company obtains and exercises control through voting rights. The Group’s
consolidated financial statements comptise the accounts of the Parent Company, and its
subsidiaries as enumerated in Note 1.1, after the elimination of material intercompany
transactions. All intercompany balances and transactions with subsidiaries, including income,
expenses and dividends, are eliminated in full. Unrealized profits and losses from
intercompany transactions that are recognized in assets are also eliminated in full.
Intercompany losses that indicate an impairment are recognized in the consolidated financial
statements.
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The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Parent Company, using consistent accounting principles.

The Parent Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries and non-controlling interest
as follows:

(@)

(%)

Investments in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Parent Company has the power to control
the financial and operating policies. The Parent Company obtains and exercises control
through voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date the Parent
Company obtains control until such time that such control ceases.

The acquisition method is applied to account for acquired subsidiaries. This requires
recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the Company, if any. The consideration
transferred also includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred and subsequent change in the fair value of contingent consideration is
recognized directly in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net assets.

Goodwill (positive) represents the excess of acquisition cost over the Group’s share in
the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Negative goodwill represents the excess of Parent Company’s share in the
fair value of identifiable net assets of the subsidiaty at date of acquisition over
acquisition cost.

On initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are included in the
consolidated statement of financial statement at their fair values, which are also used as
the bases for subsequent measurement in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies.

Transactions with Non-controlling Interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. Any difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of the net assets
of the subsidiary is recognized in equity. Disposals of equity investments to
non-controlling interests result in gains and losses that are also recognized in equity.
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When the Group ceases to have control, any interest retained in the subsidiary is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or
loss. The initial carrying amount for the purpose of subsequently accounting for the
interest retained as an associate, joint venture or financial asset is the fair value. In
addition, any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Upon adoption in 2010 of PAS 27 (Revised 2008), the Group has changed its
accounting policy for transactions with non-controlling interests and the accounting for
loss of control. It has applied the new policy prospectively as required by the standards
beginning January 1, 2010. As a result, no adjustments were necessary to any of the
amounts previously recognized and reported in the consolidated financial statements.

Before the adoption of the revised PAS 27, transactions with non-controlling interests
were treated as transactions with parties external to the Group. As such, disposals of
resulted in gains or losses in profit or loss and purchases resulted in the recognition of
goodwill. On disposal or partial disposal, a proportionate interest in reserves
attributable to the subsidiary was reclassified to profit or loss or directly to retained
earnings.

2.4 Segment Reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business
segments. A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment that is subject to risks and returns that are different from
those segments operating in other economic environments. The Group’s primary format for
segment reporting is based on business segments. The business segments are determined
based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to
third parties at current market prices.

2.5 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms of
the financial instrument. Financial assets other than designated and effective as hedging
instruments are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets. Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by management on
initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which the investments were acquired.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All
financial assets that are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or losses are initially recorded at fair value and transaction
costs related to it are recognized in profit or loss.
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Currently, the Group’s financial assets are categorized as follows:

(@)

)

(¢

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the
receivables. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than

12 months after the reporting period which are classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment loss, if any. Any change in their value is recognized in
profit or loss. Impairment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due to it in accordance with the original
terms of the receivables. The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the
difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash
flows.

The Group’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented as Cash
and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables, Advances to Related Parties and
Refundable Deposits (presented as part of Other Current Assets) in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand,
demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Held-to-maturity Investments

This category includes non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and a fixed date of maturity that the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are
not included in this classification. Held-to-maturity investments are included in
non-current assets section of the consolidated statement of financial position, except
those maturing within 12 months from the reporting period, which are presented as
part of current assets.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the investments are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any. Impairment loss, which is
the difference between the carrying value and the present value of estimated cash flows
of the investment, is recognized when there is objective evidence that the investment
has been impaired. Any changes to the carrying amount of the investment, including
impairment loss, are recognized in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

This category includes non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to this
category or do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of financial assets.
They are included in non-current assets under the Available-for-sale Financial Assets
account in the consolidated statement of financial position unless management intends
to dispose of the investment within 12 months from the reporting petriod.
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All available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, unless otherwise
disclosed, with changes in value recognized in other comprehensive income, net of any
effects arising from income taxes. When the asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from revaluation reserve to profit or loss and presented as a reclassification
adjustment within other comprehensive income.

Reversal of impairment loss is recognized in other comprehensive income, except for
financial assets that are debt securities which are recognized in profit or loss only if the
reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized.

All income and expenses, including impairment losses, relating to financial assets that are
recognized in profit or loss are presented in the consolidated statement of income line item
Finance Income and Finance Costs, respectively.

For investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets, fair value is
determined by reference to stock exchange-quoted market bid prices at the close of business
on the reporting period. For investments where there is no quoted market price, fair value is
determined by reference to the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same or is calculated based on the expected cash flows of the underlying net
asset base of the investment.

Non-compounding interest and other cash flows resulting from holding financial assets are
recognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of how the related carrying amount of
financial assets is measured.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial instruments expire or are transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

2.6 Merchandise Inventories and Supplies

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost incurred in bringing
each product to its present location and condition is determined as follows:

(a)  Raw materials and service parts, supplies and others — on a moving average method. The cost
of raw materials, service parts, supplies and others include all costs directly attributable
to the acquisitions, such as the purchase price, import duties and other taxes that are
not subsequently recoverable from taxing authorities.

(b)  Merchandise and finished goods, and work-in-process — on a moving average method; cost
includes direct materials and labor and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based
on normal operating capacity.

Net realizable value of finished goods and work-in-process inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Net realizable value of raw materials, service
parts, supplies and others is the current replacement cost.
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2.7 Real Estate Inventories

Real estate inventories consist of the following:
(a)  Land and Land Development Costs

Land and land development costs includes the acquisition cost of raw land intended for
future development and sale, including other costs and expenses incurred to effect the
transfer of property title are included in this account.

(b)  Property Development Costs

Property development costs include the cost of land used as a building site for a
condominium project and the accumulated costs incurred in developing and
constructing the property for sale.

Land and land development costs, and property development costs are carried at the lower of
cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

2.8 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except land, are carried at acquisition cost or construction
cost less subsequent depreciation, amortization and any impairment losses. Land held for use
in production or administration is stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major
improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and maintenance are
charged to expense as incurred. When assets are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, their
cost and related accumulated depreciation and amortization and impairment losses are
removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in income for the

period.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 to 25 years
Test, communication and other equipment 5 to 20 years
Cable system equipment 2 to 20 years
Machinery and equipment 5 to 10 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Computer system 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 2 to 5 years
Tools and equipment 2 to 3 years

Construction in progtess represents properties under construction and is stated at cost. This
includes cost of construction, applicable borrowing cost (see Note 2.18) and other direct
costs. The account is not depreciated until such time that the assets are completed and
available for use.
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Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the assets from 2 to
15 years or the term of the lease, whichever is shorter.

Fully depreciated and amortized assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in
use and no further charge for depreciation and amortization is made in respect of those
assets.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.10).
The residual values and estimated useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated statement of
income in the year the item is derecognized.

2.9 Investment Property

Investment property, which consists mainly of land and improvements and buildings and
improvements under operating lease agreements, is initially measured at acquisition cost,
including transaction costs. At the end of the reporting period, investment property is
accounted for at fair value as determined annually by independent appraisers (see Note 13).
The carrying amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position reflect
the prevailing market conditions at the end of the reporting period. Any gain or loss resulting
from either a change in the fair value or the sale or retirement of an investment property is
immediately recognized in profit or loss as Fair Value Gains (Losses) on Investment Property
under Other Operating Income in the consolidated statement of income.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

For tax purposes, investment property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from
11 to 25 years.

2.10 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities include Interest-bearing Loans, Trade and Other Payables (excluding
Output Tax Payable and Unearned Subscription Income), Advances from Related Parties and
Refundable Deposits, which are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms
of the instrument. All interest-related charges are recognized as an expense in profit or loss
under the caption Finance Costs in the consolidated statement of income.

Interest-bearing loans are recognized at proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance
charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are
charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest method and are added
to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period
in which they arise.
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Trade and Other Payables and Advances from Related Parties are initially recognized at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the consolidated statement of financial position
only when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiration.

2.11 Business Combination

Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting
(previously called “purchase method”).

The acquisition method involves the recognition of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities, including contingent liabilities, regardless of whether they are recorded in the
consolidated financial statements prior to acquisition. On initial recognition, the assets and
liabilities of the acquired subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial position at their
fair values, which are also used as the bases for the subsequent measurement in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed

(see Note 2.10).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of net identifiable assets acquired over
acquisition cost is charged directly to income.

Transfers of assets between commonly controlled entities are accounted for under historical
cost accounting.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or
groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose. The cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units are
identified according to operating segment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a subsidiary include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to it.

Prior to January 1, 2010, certain items are treated as follows as opposed to how they are now
treated based on the changes in accounting policy of the Group as a result of the adoption of
the revised PFRS 3 and PAS 27:

(a) Transaction costs directly attributable to business acquisition formed part of the
acquisition costs;

(b) 'The non-controlling interest was measured at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets;
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(¢) Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for as separate steps or
acquisitions. Any additional shares acquired of interest did not affect previously
recognized goodwill; and,

(d) Contingent consideration was recognized if, and only if, payment was probable; i.e., the
Group had a present obligation, the economic outflow was more likely than not, and a
reliable estimate is determinable. Subsequent adjustment to the contingent consideration
was recognized as an adjustment to goodwill.

2.12 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive commitment that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period, including the
risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of
similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time value of money is material,
long-term provisions are discounted to their present values using a pretax rate that reflects
market assessments and the risks specific to the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be
measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Similarly,
possible inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the recognition
criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the Group
can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is
recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision.

2.13 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue comprises revenue from the sale of goods and the rendering of services measured
by reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by the Group for goods
sold and services rendered, excluding value-added tax (VAT) and trade discounts.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group, and the costs incurred or to be incurred
can be measured reliably. In addition, the following specific recognition criteria must also be
met before revenue is recognized:

(a)  Rendering of services — Revenue is recognized when the performance of contractually
agreed services have been substantially rendered.

(b)  Sale of goods (other than sale of real estate) — Revenue is recognized when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer. This is generally when
the customer has taken undisputed delivery of goods.
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For sales involving multiple element arrangements, customers pay the bundle amount,
which includes the LCD television and the internet and/or cable subscriptions. Total
selling price is allocated among and/or between the items included in the bundle based
on the relative fair values of the separately identifiable components.

The recognition criteria for each of these components are described as follows:

o Sale of LCD television — The allocated revenue is recognized when the risks and
rewards are transferred to the buyer. These are recognized fully in the consolidated
statement of income as part of Sale of Goods.

o Rendering of services and other income from internet subscription — The allocated revenue is
initially recorded as Unearned Subscription Income under the Trade and Other
Payables in the consolidated statement of financial position at the time the internet
connection is installed and is subsequently recognized on a straight-line basis over
the two-year contract period.

o Other income — The allocated revenue is initially recorded as Unearned Subscription
Income under the Trade and Other Payables in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the time the cable connection is installed and is subsequently
recognized on a straight-line basis over the two-year contract period.

Rentals — Revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the duration of the lease
term (see Note 2.14).

Warranty and network support fee (shown as part of Rendering of Services) — Revenue from
warranty is recognized within 30 days after the actual rendering of in-warranty and
out-of-warranty services to the customers. Revenue from network support is accrued
monthly as a percentage of sales made by a third party of its products.

Sale of real estate — Revenues from sale of real estate is accounted for using the full
accrual method. Under this method, gross profit on sale is fully recognized when:

(a) the collectibility of the sales price is reasonably assured; (b) the earnings process is
virtually complete; and, (c) the seller does not have a substantial continuing
involvement with the subject properties. The collectibility of the sales price is
considered reasonably assured when: (a) the related loan documents have been
delivered to the banks: or (b) the full down payment comprising a substantial portion
(at least 25%) of the contract price is received and the capacity to pay and credit
worthiness of buyers have been reasonably established for sales under the deferred cash
payment arrangement.

Subsequent cancellations of prior years’ real estate sales are deducted from revenues
and costs of real estate sold in the year in which such cancellations are made.

Cost of real estate sales is recognized consistent with the revenue recognition method
applied. Cost of real estate property sold before completion of the development is
determined on the basis of the acquisition cost of the land plus its full development
costs, which include estimated costs for future development, as determined by technical
staff. The estimated future expenditures for the development of the real estate
property for sale are shown under the Estimated Liability for Land and Land
Development Costs account in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Interest income on loans receivables — Revenue is recognized when earned using effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a
financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss.

Commission income (shown as part of Rendering of Services) — Revenue is recognized on an
accrual basis computed based on a certain percentage of sales.

Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance — Revenue is recognized when the increase in
cash surrender value occurs and becomes determinable.

Service charges and penalties — Revenue is generally recognized on an accrual basis when the
service has been provided and when there is reasonable degree of certainty as to their

collectibility.

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents — Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues
taking into account the effective yield on the asset.

Cost and expenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income upon
consumption of the goods and/or utilization of the service or at the date they are incurred.
Expenditure for warranties is recognized and charged against the associated provision when
the related revenue is recognized. All finance costs are reported in the consolidated
statement of income, except capitalized borrowing costs which are included as part of the
cost of the related qualifying asset (see Note 2.18), on an accrual basis.

2.14 Leases

The Group accounts for its leases as follows:

(@)

Group as Lessee

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed
as incurred.
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(b)  Group as Lessor

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income from operating
leases is recognized in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease based on the substance
of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset.

2.15 Foreign Currency Transactions
(a)  Transactions and Balances

The accounting records of the Group, except BRL and Fil-Dragon, are maintained in
Philippine peso. Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into the
functional currency at exchange rates which approximate those prevailing on
transaction dates.

Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated statement of
income.

(b)  Translation of Financial Statements of Foreign Subsidiaries

The operating results and financial position of BRL and Fil-Dragon, which are
measured using the U.S. dollar and Chinese yuan renminbi, respectively, their respective
functional currencies, are translated to Philippine peso, the Group’s functional currency
as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities presented for each reporting date are translated at the closing
rate at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position;

(ii) Income and expenses for each statement of income are translated at the monthly
average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions); and,

(iii) All resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in BRL and Fil-Dragon are recognized in other comprehensive income and
taken to equity under Revaluation Reserves. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified in the consolidated statement of income as part of
the gain or loss on sale of the investment.
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The translation of the financial statements into Philippine peso should not be construed
as a representation that the U.S. dollar and Chinese yuan renminbi amounts could be
converted into Philippine peso amounts at the translation rates or at any other rates of
exchange.

2.16 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s property, plant and equipment, investment property and other

non-financial assets are subject to impairment testing. All individual assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, assets are tested for
impairment either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the assets’ or cash-generating unit’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use, based on an internal
evaluation of discounted cash flow. Impairment loss is charged pro-rata to other assets in the
cash-generating unit.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to the
recoverable amount resulting in the reversal of the impairment loss.

2.17 Employee Benefits
(a)  Post-employment Benefit

Post-employment benefit is provided to employees through a defined benefit plan. The
Group’s post-employment defined benefit pension plan covers all regular

full-time employees. The pension plan is tax-qualified, noncontributory and
administered by a trustee.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of
post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on retitement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal
obligation for any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains with the
Group, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquired.
Plan assets may include assets specifically designated to a long-term benefit fund, as
well as qualifying insurance policies.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position for
post-employment defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation (DBO) at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past
service costs. The DBO is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the DBO is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid
and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related
post-employment liability.
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Actuarial gains and losses are not recognized as an income or expense unless the total
unrecognized gain or loss exceeds 10% of the greater of the obligation and related plan
assets. The amount exceeding this 10% corridor is charged or credited to profit or loss
over the employees’ expected average remaining working lives. Actuarial gains and
losses within the 10% corridor are disclosed separately. Past service costs are
recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the changes to the post-employment
plan are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of
time (the vesting period). In this case, the past service costs are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the vesting petiod.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either: (a) terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or

(b) providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to present value.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days

(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. They are
included in Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as a result
of the unused entitlement.

2.18 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e., an asset that takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. The
capitalization of borrowing costs commences when expenditures for the asset and borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalization ceases when substantially all such activities are
complete.

2.19 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in the consolidated statement of income comprises the sum of
deferred tax and current tax not recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, if any.

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid at the
reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal
periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current
tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense in the consolidated
statement of income.
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Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method on temporary differences, at the end of
the reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain exceptions, deferred
tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the carryforward of unused tax losses
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deferred tax asset can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax rates have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss. Only changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities that relate to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity are recognized in other
comptehensive income or directly in equity.

2.20 Related Party Transactions

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the
Group and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
This includes: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under common control with the Group,

(b) associates; and, (c) individuals owning directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting
power of the Group that gives them significant influence over the Group and close members
of the family of any such individual.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance
of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.

2.21 Equity

Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the initial issuance of capital
stock and equity adjustments on mergers and acquisitions of entities under common control
in previous years. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted
from additional paid-in capital, net of any related profit tax benefits.

Treasury shares are stated at the cost of reacquiring such shares.

Revaluation reserves comprise the cumulative translation adjustments and fair value gains
(losses) on available-for-sale financial assets.

Retained earnings include all current and prior period results of operations as reported in the
consolidated statement of income.
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2.22 FEarnings per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing out profit for the year by the
weighted average number of issued and outstanding common shares during the year after
giving retroactive effect to stock dividends declared, stock split and reverse stock split during
the current year, if any.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of potential dilutive shares. As of December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008, the Parent Company does not have potential dilutive shares.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Group’s consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS require
management to make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may
ultimately differ from these estimates.

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

(a)  Held-to-maturity Investments

In classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity, such as bonds, as held-to-maturity investments, the Group evaluates its
intention and ability to hold such investments up to maturity. Management has
confirmed its intention and determined its ability to hold the investments up to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for
specific circumstances as allowed under the standards, it will be required to reclassify
the whole class as available-for-sale financial assets. In such a case, the investments
would therefore be measured at fair value, not amortized cost.

In 2009, the Group disposed of significant portion of its Held-to-maturity Investments;
hence, its remaining balance was reclassified to Available-for-sale Financial Assets
(see Note 9).
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Determining Net Realizable 1 alne of Real Estate Inventories

The Group adjusts the cost of its real estate inventories to net realizable value based on
its assessment of the recoverability of the inventories. Net realizable value for
completed real estate inventories is assessed with reference to market conditions and
prices existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Group in the light of
recent market conditions and prices existing at the reporting date and is determined by
the Group in the light of recent market transactions. Net realizable value in respect of
real estate inventories under construction is assessed with reference to market prices at
the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete
construction and less estimated costs to sell. The amount and timing of recorded
expenses for any period would differ if different judgments were made or different
estimates were utilized.

The carrying amount of the real estate inventories amounted to P1.3 billion as of
December 31, 2010 and P1.0 billion as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 (see Note 11).

Impairment of Available-for-sale Financial Assets

The determination when an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration and extent to which the faitr value of an investment is less than its
cost, and the financial health of and near-term business outlook for the investee,
including factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flows. Based on the recent evaluation of information
and circumstances affecting the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets, management
concluded that certain assets are impaired as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.
Future changes in those information and circumstance might significantly affect the
carrying amount of the assets.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets amounted to P33.7 million in
2010 and P0.2 million in 2008 (see Note 8). There is no impairment loss recognized in
2009.

Costing of Merchandise Inventories and Supplies

The Group’s inventory costing policies and procedures were based on a careful
evaluation of present circumstances and facts affecting production operations. A
review of the benchmarks set by management necessary for the determination of
inventory costs and allocation is performed regularly. Actual data are compared to the
related benchmarks and critical judgment is exercised to assess the reasonableness of
the costing policies and procedures which are currently in place and to make the
necessary revisions in light of current conditions.

Distinction Between Investment Properties and Owner-managed Properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In making
its judgment, the Group considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independent of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate
cash flows that are attributable not only to the properties but also to other assets used
in the production or supply process.
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Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rental or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production and supply of
goods and services or for administrative purposes. If these portions can be sold
separately (or leased out separately under finance lease), the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portion cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted
for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgment is
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as investment property. The Group considers each property sepatately in
making its judgment.

Operating and Finance 1eases

The Group has entered into various lease agreements as either a lessor or lessee.

Critical judgment was exercised by management to distinguish each lease agreement as
either an operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant
risk and rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure to

make the right judgment will result in either overstatement or understatement of assets
and liabilities.

Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies. Policies on recognition of provision and disclosure of contingencies are
discussed in Notes 2.12 and 28.

Principal Assumptions for Estimation of Fair Value of Investment Property

The fair value of the Group’s investment property was determined by an independent
appraiser.

The independent appraiser’s estimation of fair value is based on study and evaluation of
all the physical, economic and other value factors relative to the appraised property.
Local market conditions were investigated and the following factors were given careful
consideration: extent, character and utility of the property; sales and holding prices of
similar land; “highest and best use” of the land; depreciated replacement cost of the
buildings and other land improvements; and all adverse internal and external factors
that may tend to affect or influence the value of the property. Further, the appraisal
was performed in accordance with generally accepted valuation principles and
procedures and in conformity with the requirements of the Code of Ethics applying to
the realty services in the Philippines.
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3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year:

(@)

()

Determining Net Realizable 1 alue of Merchandise Inventories and Supplies

In determining the net realizable value of merchandise inventories and supplies,
management takes into account the most reliable evidence available at the time the
estimates are made. The Group’s core business is continuously subject to rapid
technology changes which may cause inventory obsolescence. Moteover, future
realization of the carrying amounts of inventories (P392.7 million, P83.4 million and
P219.3 million as at December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, as presented in
Note 10) is affected by price changes in different market segments of electronic devices,
plastic injection parts, broadcast equipments and accessories. Both aspects are
considered key sources of estimation uncertainty and may cause significant adjustments
to the Group’s merchandise inventories and supplies within the next financial year.

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on the
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful
lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or
commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets. The
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are analyzed in Note 12. Based on
management’s assessment as at December 31, 2010, there is no change in the estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment during the year. Actual results, however,
may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned
above.

Allowance for Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables

Allowance is made for specific and groups of accounts, where objective evidence of
impairment exists. The Group evaluates these accounts based on available facts and
circumstances, including, but not limited to, the length of the Group’s relationship with
the customers, the customers’ current credit status based on the average age of
accounts, collection experience and historical loss experience.

The carrying value of trade and other receivables amounted to P1.5 billion,

P1.2 billion and P1.0 billion as at December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively
(see Note 7). Impairment losses on trade and other receivables, as also shown in
Note 7, amounted to P9.3 million in 2010, P27.7 million in 2009 and P17.6 million in
2008.
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Valuation of Financial Assets Other than Trade and Other Receivables

The Group carries certain financial assets at fair value, which requires the extensive use
of accounting estimates and judgment. In cases when active market quotes are not
available, fair value is determined by reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same or is calculated based on the expected cash
flows of the underlying net base of the instrument. The amount of changes in fair
value would differ if the Group utilized different valuation methods and assumptions.
Any change in fair value of these financial assets and liabilities would affect profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Fair Value Gains on Available-for-sale Financial Assets of P14.5 million in 2010 and
P35.1 million in 2009, and Fair Value Losses on Available-for-sale Financial Assets of
P147.9 million in 2008 wete reported in the other comprehensive income (see Note 8).
The carrying values of the assets are disclosed in Note 8.

Estimated Liability for Land and Land Development Costs

The Group’s liability for land and development cost for future development is
determined by technical staff based on updated budgets and available information and
circumstances, as well as its previous experience. The estimated liability for land and
development costs amounted to P68.3 million as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
(see Note 11).

Allocation of Income Among Sale of Goods, Rendering of Services and Other Income

The Group allocates the income coming from its bundled sales, which is composed of
LCD television and internet and/or cable subscriptions, based on the estimated selling
price of each revenue component. Management believes that the allocated selling
prices represent the relative fair value of each component.

Reserve for Warranty Costs

The Group offers a one-year warranty for each consumer electronic product sold.
Management estimates the related provision for future warranty costs based on a
certain percentage of sales, as determined based on historical warranty claim
information as well as recent trends that might suggest that past cost information may
differ from expectations. Warranty costs also include the actual cost of materials used
in repairing the electronic products.

Provisions for warranty claims recognized amounted to P35.7 million in 2010,

P26.3 million in 2009 and P11.4 million in 2008. As of December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008, the outstanding balance of Reserve for Warranty Costs amounted to

P23.4 million as of December 31, 2010 and P12.8 million as of December 31, 2009 and
2008 (see Note 10).
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Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assets

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets, which management assessed may be fully
utilized within the next two to five years, as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 is
disclosed in Note 23.2.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s policy on estimating the impairment of non-financial assets is discussed in
Note 2.16. Though management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation
of fair values reflected in the consolidated financial statements ate appropriate and
reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the
assessment of recoverable values and any resulting impairment loss could have a
material adverse effect on the results of operations.

Based on management’s assessment, there were no impairment losses recognized on
property, plant and equipment, investment property and other non-financial assets in
2010, 2009 and 2008.

Post-employment Benefit

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of post-employment benefit is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such
amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 22.2 and include, among others,
discount rates, expected return on plan assets and salary increase rate. In accordance
with PFRS, actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and
amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense
and recorded obligation in such future periods.

The estimated present value of the retirement benefit obligation amounted to
P91.2 million, P71.6 million and P74.6 million as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008, respectively, while the fair value of plan assets as of those dates amounted to
P239.4 million, P210.7 million and P163.5 million, respectively (see Note 22.2).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

4.1 Business Segments

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the
nature of products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business
unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The Group’s different
business segments are as follows:

(a)  Broadband services segment is presently engaged in providing data transport services,

including audio and video, and connectivity through its broadband cable infrastructure;
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(b))  Manufacturing and related support services segment is engaged in the business of
manufacturing plastic injection molding parts and rendering of after sales service

operations as the recognized authorized Service Network for products of a third party
(see Note 5);

(¢)  Real estate segment activities include leasing and development and sale of industrial and
other real estate properties;

(d)  Trading segment is involved in the sale of plastic resins, professional audio and video
equipment and peripherals, and mobile phones and LCD televisions; and,

(¢)  Investing, financing and others segment is presently engaged in the business of fund
investments, automotive and consumer financing and credit extension.

Segment accounting policies are the same as the policies described in Note 2.4.
4.2 Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets used by each business segment and consist
principally of operating cash, receivables, inventories and property, plant and equipment, net
of allowances and provisions. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist
principally of accounts, wages, taxes currently payable and accrued liabilities.

4.3 Intersegment Transactions

Segment revenues, expenses and performance include sales and purchases between business
segments, which are eliminated in the consolidation.

The following tables present certain assets and liability information regarding business
segments as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 and the related revenue and profit
information for the years then ended (in thousands).

Investing,
Broadband Related Financing
Services Support Services Real Estate Trading and Others Total
2010
SEGMENT RESULTS
Sales to external customers P 390,869 P 305,540 P 332299 P 1,617,073 P 64,286 P 2,710,067
Intersegment sales - 5471 34133 28,032 15,386 83,022
Total revenues 390,869 311,011 366,432 1,645,105 79,672 2,793,089
Cost of sales, services and rentals 260,188 226,555 211,763 1,219,577 - 1,918,083
Other operating expense 38,697 20,929 92,545 316,101 23,046 491,318
Operating profit 91,984 63,527 62,124 109,427 56,626 383,688
Finance income 4,333 7,924 22,858 2,713 9,057 46,885
Finance costs ( 2,625) ( 1,194) ( 10,138) ( 13,984) ( 57,458) ( 85,399)
Other gains (losses) — net - - 18,292 21 ( 2,330) 15,983
Profit before tax 93,692 70,257 93,136 98,177 5,895 361,157
Tax expense ( 21457) ( 12,842) ( 27,112) ( 52,142) ( 9,098) ( 122,651)
Profit — continuing operation 72,235 57,415 66,024 46,035 ( 3,203) 238,506
Loss — discontinued operation - ( 17,061) - - - ( 17,061)
Net profit (loss) for the year P 72,235 P 40,354 P 66,024 P 46,035 (P 3,203) P 221,445
SEGMENT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
Total assets P 762,404 P 22! P 6345462 P 1,787,307 P 8145375 P 17,870,770

Total liabilitics P 211,242 P 215015 P 2,340,528 P 1,562,209 P 642,037 P 4,971,031




2010

OTHER SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization

Impairment losses
Other non-cash expenses
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SEGMENT RESULTS

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Total revenues

Cost of sales, services and rentals
Other operating expense (income)

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs
Other gains — net

Profit (loss) before tax
Tax expense

Profit — continuing operation
Loss — discontinued operation

Net profit (loss) for the year

SEGMENT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

OTHER SEGMENT
INFORMATION
Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment losses
Other non-cash expenses
2008
SEGMENT RESULTS

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Total revenues

Cost of sales, services and rentals
Other operating expense (income)
Operating profit

Finance income

Finance costs
Other gains — net

Profit before tax
Tax expense (income)

Profit — continuing operation
Loss — discontinued operation

Net profit (loss) for the year

SEGMENT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

OTHER SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment losses

Other non-cash expenses
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Investing,
Broadband Related Financing
Services Support Services Real Estate Trading and Others Total

P 42427 P 7,701 P 4,053 2,037 P 393 P 56,611
49,307 11,553 5351 9,826 155 76,372

32,015 - - 10,909 - 42,924
- - ( 5,631) - - ( 5,631)

P 307,685 P 489,087 P 318,235 1,121,807 P 87,163 P 2,323,978
- 1,677 20,341 1,000 25723 48,741

307,685 490,764 502,094 1,122,807 112,886 2,372,719

213,082 385,354 196,311 842,746 - 1,637,493

54,056 105,372 55,986 125,938 23,904 365,257

40,547 38 86,279 154,123 88,084 369,969

7,073 4,797 19,742 2,684 1,601 35,898

20,007) ( 6,024) ( 3,199) ( 8.435) ( 82,072) ( 119,737)

- - 1412 - - 1,412

27,613 ( 1,189) 104,234 148,372 8513 287,542

7982) ( 3,264) ( 23,597) ( 31,765) ( 5,400) ( 72,009)

19,631 ( 4,453) 80,637 116,607 3,113 215,533

- ( 2,690) - - - ( 2,690)

P 19,631 (P 7,143) P 80,637 116,607 P 3113 P 212,843
P 777,361 P 822,899 P 6,861,492 540,242 P 12,505,255 P 21,507,249
P 221,409 P 237,776 P 1,968,163 137,107 P 783,963 P 3,348,418
P 36,946 P 5942 P 5,353 1538 P 100,585 P 150,364
44,080 7,375 8,504 3,263 133 63,355

18,955 3,637 - 14,079 - 36,671

- 15,836 13,869 3,290 167,566 200,561

P 281,742 P 474,889 P - P 759,589 P 107,380 P 1,623,600
- 3,201 17,200 178 154,879 175,458
281,742 478,090 17,200 759,767 262,259 1,799,058

224,769 399,979 32,476 621,488 - 1,278,712

47824 ( 28,554) (. 55,942) 85,954 37743 87,025

9,149 106,665 40,666 52,325 224,516 433,321

1,844 7,675 5,996 2,206 33,004 50,945

4973) ( 14,189) ( 1,273) ( 2,131) ( 26,473) ( 48,039)

- - - - 110 110

6,020 100,151 45,389 52,400 231,377 436,337

3,407) ( 40,060) 47,556 ( 6,626) (. 8,699) ( 11,236)

2,613 60,091 92,945 45,774 222,678 425,101

- ( 31,374) - - - ( 31,374)

P 2,613 P 8,71 P 92,945 45774 P 222,678 P 393,72

P 866,884 P 878,561 P 6,669,941 355,49 P 313,655 P 16,084,538
P 08,993 P 240,861 P 2,071,142 P 178,238 P 735392 P 3,534,626
P 33,930 P 11073 P 177,759 P 1,867 P 40 P 224,669
48,457 18,293 6,640 1,884 149 75,423

4,038 15,748 - 8,090 - 27,876

- 319 1,502 1,728 19,757 23,306



-32-

The total segment balances presented for the Group’s operating segments reconciled to the
Group’s consolidated balances as presented in the consolidated financial statements are as
follows (in thousands):

Segment Intercompany Consolidated
Totals Accounts Balances
2010
Revenues P 2,793,089 (P 83,022) P 2,710,067
Net profit for the year 221,445 5,258 226,703
Total assets 17,870,770  ( 7,228,324) 10,642,446
Total liabilities 4,971,031 ( 2,440,533) 2,530,498
Other segment information:
Capital expenditures 70,700  ( 13,899) 56,801
Depreciation and amortization 68,449 7,140 75,589
Impairment losses 12,527 30,397 42924
Other non-cash expenses ( 57,545) 51914 ( 5,631)
2009
Revenues P 2,372,719 (P 48,741) P 2,323 978
Net profit for the year 212,843 13,883 226,276
Total assets 21,507,249 ( 11,690,069) 9,817,180
Total liabilities 3,348,418 ( 1,358,310) 1,990,108
Other segment information:
Capital expenditures 150,364  ( 103,667) 46,697
Depreciation and amortization 63,355 11,644 74,999
Impairment losses 36,671 ( 8,9306) 27,735
Other non-cash expenses 200,561  ( 176,677) 23,884
2008
Revenues P 1,799,058 (P 190,587) P 1,608,471
Profit for the year 393,727 ( 125,015) 268,712
Total assets 16,084,538 ( 6,767,229) 9,317,309
Total liabilities 3,534,626 ( 1,706,741) 1,827,885
Other segment information:
Capital expenditures 224,669  ( 162,264) 62,405
Depreciation and amortization 75,423 3,950 79,373
Impairment losses 27,876 ( 10,103) 17,773
Other non-cash expenses 23,306 31,605 54911

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As mentioned in Note 1.2, Kita and SLC ceased the operations of their plastic injection
manufacturing business as of December 31, 2010. Termination benefits paid to employees
who accepted voluntary redundancy amounted to P1.1 million in 2010 and P9.7 million in
2009 (see Note 22.1). The results of operations of the discontinued operations of the Group
pertaining to the plastic injection manufacturing division are presented in the consolidated
statements of income under the loss from Discontinued Operations account.

Machinery and equipment related to the discontinued operations of Kita are still presented as
part of Property, Plant and Equipment account as of December 31, 2010 as their carrying
values as of that date are not material (see Note 12).
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Certain machinery and equipment of SL.C with total carrying amounts of P12.1 million as of
December 31, 2009 were reclassified as Non-current Assets Held for Sale in the 2009
consolidated statement of financial position. The fair value was determined as the amount
for which the assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s
length transaction. These assets were subsequently sold to third parties for P9.7 million in
June 2010. At the time of sale, the assets had carrying value of P9.2 million. The resulting
gain related to the sale of these assets is presented as part of Miscellaneous under Other
Operating Income in the 2010 consolidated statement of income (see Note 19).

The analysis of the revenue, expenses and tax expense of the discontinued operations for the
years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 are shown below.

Notes 2010 2009 2008

Sales of goods P 19,912,861 P 163,518,013 P 157,487,826
Cost of sales 18.1 (_31,736,150) (__144,512497) (__154,537,641)
Gross profit (loss) (__11,823,289) 19,005,516 2,950,185
Other operating income (expenses):

General and administrative

expenses 20 ( 9271,158) (  22,026,940) ( 24,314,367)
Selling and distribution costs 20 ( 413,308) ( 4,304,982) (  3,893,368)
Other operating income - net 19 2,823,829 5,131,973 3,584,148

(__6,860,637) (__ 21,199949) (__24,623,587)

Other income (charges): 21
Finance income 2,891,714 2,530,159 4,198,669
Finance costs ( 653,326) ( 3,878,327) (__10,261,715)
2,238,388  ( 1,348,168) (___6,063,046)
Loss before tax ( 16,445,538) ( 3,542,601) ( 27,736,447)
Tax income (expense) 23 ( 615,115) 852,942 (__ 3,637,363)
Loss from discontinued operations (P_17,060,653) (P 2,689,659) (P _31,373,810)

The net cash flows attributable to the operating, investing, and financing activities of
continuing and discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2010 are shown
below.

2010
Continuing Discontinued Total

Net Cash From (Used in) Operating Activities (P 64,190,106) P 21,911,041 (P 42,279,065)

Net Cash From (Used in) Investing Activities  ( 26,686,111) 3,033,588 ( 23,652,523)
Net Cash From (Used in) Financing Activities 444,169,750 ( 20,146,0306) 424,023,714
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate

Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents ( 1,119.803) - ( 1,119.803)
Net increase in Cash and Cash equivalents 352,173,030 4,798,593 356,972,323
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,248,783,034 14,359,111 1,263,142,145

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year P 1,600,956,764 P 19,157,704 P 1,620,114,468
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The net cash flows attributable to the operating, investing, and financing activities of
continuing and discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2009 are shown

below.
2009

Net Cash From Operating Activities P 70,577,320 P 27,895,020 P 98,472,340
Net Cash From (Used in) Investing Activities  ( 21,143,514) 350,124 ( 20,793,390)
Net Cash From (Used in) Financing Activities 113,798,516 ( 36,956,056) 76,842,460
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate

Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents ( 10,044.847) 202,606 ( 9.842.241)
Net increase (dectrease) in Cash and

Cash equivalents 153,187,475 ( 8,508,3006) 144,679,169
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,074,392,727 44,070,249 1,118,462,976
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year P 1,227,580,202 P 35,561,943 P 1,263,142,145

The net cash flows attributable to the operating, investing, and financing activities of
continuing and discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2009 are shown

below.
2008

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities P 48,561,788 (P 28,112,326) P 20,449,462
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities ( 168,698,201) ( 1,818,578) ( 170,516,779)
Net Cash From Financing Activities 9,420,646 18,743,322 28,163,968
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate

Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents 33,262,000 112,532 33,374,532
Net decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents ( 77,453,767) ( 11,075,050) ( 88,528,817)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,168,178,696 38,813,097 1,206,991,793
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year P 1,090,724,929 P 27,738,047 P 1,118,462,976

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as of December 31:

2010 2009 2008
Cash on hand and in banks P 509,181,468 P 318,176,809 P 259,919,934
Short-term placements 1,110,933,000 944,965,336 858,543,042

P 1,620,114,468 P 1,263,142,145 P 1,118462,976

Cash in banks generally earn interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

Short-term placements are made for varying periods of between 1 to 96 days and earn
effective interest ranging from 0.8% to 6.0% per annum in 2010, 0.5% to 8.0% per annum in
2009 and 3.0% to 9.0% per annum in 2008.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This account is composed of the following:

Notes 2010 2009 2008
Current:
Trade receivables 26.1 P 658,787,111 P 492346,538 P 282,072,386
Advances to suppliers 216,493,690 - -
Finance receivables 26.4 67,984,157 70,966,344 67,509,623
Other receivables 77,375,904 69,467,339 78,691,599
1,020,640,862 632,780,221 428,273,608
Allowance for impairment ( 129,657,216) ( 131,494,933) (___ 115,068,504)
890,983,646 501,285,288 313,205,104
Non-current:
Trade receivables 26,579,435 40,460,934 11,915,023
Finance receivables 163,937,334 181,693,263 202,291,234
Cash surrender value of
investment in life insurance 15 450,394,432 457,608,611 452,684,719
640,911,201 679,762,808 666,890,976
P 1,531 P 1,181,048,096 P_ 980,096,080

All of the Group’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indicators of
impairment. Certain trade and other receivables, which are mostly due from small business
customers, were found to be impaired, hence, adequate amount of allowance for impairment
have been recognized.

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment at beginning and end of 2010, 2009 and
2008 is shown below.

Note 2010 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of year P 131,494,933 P 115,068,504 P 120,532,570
Reversals of impairment losses 21.1 ( 11,104,219) ( 8,488,254) ( 7,879,232)
Impairment losses during the year 21.2 9,266,502 27,735,676 17,603,434
Write-off of receivables - ( 2,820,993) 15,188,268
Balance at end of year P 129,657,216 P 131,494933 P 115,068,504

Trade receivables include amounts due from the Group’s real estate buyers arising from the
sale of industrial lots and condominium units. The title to the real estate properties remain
with the Group until such time that the Group fully collects its receivables from the real
estate buyers. Trade receivables from sale of condominium units are measured at amortized
cost and bear effective interests ranging from 9.8% to 18.0% depending on the terms of
payment.

Interest rates on finance receivables range from 7.5% to 30.0% in 2010 and 7.5% to 18.0% in
2009 and 2008. Certain finance receivables are secured by real estate properties and shares of
stock of the borrowing companies which are owned by a related party (see Note 26.4).
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Cash surrender value of investment in life insurance pertains to insurance policies purchased
by BRL for certain directors of the Parent Company. The investment in life insurance is
accounted for under the cash surrender value method. Under this method, the initial cash
surrender value of the insurance policies is recognized immediately in the consolidated
statements of income (see Note 19). The difference between the initial cash surrender value
and the premiums paid represents insurance service fees which are recorded as Prepaid
insurance under the Other Non-current Assets account and is amortized over a period of
ten years (see Note 14).

The cash surrender value of the investment in life insurance is used as collateral for
interest-bearing loans obtained by BRL.

The balance of Other Receivables as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 includes
interest-bearing cash advances granted by Starworld in 2004 amounting to P23.5 million to a
third party which is secured by the third party’s stockholdings in a certain company. The
proceeds were used to finance the working capital requirements of Land Registration
Authority Systems, Inc. (LARES). In 2008, an agreement with the third party was executed
specifying the payment terms for both principal and interest.

Other Receivables as at the end of 2008 also included unsecured, noninterest-bearing cash
advances granted by Starworld to LARES, amounting to P6.0 million, to finance the lattet’s
operations and expenses pertaining to the arbitration proceedings with the Land Registration
Authority (LRA). The P6.0 million advances to LARES were collected in full in 2009

(see Note 28.1).

The net carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are considered a reasonable
approximation of their fair values (see Note 30.1).

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

This account comprises the following available-for-sale financial assets:

2010 2009 2008
Current:
Investments in foreign
cutrency-denominated bonds P 172,263,491 P 305,804,353 P 63,519,015
Allowance for impairment ( 33,657,338) - -
138,606,153 305,804,353 63,519,015
Non-current:
Club shares 13,095,000 9,030,000 8,670,000
Equity securities 8,580,000 8,580,000 8,580,000
Others 1,436,518 1,396,518 1,216,518
Allowance for impairment ( 11,004,991) ( 11,004,991) ( 11,004,991)
12,106,527 8,001,527 7,461,527

P 150,712,680 P 313,805,880 P__ 70,980,542
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The movements in the allowance for impairment as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
are as follows:

Note 2010 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of year P 11,004,991 P 11,004,991 P 10,834,991
Impairment loss duting the yeat 21.2 33,657,338 - 170,000
Balance at end of year P 44,662,329 P 11,004,991 P 11,004,991

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of available-for-sale financial assets is shown below.

Notes 2010 2009 2008

Balance at beginning of year P 313,805,880 P 70,980,542 P 396,059,846
Disposals (  145,624,585) ( 20,944,780) ( 11,870,863)
Impairment losses during the year 21.2 ( 33,657,338) - ( 170,000)
Reclassification from (to)

held-to-maturity investments 9 - 153,411,308  ( 165,185,417)
Fair value gains (losses) — net 24.2 14,474,181 35,128,701 (  147,853,024)
Additions 1,714,554 75,230,109 -
Balance at end of year P 150,712,692 P 313,805,880 P __ 70,980,542

Investments in foreign currency-denominated bonds were used as collaterals for
interest-bearing loans of BRL (see Note 15).

Investment in equity securities pertains to the Parent Company’s 33% ownership interest in
the common stock of Sony Philippines, Inc. (SPI). The Joint Venture Agreement (JVA)
executed in 1997 with Sony Corporation of Japan covering the Parent Company’s investment
in SPI expired on May 8, 2005 in which the Parent Company received a formal notice of the
expiry of the JVA on April 11, 2005. The Parent Company and Sony Corporation have both
agreed to pursue negotiations for an equitable settlement of all matters relating to the JVA
and its expiration. As a result of these events, the Parent Company determined that it no
longer has significant influence over the investee company. Consequently, in 2005, the
Parent Company reclassified its remaining investment in shares of stock of SPI with total cost
of P8,580,000 to Available-for-sale Financial Assets. The Parent Company’s investment in
SPI is fully provided with allowance for impairment loss as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008.

Impairment losses recognized on the Group’s Available-for-sale Financial Assets are
presented as patt of Finance Costs in the 2010 and 2008 consolidated statements of income
(see Note 21.2).

The fair values of the Group’s investments in club shares, which represents proprietary
membership club shares, as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 have been determined
directly by reference to published prices in active markets.
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HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

In 2008, the Group reclassified its investments in foreign currency-denominated bonds
(previously classified as available-for-sale financial assets in the 2007 consolidated statement
of financial position) as held-to-maturity investments (see Note 8) as allowed under the
amendments to PAS 39, and PFRS 7, which was effective from July 1, 2008. These
investments in bonds had a total fair value of P165.2 million when the reclassification was
made on October 31, 2008; maturities range from 6 to 493 months and interest range from
8.00% to 11.75%. As of December 31, 2008, these investments had a total carrying amount
of P161.3 million and are presented under the non-current assets section of the 2008
consolidated statement of financial position.

In 2009, the Group disposed of a significant portion of its held-to-maturity investments.
Accordingly, management reclassified the remaining held-to-maturity investments with total
carrying amount of P125.2 million back to Available-for-sale Financial Assets to comply with
PEFRS. The fair value of the investments at the time of reclassification on August 31, 2009
amounted to P153.4 million. The reclassification resulted in a gain of P28.2 million, which is
presented as Fair Value Gain on Reclassification of Financial Assets in the 2009 consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

MERCHANDISE INVENTORIES AND SUPPLIES

The details of this account are shown below.

Note 2010 2009 2008
Merchandise and finished goods 18.1 P 412,507,056 P 62,462,687 P 174,848,218
Work-in-process 18.1 2,256,191 1,665,047 6,023,600
Raw materials 18.1 10,757,863 20,252,525 26,812,225
Service parts, supplies and others 57,097,648 48,866,353 49,504,835
482,618,758 133,246,612 257,188,878
Allowance for inventory obsolescence ( 89,909,514) ( 49,805,684) ( 37,927,950)

P 392,709,244 P __ 83440928 P 219,260,928

The movements in allowance for inventory obsolescence are as follows:

Note 2010 2009 2008

Balance at beginning of year P 49,805,684 P 37927950 P 40,674,114
Allowance for inventory

obsolescence from newly

acquired subsidiary 51,343,691 - -
Reversals of allowance for

inventory obsolescence 18.1 ( 19,184,724) ( 1,796,955) ( 10,860,332)
Loss on inventory obsolescence 18.1 7,944,863 15,765,265 8,114,168
Write-off of inventory previously

provided with allowance - ( 2,090,576) -
Balance at end of year P 89,909,514 P 49,805,684 P 37,927,950

The allowance for inventory obsolescence from newly acquired subsidiary in 2010 mainly
pertains to the beginning balance of the allowance for inventory obsolescence of Mytel, a
newly acquired subsidiary.
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In 2010, Mytel reversed a portion of the inventory write-down recognized in 2009 amounting
to P8.1 million following the sale of the inventory items. The reversal is included as part of
Cost of Sales in the 2010 consolidated statement of income (see Note 18.1).

SLC’s and Kita’s inventory write-down with no previous allowance for inventory
obsolescence amounted to P2.0 million and P5.9 million, respectively, in 2010 and is

presented as Loss on inventory obsolescence on discontinued operations under Cost of Sales
in the 2010 consolidated statement of income.

REAL ESTATE INVENTORIES

This account is composed of:

2010 2009 2008
Land and land development costs:
Land P 46,985,838 P 60,940,229 P 152,664,544
Land development costs 36,046,751 104,735,932 259,366,856
83,032,589 165,676,161 412,031,400
Allowance for impairment ( 2,022,800) ( 2,022.800) ( 2,022 .800)
81,009,789 163,653,361 410,008,600
Property development costs -
Construction in progress
and development costs 1,246,993,041 883,227,677 626,941,272

P 1,328,002,830 P 1,046,881,038 P 1,036,949,872

Land and land development costs pertain to cost of land and related improvements, held by
Starworld and LIIP, which are held for sale. Property development costs pertain to cost of
land used as a building site and the accumulated construction costs of the condominium
building project being developed by ZTC and Fil-Dragon which are also for sale.

The allowance for impairment was the amount recognized in 2005 pertaining to the estimated
cost of parcels of land and land development costs which may not be fully realized as a result
of the Group’s long-outstanding claims against the seller for the transfer of title to the name
of LIIP. There were no additional impairment losses recognized in 2010, 2009 and 2008.

Under its registration with the Board of Investments, Starworld shall develop

118 hectares of land in its development project located in Calamba Premiere International
Park (CPIP) in Bo. Prinza, Calamba, Laguna. As of December 31, 2010, lot areas totalling
83 hectares (65 hectares for Phase 1 and 18 hectares for Phase 2) were acquired and fully
developed.

The Group, through ZTC, has initiated the planning and construction of the

Tri Towers condominium building. The construction was started by SMC in 2005. The
accumulated construction costs (including cost of the land) were eventually transferred to
Z'TC. As of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the construction of Tower 1 which started
in 2007, 1s fully completed. The construction of Towers 2 and 3 has not yet started as of
December 31, 2010.
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In October 2007, ZTC obtained its permit to sell that would allow pre-selling of
condominium units, and has entered into several construction contracts with various
contractors for the construction of the other towers. Advances made to contractors are
shown as part of the Other Current Assets account in the consolidated statements of
financial position (see Note 14).

In addition, the balances of Property Development Costs as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008 include costs incurred in the construction of the Group’s Golden Hill Project through
Fil-Dragon. The Golden Hill Project involves the development of multi-storey residential
and commercial condominium units within the ASEAN Commercial Park in Nanning City,
Guangxi Province, People’s Republic of China. In 2010, Fil-Dragon has obtained sales
permit for selling the property from the local government of the People’s Republic of China.
Pre-sale of the condominium units has been commenced for two of the residential towers in
December 2010. Customer deposits relating to the pre-selling activities in 2010 are shown as
part Trade and Other Payables in the 2010 consolidated statement of financial position

(see Note 106).

Fil-Dragon’s land use right, included as part of the Property Development Costs account,
with a carrying amount of RMB15.2 (P103.3 million) as of December 31, 2010 is pledged as
collateral for interest-bearing loans obtained by Fil-Dragon in 2009 (see Note 15).

Presented below are the movements in the Estimated Liability for Land and Land
Development Costs presented which was established for the fulfilment of Starworld’s
projects in the development and marketing of CPIP.

2010 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of year P 68,304,647 P 068,304,647 P 27,886,345
Additions - - 60,000,000
Payments made - - ( 19,581,696)

Balance at end of year P 68,304,647 P 68,304,64 P 68,304,647
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The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses at the beginning and end of 2010, 2009 and 2008 are
shown below.

December 31, 2010
Cost
Accumulated
depreciation and
amortization
Accumulated
impairment loss

Net carrying amount

December 31, 2009
Cost
Accumulated
depreciation and
amortization
Accumulated
impairment loss

Net carrying amount

December 31, 2008
Cost
Accumulated
depreciation and
amortization
Accumulated
impairment loss

Net carrying amount

January 1, 2008
Cost
Accumulated
depreciation and
amortization
Accumulated
impairment loss

Net carrying amount

Furniture, Test,
Machinery Fixtures Communication
Buildings and and and Office Transportation Cable System and Other Computer Leasehold Tools and Construction
Land Improvements Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment System Improvements Equipment in Progress Total

P 897,854,682 P 227,896,093 P 54,731,671 P 126,509,662 P 86,920,710 P 1281118081 P 145693981 P 66,396,464 P 46,690,676 P 18202269 P 1,090,679 2,953,194,968

- 188,016,433) ( 48,742,034) ( 109,698,115) ( 70,628,188) ( 578,531,307) ( 88,187,124) ( 63,558,745) 42,916,185) ( 16,047,865) - 1,171,325,996)

- - - - - ( 350,000,000) - - - - - 350,000,000)
P 897,854,682 P 39,879,660 P 5,989,637 P 16,811,547 P 16,292,522 P 352,586,774 P 57,506,857 P 2,837,719 P 3,774,491 P 2,244,404 P 1,090,679 1,396,868,972
P 897,854,682 P 241,450,800 P 71,660,520 P 125,625714 P 78,682,842 P 1246598385 P 121,166,643 P 65,101,020 P 43145046 P 16,551,005 P 521,261 2,908,358,908

- 143,965,176) ( 71,434,898) ( 108,671,988) ( 65,651,485) ( 537,711,107) ( 82,068,142) ( 61,590,859) 39,275,825) ( 15,244,996) - 1,125,614,476)

- 35,000,000) - - - ( 350,000,000) - - - - - 385,000,000)
P 897,854,682 P 62,485,714 P 225,622 P 16,953,726 P 13,031,357 P 358,887,278 P 39,098,501 P 3,511,061 P 3,869,221 P 1,306,009 P 521,261 1,397,744,432
P 897,854,682 P 241,233,694 P 143244219 P 121,627,714 P 76,863,644 P 1220733104 P 113,525,125 P 63,735,066 P 39,841,558 P 15945039 P 2,627 2,934,607,372

. 133,384,040) ( 130,585,662) ( 102,273,939) ( 57,521,708) ( 499,677,089) ( 77,504,658) ( 50,431,327) 36,523,222) ( 14,558,503) - 1,111,460,148)

- 35,000,000) - - - ( 350,000,000) - - - - - 385,000,000)
P 897,854,682 P 2,849,654 P 12,658,55 P 19,353,775 P 19,341,936, P 371,056,015 P 36,020,46 P 4,304,639 P 3318336 P 1,386,536 P 2,62 1,438,147,224
P 897,854,682 P 240,161,515 P 142,173,590 P 110,701,600 P 70,243,765 P 1187347,152 P 111,482,648 P 61929213 P 38221,302 P 14759461 P 2,627 2,874,877,645

. 120,631,439) ( 128,831,970) ( 95,666,773) ( 53,349,960) ( 458,643,067) ( 72,319,021) ( 56,730,284) 34,648,817) ( 13,617,345) . 1,034,438,676)

- 35,000,000) - - - ( 350,000,000) - - - - - 385,000,000)
P 897,854,682 P 84,530,076 P 13,341,620 P 15,034,82 P 16,893,805 P 378,704,085 P 39,163,62 P 5198929 P 3,572,575 P 1,142,116 P 2,62 1,455,438,969
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2010, 2009 and 2008 of property, plant and equipment is shown below.

Balance at January 1, 2010,
net of accumulated
depreciation, amortization
and impairment loss

Additions

Reclassification

Disposals

Depreciation and amortization
charges for the year

Balance at December 31, 2010
net of accumulated
depreciation, amortization
and impairment loss

Balance at January 1, 2009,
net of accumulated
depreciation, amortization
and impairment loss

Additions

Reclassification

Disposals

Depreciation and amortization
charges for the year

Balance at December 31, 2009
net of accumulated
depreciation, amortization
and impairment loss

Balance at January 1, 2008,
net of accumulated
depreciation, amortization
and impairment loss

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation and amortization
charges for the year

Balance at December 31, 2008
net of accumulated
depreciation, amortization
and impairment loss

Furniture, Test,
Machinery Fixtures Communication
Buildings and and and Office Transportation Cable System and Other Computer Leasehold Tools and Construction
Land Improvements Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment System Improvements Equipment in Progress Total
P 897,854,682 62,485,714 P 225622 P 16,953,726 P 13,031,357 P 358,887,278 P 39,098,501 P 3,511,061 P 3,869,221 P 1,306,009 P 521,261 1,397,744,432
981,174 3,481,384 7,958,815 7,590,358 34,503,392 24,534,937 1,343,937 3,550,618 2,034,923 569,418 86,548,956
- - 2,852,497 - - - - - - - - 2,852,497
- 14,556,893) - 120,003) 11,041) - - - - - 14,687,937)
- 9,030,335) ( 569,866) (. 7.980,991) 4318,152) ( 40,803,896) (. 6,126,581) 2,017,279) (. 3,645,348) ( 1,096,528) = 75,588,976)
P 897,854,682 39,879,660 P 5,989,637 P 16,811,547 P 16,292,522 P 352,586,774 P 57,506,857 P 2,837,719 P 3,774,491 P 2,244,404 P 1,090,679 1,396,868,972
P 897,854,682 72,849,654 P 12,658,557 P 19353775 P 19,341,936 P 371,056,015 P 36,020,467 P 4304639 P 3318336 P 1,386,536 P 2,627 1,438,147,224
- 203,108 394,120 4,626,568 2,045,531 25,865,281 7,641,518 1,365,953 3,303,488 732,432 518,634 46,696,633
- - ( 12,090,324) - - - - - - - - 12,090,324)
- - 9227) ( 1,000) - - - - - - 10,227)
- 10,567,048) ( 736,731) 7,017,390) 8,355,110) ( 38,034,018)  ( 4,563,484) 2,159,531) ( 2,752,603) ( 812,959) = 74,998,874)
P 897,854,682 62,485,714 P 225,622 P 16,953,726 P 13,031,357 P 358,887,278 P 39,098,501 P 3,511,061 P 3,869,221 P 1,306,009 P 521,261 1,397,744,432
P 897,854,682 84,530,076 P 13341620 P 15034827 P 16,893,805 P 378,704,085 P 39,163,627 P 5198920 P 3,572,575 P 1,142,116 P 2,627 1,455,438,969
1,072,179 1,070,629 10,926,114 9,205,019 33,385,952 2,042,477 1,806,753 1,620,166 1,185,578 - 62,404,867
- - - 323,960) - - - - - - 323,960)
= 12,752,601) ( 1,753,692) 6,607,166) 6,522,928) (. 41,034,022)  ( 5,185,637) 2,701,043) 1,874,405) ( 941,158) = 79,372,652)
P 897,854,682 72,849,654 P 12,658,557 P 19,353,775 P 19,341,936 P 371,056,015 P 36,020,467 P 4,304,639 P 3318336 P 1,386,536 P 2,627 1,438,147,224
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No additional impairment losses were recognized in 2010, 2009 and 2008 based on
management’s assessment. Based on a recent report of independent appraisers as of
December 31, 2010, the fair values of the Group’s land and building and improvements
amounted to P203.1 million. Fair value is determined by reference to market-based
evidence, which is the amount for which the assets could be exchanged between a
knowledgeable willing buyer and seller in an arm’s length transaction as at the valuation
date.

The amount of depreciation and amortization computed on property, plant and equipment
is presented as follows:

Notes 2010 2009 2008
Cost of services 18.2 P 61,817,018 P 58325498 P 52,499,225
Cost of sales 18.1 - 5,110,155 5,037,009
General and administrative
expenses 10,438,234 11,563,221 18,394,317
Selling and distribution costs - - 3,442,101
Discontinued operations 3,333,724 - -
20 P 75,588,976 P 74998874 P 79,372,652
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Group’s investment property consists mainly of land and improvements, and buildings
and improvements under operating lease agreements. These properties earn rental income,
presented as Rentals in the consolidated statements of income, and have direct costs such
as real property taxes, repairs and maintenance and utilities which are presented as part of
Cost of Rentals in the consolidated statements of income (see Note 18.3).

Prior to 2008, the Group measured its investment property at cost, less accumulated
depreciation, amortization and any impairment loss. In 2008, the Parent Company’s BOD
approved the change in accounting policy for investment property from the cost model to
the fair value model in order to present a more reliable and relevant information on the
carrying amounts of investment property. The change in accounting policy was applied
retrospectively, which resulted in an increase in the carrying amounts of investment
property as of January 1, 2008 by P1.8 billion, and a decrease in the Deficit balance as of
January 1, 2008 by P888.7 million (see Note 24.3).

Prior to 2008, ZTC's investment property was presented as patt of Real Estate Inventories,
which is stated at net realizable value as of December 31, 2007. In 2008, ZTC's BOD
approved the reclassification of those assets as investment property measured using the fair
value model. The remeasurement of the assets at fair value resulted in a gain of

P61.4 million shown as part of Fair Value Gains on Investment Property under Other
Operating Income in the 2008 consolidated statement of income (see Note 19).

The fair values of the Group’s investment property as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008 were determined based on appraisal reports dated January 4, 2011, January 11, 2010
and January 22, 2009, respectively. Management obtains annual appraisal reports on its
investment property from independent appraisers.
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The changes in the carrying amounts of investment property (after the retrospective
application of the change in measurement from the cost model to the fair value model) as
presented in the consolidated statements of financial position can be summarized as follows
as of December 31:

Land and Buildings and
Improvements Improvements Total
2010:
Balance at beginning of year P 2,831,596,567 P 785,921,294 P 3,617,517,861
Fair value gains (losses) on
investment property 53,175,228 ( 25,527,147) 27,648,081
Additions 556,979 795,716 1,352,695
Balance at end of year P 2 28 P 761,1 6. P 646,518,6.
2009 — As Restated (see Note 24.3)
Balance at beginning of year P 2,805,314,643 P 826,610,701 P 3,631,925,344
Fair value gains (losses) on
investment property 26,355,000  ( 41,491,545) 15,136,545
Write-off during the year ( 73,076) - ( 73,076)
Additions - 802,138 802,138
Balance at end of year P 2,831,596,567 P 785,921,294 P 3,617,517,861
2008 — As Restated (see Note 24.3):
Balance at beginning of year P 2,750,353,372 P 683,438,564 P 3,433,791,936
Fair value gains on
investment property 48,590,022 12,846,464 61,436,486
Additions 6,371,249 130,325,673 136,696,922
Balance at end of year P 2,805,314,643 P 826,610,701 P 3,631,925,344

Certain real estate properties owned by SMC and SC are the subject of litigations brought
up by third parties against the subsidiaries (see Note 28.4).

OTHER ASSETS

The composition of these accounts as of December 31 is shown below.

Notes 2010 2009 2008
Current:
Input VAT P 108,582,573 P 94981851 P 101,273,524
Creditable withholding taxes 66,263,869 65,526,967 76,631,574
Prepaid expenses 28,770,446 2,636,231 2,412,969
Advances to suppliers and
contractors 1 3,815,376 118,645,531 189,879,840
Refundable deposits 2,650,877 3,368,991 3,368,991
Others 32,043,738 13,926,142 2,694,137
P 242126,879 P 299,085,713 DP_ 376,261,035
Non-current:
Refundable deposits - net P 9,735,153 P 9,706,912 P 12,147,733
Prepaid insurance 7 7,907,839 11,040,916 12,742,696
Others 6,935,676 4,171,529 3,257,716

P 24,578,668 P 24919357 P 28,148,145
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INTEREST-BEARING LOANS

The details of the Group’s short-term and long-term interest-bearing loans as of December
31 are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Current P 989,502,559 P 419,206,324 P__ 458,760,609
Non-current P - P 135,742,000 P -

The current portion of the Group’s interest-bearing loans pertains to the RMB92.9 million
loan by Fil-Dragon from China Construction Bank Corporation Shenzhen Shang Zhi
Branch and Nanning Yuan Hu Branch and the following U.S. dollar-denominated loans
obtained by BRL from ING Private Bank:

Original U.S.

Date Obtained Dollar Amount Term
July 2, 2010 $ 3,078,989 One year
July 2, 2010 1,995,635 One year
July 2, 2010 1,297,574 One year
July 2, 2010 1,882,014 One year
July 2, 2010 80,934 One year

$ 8,335,146

The loans are secured by investment in cash surrender value of investment in life
insurance and all outstanding investments in foreign currency-denominated bonds

(see Notes 7, 8,9 and 11). The loans bear interest at prevailing market rates per annum
ranging 1.75% to 4.62% in 2010 and 2009 and 3.60% to 5.99% in 2008. Interest expense
arising from these loans is presented as part of Finance Costs in the consolidated
statements of income (see Note 21.2).

Fil-Dragon obtained a secured, two-year interest-bearing loan denominated in Chinese yuan
renminbi from a local bank in the People’s Republic of China amounting to

RMB92.9 million (P615.7 million) and RMB20.0 million (P132.6 million) in 2010 and 2009,
respectively. These loans are secured by Fil-Dragon’s property development cost
amounting to RMB15.2 million (P103.3 million). Further, certain related parties of the
Group entered into a guarantee contract with the creditor bank whereby the related parties
guarantee that the principal amount and related interests will be paid as the payments fall
due (see Note 26.8). None of the companies under the Group, including the Parent
Company, are included in the guarantee contract.

Certain real estate properties of Fil-Dragon are used as collaterals for the secured
interest-bearing loans (see Note 11). In addition, the creditor bank requires Fil-Dragon to
maintain a debt-to-equity ratio of not higher than 1.5:1. As of December 31, 2010,
Fil-Dragon has complied with such loan covenant.

The fair value of loans obtained approximates the carrying values since the interest rates are
repriced at market rates at the end of the reporting period (see Note 30.1).
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16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of:

Notes 2010 2009 2008

Trade payables 26.2 P 125,426,944 P 99,972,038 P 98,424,639
Accrued expenses 100,379,580 79,681,728 52,994,927
Refundable deposits 17 56,544,740 22,532,420 65,597,071
Advances from customers 11 47,918,246 17,792,746 -

Output tax payable 44,661,218 36,345,891 28,404,116
Reserve for warranty costs 23,359,511 12,828,936 12,828,388
Unearned subscription income 7,884,337 8,981,371 9,638,030
Other payables 36,488,974 44,469,817 84,748,451

P 442,663,550 P__ 322,604,948 P__ 352,635,622

Reserve for warranty costs pertains to amounts recognized by My Solid, SVC and SBC for
expected warranty claims on products sold based on their past experience of the level of
repairs and returns. In addition, provision for warranty also includes the amounts
recognized by OLC for expected warranty claims on consumer electronic products sold by
a certain company owned by the Group’s majority stockholders. The changes in the
Reserve for Warranty Costs account are as follows:

Note 2010 2009 2008

Balance at beginning of year P 12,828,936 P 12828388 P 9,367,443
Additional provision for warranty

claims during the year 20 35,696,455 26,344,466 11,405,645
Actual warranty claims

during the year ( 20,576,375) ( 22,056,293) ( 3,744,676)
Reversals duting the yeatr ( 4,589,505) ( 4,287,625) ( 4,200,024)
Balance at end of year P 23359511 P 12828936 P __ 12828388

Other payables primarily consist of output taxes payable, payroll-related liabilities, and
unearned subscription income and other revenues resulting from advances received from
customers for various services provided by the Group.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables recognized in the consolidated
statements of financial position are considered to be a reasonable approximation of their
fair values (see Note 30.1).

17. REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS

SMC has long-term refundable deposits from various tenants amounting to P13.0 million as
at December 31, 2010 that pertain to leases with terms ending in 2010 to 2012. The
refundable deposits are remeasured at amortized cost using the effective interest ranging
from 7.22% to 15.77% at the inception of the lease terms. Interest expense recognized
amounted to P0.9 million in 2010, P1.4 million in 2009 and P1.3 million in 2008 is
presented as part of Finance Costs in the consolidated statements of income

(see Note 21.2). The amortized cost of the refundable deposits amounting to

P15.3 million, P11.1 million and P9.7 million as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, is shown as a separate line item under non-current liabilities in the
consolidated statements of financial position.
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The current portion of refundable deposits is presented as part of the Trade and Other
Payables account (see Note 10).

COST OF SALES, SERVICES AND RENTALS
18.1 Cost of Sales

The details of this account are shown below.

Notes 2010 2009 2008
Merchandise and finished goods
at beginning of year 10 P 62,462,687 P _ 174848218 DP_ 134,863,612
Net purchases of merchandise
during the year 20, 26.2 1,582,453,911 709,840,593 669,532,022
Cost of goods manufactured:
Raw materials at beginning
of year 10 20,252,525 26,812,225 16,327,723
Work- in-process at
beginning of year 10 1,665,047 6,023,600 3,168,275
Net purchases of raw
materials during the year 6,759,772 83,467,501 90,124,352
Direct labor 3,709,810 30,155,527 27,375,112
Manufacturing overhead 12 16,613,479 33,187,783 39,845,604
Raw materials at end of year 10 ( 10,757,863) ( 20,252,525) ( 26,812,225)
Work-in-process at
end of year 10 ( 2,256,191) ( 1,665,047) ( 6,023,600)
35,986,579 157,729,064 144,005,241
Goods available for sale 1,680,903,177 1,042,417,875 948,400,875
Merchandise and finished goods
at end of year 10 ( 412,507,056) ( 62,462,687) ( 174,848,218)
Net provision (reversal) on
inventory obsolescence 10,18.1  ( 11,239,861) 13,968,310 ( 2,746,164)
Cost of disposed inventories - - 442921
20 P 1,257,156,260 P 993923498 DP_ 771,249,414

The allocation of cost of sales between continuing and discontinued operations is shown
below.

Note 2010 2009 2008
Continuing operations P 1,225,420,110 P 849,411,001 P 616,711,773
Discontinued operations 5 31,736,150 144,512,497 154,537,641

P 1,257,156,260 P 993923498 P 771,249,414
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18.2 Cost of Services

The following are the breakdown of direct costs and expenses from rendering of services:

2009 2008
(As Restated — (As Restated —
Notes 2010 see Note 24.3) see Note 24.3)
Salaries and employee benefits P 91,449,097 P 950675316 P 92915737
Materials and other consumables 73,058,882 85,940,616 79,959,938
Depreciation and amortization 12 61,817,018 58,325,498 52,499,225
Transponder rental and leased line 49,380,862 38,348,825 36,221,655
Communication, light and water 47,309,256 44,302,675 43,057,252
Rentals 28.3 42,954,302 42,401,829 31,401,566
Outside services 33,384,542 33,432,046 32,707,889
Transportation and travel 12,640,691 12,404,886 18,912,913
Cable services 6,696,429 6,696,429 7,232,143
Repairs and maintenance 4,567,611 9,694,408 16,898,043
Others 32,660,787 30,942,102 24.030,749
20 P 191,61 P 458,164,630 DP_ 435,837,110
18.3 Cost of Rentals
The details of this account are as follows:
2009 2008
(As Restated — (As Restated —
Notes 2010 see Note 24.3) see Note 24.3)
Rentals P 10,990,367 P 9,370,903 P 10,572,725
Outside services 9,728,407 4,338,332 4,641,417
Taxes and licenses 13 7,706,287 9,623,392 10,134,002
Utilities and communication 13 4,565,515 3,813,399 5,872,358
Repairs and maintenance 13 3,488,634 2,690,672 2,683,965
Salaries and employee benefits 1,011,864 787,500 857,946
Others 1,078,119 2,943 834 1,372,304
20 P 38,569,193 P 33568,032 P 36,134,717
19. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
The breakdown of this account is as follows:
2009 2008
(As Restated — (As Restated —
Notes 2010 see Note 24.3) see Note 24.3)
Fair value gains on
investment property 13 P 27,648,081 P 15136545 P 61,436,486
Return on retirement plan assets 33,041,153 - -
Increase in cash surrender value
of investment in life
insurance 7 17,678,362 16,172,147 13,558,294
Gain on insurance settlement 4,694,715 - -
Miscellaneous 5 7,141,136 26,905,939 27335933
P 90,203,447 P 27941,541 P_ 102,330,713
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The allocation of other operating income between continuing and discontinued
operations is shown below.

2009 2008
(As Restated — (As Restated —
Note 2010 see Note 24.3) see Note 24.3)
Continuing operations P 87,379,618 P 22809568 P 98,746,565
Discontinued operations 5 2,823,829 5,131,973 3,584,148

P 90,203,447 P 27941541 P 102,330,713

20. OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURE

The details of operating expenses by nature are shown below.

2009 2008
(As Restated — (As Restated —
Notes 2010 see Note 24.3) see Note 24.3)

Net purchases of merchandise

inventories 18.1 P 1,582,453,911 P 709,840,593 P 669,532,022
Salaries and employee benefits 221 231,327,047 248,692,436 245,167,537
Cost of real estate sold 151,396,685 282,889,925 22,470,496
Materials, supplies and other

consumables 109,721,847 226,885,785 175,357,667
Outside setrvices 97,545,658 78,622,318 73,680,066
Depreciation and amortization 12 75,588,976 74,998,874 79,372,652
Utilities and communication 72,260,992 77,035,717 76,133,320
Taxes and licenses 55,402,878 30,521,377 26,742,657
Transponder rental and leased line 48,257,021 38,348,825 36,850,372
Rentals 26.3, 28.3 44,419,377 42,401,829 46,995,595
Provision for warranty 16 35,696,455 26,344,466 11,405,645
Transportation and travel 29,924,036 28,338,500 38,813,898
Repairs and maintenance 28,229,042 26,788,502 37,446,499
Net provision (reversal) on

inventory obsolescence 18.1 ( 11,239,861) 13,968,310  ( 2,746,164)
Change in merchandise,

finished goods and

work-in-process inventories ( 338,484,611) 116,744,084  ( 46,145,858)
Miscellaneous 213,098,043 120,477,321 131,502,974

P 2,425,597,496 P 2,142,898,862 P _1,622,579,378

Items classified under the miscellaneous account primarily consist of advertising and
promotions, subcontracting services, taxes and licenses, cable services and insurance
expenses incurred by the Group.
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These expenses are classified in the consolidated statements of income as follows:

2009 2008
(As Restated — (As Restated —
Notes 2010 see Note 24.3) see Note 24.3)
Continuing operations:
Cost of sales 18.1 P 1,225,420,110 P 849,411,001 P 616,711,773
Cost of services 18.2 460,191,618 458,164,630 435,837,110
Cost of real estate sold 151,396,685 282,889,925 22,470,496
Cost of rentals 18.3 38,569,193 33,568,032 36,134,717
General and administrative

expenses 281,046,941 250,979,458 258,160,163
Selling and disttibution costs 227,552,333 97,041,397 70,519,743

2,384,176,880 1,972,054,443 1,439,834,002

Discontinued operations:

Cost of sales 18.1 31,736,150 144,512,497 154,537,641

General and administrative
expenses 5 9,271,158 22,026,940 24314367
Selling and distribution costs 5 413,308 4,304,982 3,893,368
41,420,616 170,844,419 182,745,376

P 2,425,597,496 P 2,142.898,862 P 1,622,579,378

OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
21.1 Finance Income

This account consists of the following:

Notes 2010 2009 2008
Interest income from banks 6 P 23,389,186 P 26472256 P 31,190,862
Reversal of impairment losses on
trade and other receivables 7 11,104,219 8,488,254 7,879,232
Foreign currency gains 1,372,689 1,851,732 37,942 980
Others 5,947,172 466,547 -

P 1,813,2 P 37278789 P 77,013,074

The allocation of finance income between continuing and discontinued operations is shown
below.

Note 2010 2009 2008
Continuing operations P 38,921,553 P 34,748,630 P 72,814,405
Discontinued operations 5 2,891,714 2,530,159 4,198,669

P 1,813,2 P 37278789 P 77,013,074

Interest income earned by SGI, SMFI and BRL from cash and cash equivalents amounting
to P63.1 million in 2010, P95.2 million in 2009 and P97.2 million in 2008 are presented as
Interest under Revenues account in the consolidated statements of income, as these were
generated from the entities’ primary business operations.



-571-

21.2 Finance Costs

This account consists of the following:

Notes 2010 2009 2008

Impairment losses on

available-for-sale

financial assets 8 P 33,657,338 P - P 170,000
Foreign currency losses 28,649,430 11,693,973 4,568,448
Interest expense arising

from loans 15 10,530,521 19,345,255 21,161,120
Impairment losses on trade

and other receivables 7 9,266,502 27,735,676 17,603,434
Interest amortization on

refundable deposits 17 864,519 1,386,810 1,264,997
Loss on sale of investments in

foreign currency-denominated

bonds - 59,852,713 -
Others 5,908,164 2,463,758 5,591,181

P 88,876,474 P 122478185 DP__ 50,359,180

The allocation of finance costs between continuing and discontinued operations is shown

below.
Note 2010 2009 2008
Continuing operations P 88,223,148 P 118,599,858 P 40,097,465
Discontinued operations 5 653,326 3,878,327 10,261,715
P 88876474 P 122478185 P __ 50,359,180
22. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
22.1 Salaries and Employee Benefits Expense
Expenses recognized for salaries and employee benefits are summarized below
(see Notes 20 and 26.9).
Note 2010 2009 2008
Short-term benefits P 225,608,349 P 226,961,685 P 232,064,165
Post-employment benefit 5 4,594,191 11,895,740 9,447,660
Termination benefits 1,124,507 9,745,011 3,655,712

P 231,327,047 P__ 248,692,436

P 245167537
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22.2 Post-employment Benefit

The Group maintains a tax-qualified, fully-funded and noncontributory post-employment
defined benefit plan that is being administered by a trustee covering all regular full-time
employees. Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the post-employment benefit
costs and the amount of contributions.

The amounts of total retitement benefit asset of subsidiaties that have retirement benefit
asset recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position are determined as
follows:

2010 2009 2008
Fair value of plan assets P 191,634,637 P 165,590,060 P 95,963,976
Present value of the obligation 55,578,427 46,764,337 36,020,848
Excess of plan assets 136,056,210 118,825,723 59,943,128
Withdrawal of fund* ( 10,015,049) - -
Unrecognized actuarial losses (gains) ( 51,123,206) ( 72,889.761) 23,284,732

P 74917955 P __ 45935962 P __ 36,658,396

*Withdrawal represents the amount pulled ont by Kita and SLC from the plan assets.

In 2010, Kita and SLC withdrew a portion of the plan assets amounting to P10.0 million
out of the total excess retirement fund representing the benefits paid by Kita and SL.C for
terminated employees (see Note 4). Management assessed that the remaining value of plan
assets is more than enough to cover the current and future current cost of Kita and SLC’s
remaining employees.

The amounts of retirement benefit obligation of SGI, My Solid, Mytel, SBC, ZTC and
CBHI that are recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position are
determined as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Fair value of plan assets P 47,775,051 P 45104609 P 67,553,115
Present value of the obligation 35,630,324 24,860,158 38,583,434
Excess of plan assets 12,144,727 20,244,451 28,969,681
Unrecognized actuarial gains ( 15,266,320) ( 21,729,047) ( 36,332,281)
Retirement benefit obligation P 3,121,593 P 1,484,596 P 7,362,600

Presented below are the overall historical information related to the present value of the
retirement benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets and net excess in the plan of the
Group.

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Fair value of plan assets P 239,409,688 P 210,694,669 P 163,517,091 P 152,467,439 P 151,042,443
Present value of the obligation 91,208,751 71.624.495 74,604,282 96,143,040 78,556,734
Excess in the plan P 148,200,937 P 139,070,174 P_88912809 P_ 56324399 P_ 72485709

Experience adjustments arising on plan assets amounted to P6.2 million in 2010,

P8.9 million in 2009, P2.4 million in 2008 and P2.5 million in 2007. Experience
adjustments on plan liabilities amounted to P5.9 million in 2010, P9.1 million in 2009 and
P14.8 million in 2008. Management has determined that the experience adjustments on
plan liabilities in 2007 and 2006 are not significant.
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The overall movements in the present value of the retirement benefit obligation recognized

in the books are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of year P 71,624,495 P 74,604282 P 96,143,040
Current service and interest costs 9,397,601 15,235,629 21,574,350
Benefits paid ( 3,700,345) ( 1,355,624) ( 409,282)
Actuarial gains (losses) 6,300,611 ( 16,859.792) ( 42,703,8206)
Balance at end of year P 1,208,751 P 71,624495 P 74,604,282

The overall movements in the fair value of plan assets of the Group are presented below.

2010 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of year P 210,694,669 P 163,517,091 P 152467439
Contributions paid into the plan 6,703,890 27,235,347 12,222,463
Benefits paid by the plan ( 3,700,345) ( 1,355,624) ( 409,282)
Expected return on plan assets ( 4,222,401) 8,576,874 9,148,046
Actuarial gains (losses) 29,933,875 ( 12,720,981) ( 9.911,575)
Balance at end of year P 239409,688 P _ 210,694,669 P_ 163,517,091

Actual returns on plan assets amounted to P17.2 million, P13.3 million and P8.8 million in

2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The Group expects to contribute a total of
P11.6 million to the post-employment defined benefit plan in 2011.

The plan assets consist of the following as of December 31:

2010 2009 2008
Government securities P 229,286,632 P 191,732,149 P 148,360,863
Mutual and trust funds 10,123,056 18,962,520 15,156,228
P 239.409,688 P 210,694,669 P_ 163,517,091
The amount of post-employment benefit expense recognized in the consolidated
statements of income is as follows:
2010 2009 2008
Current service cost P 6,120,469 P 7494912 P 13,787,182
Interest cost 3,277,132 7,740,717 7,787,168
Expected return on plan assets ( 4,222,401) ( 8,576,874) ( 9,148,046)
Net actuarial gains recognized
during the year ( 581,009) ( 9,807,179) ( 606,878)
Effect of asset limit - 15,044,164 10,071,003
) od 4,594,191 P 11,895,740 P 9,447,660
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For determination of the post-employment benefit obligation, the following actuarial
assumptions were used:

2010 2009 2008
Discount rates 8% - 9% 8% - 9% 8% - 11%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 6% 6% 5%
Expected rate of salary increases 9% 9% 9%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality
tables. The average remaining working life of employees before retirement at the age of 60
is 21 years for both males and females.

The overall expected long-term rate of return on assets is 6%. The expected long-term rate
of return is based on the portfolio as a whole and not on the sum of the returns on
individual asset categories. The return is based exclusively on historical returns, without
adjustments.

TAXES
23.1 Registration with Economic Zone Authorities
(a)  Registration with Clark Development Corporation (CDC)

Kita, a subsidiary, is registered with CDC under RA 7227, The Bases Conversion and
Development Act of 1992, as amended under RA 9400, An Act Amending RA 7227, as Amended,
Otherwise Known as the Bases Conversion and Development Act of 1992, and for Other Purposes. As a
registered business enterprise within the Clark Freeport Zone, Kita is exempted from
national and local taxes and is entitled to tax and duty free importation of raw materials,
equipment, household and personal items. In lieu of said taxes, Kita is subject to a 5%
preferential tax rate on its registered activities. However, the 30% in 2009 and 35% in 2008
RCIT tax rate is applied to income coming from sources other than Kita’s registered
activities.

(b)  Registration with Philippine Economic Zone Authority (PEZA)

SMC is registered with the PEZA as an Ecozone Facilities Enterprise at the Laguna
International Industrial Park — Special Economic Zone (LIIP — SEZ). As an Ecozone
Facilities Enterprise, SMC shall lease its building in LIIP — SEZ to PEZA-registered export
enterprises located therein. SMC is subject to 5% tax on gross income earned on such
facilities in lieu of all national and local taxes.

On July 1, 1998, the PEZA approved Starworld’s registration as an Ecozone developer and
operator of the CPIP — Special Economic Zone located at Bo. Parian, Calamba City.
Under the terms of the registration and subject to certain requirements, Starworld shall be
exempt from all national and local taxes and instead will be subject to the 5% preferential
tax rate on gross income after allowable deductions.
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23.2 Current and Deferred Taxes

The components of tax expense as reported in the consolidated statements of income and

consolidated statements of comprehensive income are as follows:

2009 2008
(As Restated — (As Restated —
2010 see Note 24.3) see Note 24.3)
Consolidated statements of income
Current tax expense:
RCIT at 30% in 2010 and
2009 and 35% in 2008 P 91,903,929 P 41,898,822 P23,249,270
Final taxes at 20% and 7.5% 8,917,837 7,710,318 8,151,437
Preferential taxes at 5% 2,718,628 4,336,892 863,011
Minimum corporate income
tax (MCIT) at 2% 4,269,350 865,972 4,174,555
107,809,744 54,812,004 36,438,273
Deferred tax expense (income) relating to
origination and reversal of
temporary differences 15,457,073 7.849.458 (. 27,281,979)
P 123,266,817 P 62,661,462 P 9,156,294
Consolidated statements of comprebensive income —
Deferred tax income on changes in fair value
of available-for-sale financial assets
(see Note 24.1) (04 1,110,000) (@ 150,000) (P 15,000)
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The reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory rate to tax
expense reported in the consolidated statements of income is shown below.

2009 2008
(As Restated — (As Restated —
2010 see Note 24.3) see Note 24.3)
Tax on pretax profit at 30% in 2010 and
2009 and 35% in 2008 P 109,924,527 P 87,743,905 P 106,961,489
Adjustment for income subject
to lower tax rates ( 17,302,712) ( 34,418,042) 11,905,124
Tax effects of:
Nontaxable income ( 62,238,190) ( 19,275,138) ( 7,220,575)

Benefit from previously

unrecognized NOLCO, MCIT

and deferred tax assets ( 47,588,087) ( 32,929,923) ( 16,727,970)
Nondeductible expenses and losses 9,597,237 7,009,726 8,085,502
Income (loss) of foreign subsidiary not

subject to taxes ( 5,563,691) 31,810,188 ( 16,199,869)
Unrecognized deferred taxes

from NOLCO and MCIT 4,060,303 7,018,190 5,993,055
Derecognized and unrecognized

deductible temporary

differences 4,004,029 15,170,833 ( 6,667,229)
Loss on non-recoverable

foreign currency losses 958,240 486,363 525,632
Unrecognized benefit from

write-off of receivables 3,735 4,057,815
Decrease in deferred tax assets

due to decrease in applicable

tax rates - 717 ( 81,556,680)
Others 2,935,072 44.643 -

123,2 1 62,661,462 P 9,156,294

The allocation of the tax expense relating to profit or loss from continuing and
discontinued operations in 2010 is shown below:

Note 2010 2009 2008
Continuing operations P 122,651,703 P 63,514,404 P 5,518,931
Discontinued operations 5 615,114 ( 852,942) 3,637,363
P 123,266,817 P 62,661,462 P_ 9,156,294
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The net deferred tax assets of the Parent Company and subsidiaries having a net deferred
tax asset position as of December 31 relate to the following:

2009 2008
(As Restated — (As Restated —
2010 see Note 24.3) see Note 24.3)
Deferred tax assets:
Fair value adjustments on
investment property P 23,831,400 P 23831399 P 22,612,981
Provision for warranty 4,264,982 - -
Accrued municipal taxes 2,324,032 - -
Allowance for impairment on
trade and other receivables 1,826,984 1,018,217 1,200,000
Reserve for warranty costs 1,809,462 956,903 463,111
Retirement benefit obligation 1,370,393 1,259,470 1,104,868
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 376,648 - -
Unamortized past service costs 264,916 340,650 385,322
Unamortized pre-operating expenses 162,812 217,082 -
NOLCO - 107,765 445,828
Accrued rentals — PAS 17 - 4,965 95,735
Deferred tax liabilities:
Retirement benefit asset 2,886,905) ( 496,439) 493,259
Unrealized foreign currency gain ( 537,680) - -
Deferred Tax Assets — net P 32,807,044 P 27,240,012 P__ 26,801,104

The net deferred tax liabilities of the other subsidiaries which have a net deferred tax
liability position as of December 31 relate to the following:

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for impairment on

trade and other receivables
Reserve for warranty costs
Unamortized past service costs
Deferred rent expense — PAS 17
Allowance for inventory obsolescence

NOLCO

Deferred tax liabilities:

Fair value gains on investment
propetty

Accumulated depreciation on
investment property

Retirement benefit asset

Deferred rent income — PAS 17

Changes in fair value of
available-for-sale

Unrealized foreign curtency gains

Deferred Tax Liabilities — net

2009 2008

(As Restated — (As Restated —

2010 see Note 24.3) see Note 24.3)

P 6770060 P 7818450 P 8238807
459,875 518,648

742,179 804,481 752,982

577,137 532,188 508,115

297,069 208,443 162,199

- - 385711
( 667,813,336) 707,017,615) 703,810,122)

( 119,456,850)
( 13,265,423)
( 5,348,917)

( 1,212,000)
( 10,462)

112,331,376)
9,021,525)
6,280,044)

90,000)
566,890)

106,147,291)
1,249,573)
5,370,461)

1,874.,320)

(P__798,720,443)

(P__825,464,013)

(P__812,624,346)
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Fair value gains on investment
property
Accumulated depreciation on
investment property
Retirement benefit obligation
Reserve for warranty costs
Accrued municipal taxes
Deferred rent expense — PAS 17
Change in fair value of AFS
Allowance for inventory obsolescence
Deferred rent income — PAS 17
Allowance for impairment on
trade and other receivables
Unamortized past service costs
NOLCO

Unamortized preoperating expenses

Unrealized foreign currency losses

2009 2008
(As Restated — (As Restated —
2010 see Note 24.3) see Note 24.3)
P 8,472,450) (P 2,378,563) (P 34,791,369)
7,125,475 6,184,084 ( 823,325)
6,523,441 2,795,573 ( 147,384)
( 4,657,666) ( 415,140) 223,130
( 2,324,032) - -
( 1,352,937) ( 14,965) 5,853,778
1,122,000 - -
( 445,274) 29,492 133,319
376,861 887,629 ( 4,544,031)
239,523 602,140 7,541,642
138,036 114,254 700,554
107,764 338,063 ( 819,368)
54,271 ( 217,082) -
( 18,750) ( 76,027) ( 608,925)
P 15457,073 P 7,849,458 (P__ 27,281,979)

The deferred tax income recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income pertains to the tax effect of the changes in fair value of Available-for-Sale Financial

Assets.

The movements in the Group’s recognized and unrecognized NOLCO and MCIT are as

follows:
Applied Applied
Original in in Expired Remaining Valid
Year Amount Previous Years Current Year Balance Balance Until
NOLCO:
2010 3,120,173 P 75,250 - P 75250 P 2,969,673 2013
2009 29,179,579 69,500 5,834,420 69,500 23,206,159 2012
2008 26,449,985 6,062,745 71,437 50,500 20,265,303 2011
2007 176,380,795 23,700 151,131,268 25,225,827 - 2010
235,130,532 P 6,231,195 157,037,125 P 25421,077 P 46,441,135
MCIT:
2010 4,095,361 P - - P - P 4,095,361 2013
2009 868,871 - - 868,871 2012
2008 4,174,55 71,162 3,326,116 - 777,277 2011
2007 1,875,456 6,055 - 1,869,401 - 2010
11,014,243 P 77,217 3,326,116 P 1,869,401 P 5,741,509
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The NOLCO, MCIT and other deductible temporary differences as of December 31 for
which the related deferred tax assets have not been recognized by certain entities in the
Group are shown below.

2010 2009 2008
Amount Tax Effect Amount Tax Effect Amount Tax Effect

Accumulated impairment losses on

property, plant, and equipment P 350,000,000 P 105,000,000 P 350,000,000 P 105,000,000 P 350,000,000 P 105,000,000
Allowance for impairment of

financial assets classified as loans

and receivables 120,021,728 36,006,518 105,528,652 30,158,596 98,284,975 29,485,492
NOLCO 44,866,357 14,239,113 251,122,331 75,336,699 338,611,024 101,583,309
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 29,729,592 8,918,877 47,404,857 14,221,457 35,322,425 10,596,728
Unrealized foreign currency loss (gain) 22,322,126 6,696,638 9,943,291 2,982,987 ( 6,427,131) ( 1,928,289)
Accrued municipal taxes 10,607,331 3,182,199 - - - -
Retirement benefit obligation ( 10,207,044) ( 3,062,114) 1,974,541 592,362 7,558,321 2,267,496
Other accrued expenses 7,119,287 2,135,786 - - - -

Fair value loss in investment properties 6,586,000 1,975,800 5,676,000 1,702,800 - -
MCIT 5,911,763 4,620,878 - - - -
Allowance for impairment loss on

AFS financial assets 5,420,000 1,626,000 5,460,000 1,638,000 5,320,000 1,596,000
Unamortized past service cost 1,496,952 449,086 2,077,689 623,307 2,760,646 828,194
Day-one gain ( 372,906) ( 111,872) - - - -
Amortization of pre-operating

expenses ( 5,135) ( 1,541) - - - -

P 593,496,051 P__ 181,675,368 P 779,187,361 P 232,256,208 P 844,284,522 P 253,285,508

23.3 Optional Standard Deductions

In July 2008, RA 9504 was approved giving corporate taxpayers an option to claim itemized
deduction or optional standard deduction equivalent to 40% of gross sales. Once the
option is made, it shall be irrevocable for the taxable year for which the option was made.
In 2010, 2009, and 2008, the Group opted to claim itemized deductions.

23.4 Change in Applicable Tax Rates

Effective January 1, 2009, in accordance with RA 9337, RCIT rate was reduced from 35%
to 30% and nonallowable deductions for interest expense from 42% to 33% of interest
income subjected to final tax.

EQUITY

24.1 Capital Stock

The Group has a total outstanding capital stock of P5.0 billion divided into 5,000,000,000

shares with P1 par value. As of December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, the Company’s issued
capital stock amounted to P2,030,975,000.
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24.2 Revaluation Reserves

The components of this account and its movements are as follows:

Notes 2010 2009 2008

Cumulative translation adjustments:
Balance at beginning of year P 70,778,455 P 85,204,455 (P 220,583,543)
Currency differences on
translating financial
statements of foreign

operations 2 ( 5,799,030) ( 14,426,000) 305,787,998

64,979,425 70,778,455 85,204,455

Fair value gains (losses) on
available-for-sale financial assets:
Balance at beginning of year ( 172,432,191) ( 298,230,850) 9,606,169
Reclassification adjustments for
losses recognized in

profit ot loss 49,498,034 62,432,561 5,201,422
Fair value gains (losses) — net 8 14,474,181 35,278,701 ( 313,023,441)
Gain on reclassification

of financial assets 9 - 28,237,397 -

Deferred tax income on
changes in fair value of
available-for-sale financial

assets 23 - ( 150,000) ( 15,000)
(__108,459,976) 172432191 (__298,230,850)
Balance at end of the year (P__43,480,551) (P__101,653,736) (P__213,026,395)

24.3 Prior Period Adjustments

The Retained Earnings (Deficit) balances as of January 1, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were
restated to reflect the retrospective effects of a change in the Group’s accounting policy on
investment property and to correct certain misstatements in the consolidated financial
statements.

The details of the Group’s prior period adjustments are discussed as follows:
(a)  Retrospective Effects of Change in Accounting Policy

The balances of Retained Earnings (Deficit) as of January 1, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were
restated to reflect the effects of the change in accounting policy for investment
property (see Note 13) made in 2008, as well as the adjustment made in 2010 and 2009
to reduce the fair value gains as initially reported in 2008 by certain subsidiaties, as
summarized in the succeeding section.
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January 1, January 1, January 1,
2010 2009 2008

Adjustment to previously recognized

fair value gains (P 110,510,000) (P  83,925,000) P -
Deferred tax effect on fair value

gains/adjustment 33,153,000 38,449,500 (  760,208,118)
Fair value gains — as restated - - 1,285,553,921
Reversal of accumulated depreciation

based on cost - - 403,322,840
Reversal of accumulated impairment

losses - - 69,321,594
Deferred tax effect on accumulated

depreciation based on cost - - ( 109,284,234)
Total adjustment to equity arising from

change in accounting policy (P__62,738,298) (P 45475,500) P 888,706,003

The accounting change also resulted in an increase in the Investment property
account by P1.8 billion as of January 1, 2008. On the other hand, the adjustments
made in 2010 and 2009 resulted in a decrease of P110.5 million and P83.9 million,
respectively, in the Investment property account as of December 31, 2009 and 2008
(see Note 13).

Correction of Misstatements

In 2010, the Group restated the balance of the Retained Earnings account as of
January 1, 2010 to correct certain misstatement as discussed below.

As mentioned in Note 28.4, a portion of the SMC’s land in Pililla, Rizal, is subject
to expropriation coverage under Agrarian Reform; hence, all fair value gains on
investment property previously recognized from such portion of land were
accordingly reversed by SMC as the land no longer qualifies as Investment
Property. In addition, the remaining cost of the portion of land amounting to
P3.3 million was reclassified to other non-current assets account.

In 2009, the Group recognized prior period adjustments to restate the beginning
balance of Retained Earnings as of January 1, 2009 as follows:

SE Corp. recognized retirement benefit asset at its full amount in its 2008 financial
statements. To comply with the provisions of PAS 19, SE Corp. recognized in
2009 the limit on the retirement benefit asset previously recognized. A prior
period adjustment was also made to recognize the related deferred tax liability on
the retirement benefit asset. The prior period adjustment resulted in a decrease in
the Retirement Benefit Asset account by P8.0 million and an increase in Deferred
Tax Liabilities by P3.4 million.

Starworld restated the beginning balance of its Retained Earnings account as of
January 1, 2009 to record unrecognized management fees amounting to
P4.0 million relating to 2008 operations.
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In 2008, the Group restated the balance of the Retained Earnings account as of
January 1, 2008 to correct certain misstatements as follows:

e The balances of Kita’s Deficit as of January 1, 2008 were restated to reflect the
effects of the prior period adjustments to correct certain misstatements in its
financial statements relating to the overstatement of rental income in 2007 and
prior years that resulted from the changes in the terms of the lease agreements, and
the understatement of depreciation expense and related accumulated depreciation
for certain properties in prior years.

e Asa result of SBC’s change in accounting policy in 2008 relative to the treatment
of cable modems as part of the Property, Plant and Equipment account, which
assets were initially recorded as part of Inventories in the consolidated statements
of financial position, SBC recorded a restatement to reflect the depreciation
expense on the cable modems previously not provided when these assets were still
part of Merchandise Inventories and Supplies.

e Asaresult of the Starworld’s availment of the tax amnesty under RA 9480,
Tasxc Ammnesty Law, which covers 2005 and prior taxable years, Starworld recorded a
prior period adjustment to the balance of Retained Earnings as of January 1, 2008
to reverse long-outstanding liabilities and to record additional tax expense relating
to the tax amnesty availment.

Summary of Prior Period Adjustments from Change in Accounting Policy and Correction of
Misstatements

The restatements of certain line items in the consolidated statement of financial
position as of January 1, 2010 are summarized below.

As Previously Prior Period
Notes Reported Adjustments As Restated

Changes in assets -

Property, plant and

Equipment - net 12 P 1,508,254,432 (P 110,510,000) P 1,397,744,432

Investment property - net 13 3,666,246,869  ( 48,729,008) 3,617,517,861
Changes in liabilities -

Deferred tax liabilities - net 23 777,692,311 47,771,702 825,464,013

P 5,952,193,612 P_5,840,726,306

Total adjustment to equity
as at January 1, 2010 (P__111,467,306)
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The restatements of certain line items in the consolidated statement of financial
position as of January 1, 2009 are summarized below.

As Previously

Prior Period

Changes in assets:
Investment property — net
Property, plant and
equipment — net
Retirement benefit asset

Changes in liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Deferred tax liabilities

Total adjustment to equity
as at January 1, 2009

Notes Reported Adjustments As Restated
13 P 3,622,973,344 P 8,952,000 P 3,631,925,344
12 1,544,192,224  ( 106,045,000) 1,438,147,224
22 44,678,755 ( 8,020,359) 36,658,396

5,211,844,323 ( 105,113,359) 5,106,730,964
16 348,652,898 3,982,724 352,635,622
23 838,382,745 ( 25,758,399) 812,624,346

1,187,035,643

( 21,775,675)

1,165,259,968

P 4,024,808,680

S —

(B__83,337,684)

P 3,941,470,996

E

The restatements of certain line items in the consolidated statement of financial
position as of January 1, 2008 are summarized as follows:

As Previously

Prior Period

Changes in assets:

Trade and other
receivables — net

Merchandise inventories
and supplies — net

Investment property — net

Property, plant and
equipment — net

Change in liabilities:
Estimated liability for land
and land development costs
Income tax payable
Deferred tax liabilities — net

Total adjustment to equity
as at January 1, 2008

11

23

Notes Reported Adjustments As Restated
7 P 435,164,654 (P 6,887,487) P 428,277,167
10 190,167,830 ( 14,648,571) 175,519,259
13 1,794,205,597 1,698,892,347 3,493,097,944
12 1,456,897,277 ( 1,458,308) 1,455,438,969

P 3.876,435,358

P 1,675,897,981

P 5552,333,339

45.886,345 ( 9,000,000) 36,886,345

7,699,784 21,532 7721316

16,238,324 851,700,550 867,938,874

69824453 842,722,082 912,546,535

P_3,806,610,905 P_4,639,786,804
P 833,175,899
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25. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted EPS for profit attributable to the Parent Company’s stockholders are
computed as follows:

2009 2008
(As Restated — (As Restated —
2010 see Note 24) see Note 24)
Net profit for the year attributable
to the Parent Company’s
stockholders P 229.346,311 P 203,254,151 P 268,304,620
Divided by weighted average
shares outstanding:
Number of shares issued 2,030,975,000 2,030,975,000 2,030,975,000
Treasury shatres (__209,433,000) (__ 209.433,000) (___209,433,000)
1,821,542,000 1,821,542,000 1,821,542,000
EPS — basic
and diluted ) id 013 P 011 P 0.15

There were no outstanding convertible preferred shares and bonds or other stock
equivalents as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, hence, diluted EPS is equal to the
basic EPS.

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s related parties include other companies owned by the Group’s majority
stockholders and the Group’s key management personnel.

26.1 Sale of Goods and Rendering Services

Amounts of Transactions Outstanding Balances
2009 2008 2009 2008
(As Restated - ( As Restated - (As Restated - (As Restated -
2010 see Note 24) see Note 24) 2010 see Note 24) see Note 24)
Rendering of services:
Use of cable infrastructure P 231,489,895 P 145891071 P 116,785,714 P 88,205,454 P 73,234,838 P (9,724,998
Commissions 5,589,940 2,546,771 1,455,268 48,017,957 25,037,739 39,057,253
Management services 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 - - -
238,279,835 149,637,842 119,440,982 136,223,411 98272577 108,782,251
Sales of goods -
Sale of mobile phones 1,778,608 540,219,872 - 1,778,608 209,161,769
P 240,058,443 P 689,857,714 P 119440982 P 138,002,019 P 307,434,346 P 108,782,251

SBC’s broadband cable infrastructure is used by Destiny Cable, Inc. (DCI), a company that
is 49% owned by SGI’s majority stockholders. SBC bills DCI based on fixed fee per
subscriber and based on the type of service rendered. The outstanding receivables arising
from these transactions are presented as part of Trade Receivables under the Trade and
Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 7).

SVC sells professional equipment, accessories and tapes to Avid Sales Corporation (Avid), a
company owned by the Parent Company’s majority stockholders. SVC also earns
commissions from the sales of Solid Trading Limited (STL), a company also owned by the
Parent Company’s majority stockholders, to customers in the Philippines (see Note 26.6).
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The Parent Company provides general management advisory services to CPD Access
Corporation (CPD), a company owned by SGI’s majority stockholders. In consideration
for such services, the Parent Company receives management fees on a monthly basis as
determined based on a management contract mutually agreed upon by both parties.

In 2010, Mytel sold mobile phone inventories to STL.

In 2009, SBC sold majority of its mobile phone inventories to Mytel. The outstanding
receivable related to this transaction is shown as part of Trade Receivables under the Trade
and Other Receivables account in the 2009 consolidated statement of financial position

(see Note 7).

26.2 Purchase of Goods and Services

Amounts of Transactions Outstanding Balances
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
Purchase of goods P 12 P 86,676,721 P_80,119,08 P - P - P 2963292

SE Corp. purchases parts and supplies from CPD. Purchases of goods recorded as part of
Cost of Services (see Note 18.1) and the related outstanding payables are recorded as part
of Trade and Other Payables (see Note 16).

26.3 Lease of Real Property

Amount of Transactions Outstanding Balances
2009 2008 2009 2008
(As Restated - ( As Restated - (As Restated - (As Restated -
2010 see Note 24) see Note 24) 2010 see Note 24) see Note 24)
Group as lessor P 785842 P 584,242 P 545296 P - P - P -
Group as lessee ) - P 600,000 P 190,269 P - P - Ju -

SMC leases out certain land and buildings to Avid. Also, SE Corp. leases out its office
space to CPD. Income from these leases is shown as part of Rentals in the consolidated
statements of income. Uncollected billings, on the other hand, forms part of the Trade and
Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 7).

SLC rents portion of a building of a company owned by the Parent Company’s majority
stockholders. Rental expense relating to this lease is shown as part of Rentals under
General and Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statements of income

(see Note 20). There are no outstanding liabilities related to this lease in 2010, 2009 and
2008.

26.4 Granting of Loans

SMFTI grants business and other loans to its related parties at an interest rate of 7.5% to
30% in 2010 and 7.5% to 18.0% in 2009 and 2008. Total interests earned from these loans
amounted to P8.8 million in 2010, P10.2 million in 2009 and P13.3 million in 2008, and is
presented as part of Interest Income under the Revenues account in the consolidated
statements of income. The outstanding receivables from these business loans are shown as
part of Finance Receivables under the Trade and Other Receivables account in the
consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 7).



- 66 -

The outstanding receivables as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Business loans:
AA Export & Import Corporation P 63,695,301 P 77,061,004 P 90,191,405
Avid Sales Corporation 40,000,000 46,000,000 46,000,000

P 103,695,301 P 123061,004 P _ 136,191,405

The business loan to AA Export & Import Corporation is originally repayable with

a lump sum payment in January 2009 of the outstanding principal balance as of
December 31, 2008. On January 12, 2009, SMFI’s BOD approved the extension of the
payment term of the business loan for an additional period of seven years until

December 31, 2015. These business loans are secured by shares of stock of the borrowing
companies which are owned by a related party (see Note 7). Total principal repayments
received on the loans amounted to P10.4 million in 2010, P13.1 million in 2009 and

P15.2 million in 2008.

SMFT also granted unsecured business loan to Avid amounting to P80.0 million. Principal
repayment in the amount of P6.0 million was made in 2010 related to the business loan.
There were no principal repayments made in 2009 and 2008 related to the business loan.

26.5 Advances to and from Related Parties

Certain subsidiaries of the Group grants to and obtains unsecured, noninterest-bearing cash
advances from related parties owned by the Parent Company’s majority stockholders for
working capital requirements and other purposes. The outstanding balances arising from
these transactions are presented as Advances to Related Parties and Advances from Related
Parties in the consolidated statements of financial position.

26.6 Transactions with STL

SVC earns commission from sales of STL, a company owned by SGI’s majority
stockholders, to customers in the Philippines. Commission revenue amounted to

P5.6 million in 2010, P2.5 million in 2009 and P1.5 million in 2008 is presented as part of
Rendering of Services in the consolidated statements of income. SVC also advances funds
to STL to pay foreign suppliers. The outstanding balances arising from these transactions
amounted to P48.0 million, P25.0 million and P39.1 million as of December 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008, respectively, and are included as part of Advances from Related Parties in the
consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 26.1).

26.7 Transactions with Solid Company Limited (Hong Kong)

My Solid and SBC purchases mobile phones from Solid Company Limited (Hong Kong), a
related party owned by the Parent Company’s majority stockholders in 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Total purchases amounted to P898.3 million in 2010, P547.6 million in 2009
and P405.1 million in 2008 and are presented as part of Cost of Sales in the consolidated
statements of income (see Note 18.1). Outstanding liabilities relating to this purchases
amounted to P1.0 million as of December 31, 2010 and nil as of December 31, 2009 and
2008.
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In 2008, BRL granted an unsecured, interest-bearing loan denominated in Chinese yuan
renminbi to Solid Company Limited (Hong Kong) amounting to P120.8 million which will
mature on March 1, 2011. The loan bears an annual interest rate of 6% payable annually
with any unpaid interest compounded annually at the same rate of the principal amount. In
2009, the parties agreed to amend the loan agreement reducing the annual interest rate to
4% and making the loan payable in U.S. dollar.

The amount of loan is presented as part of Finance Receivables under the Trade and Other
Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 7).

26.8 Financial Guarantees

Fil-Dragon obtained a secured interest-bearing loan amounting to RMB92.9 million
(P615.7 million) and RMB20.0 million (P132.6 million) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, from a local bank in the People’s Republic of China to support the
construction of the Golden Hill Project. In relation to this, Solid Industrial (Shenzhen) Co.
Ltd., a related party owned by SGI’s majority stockholders and an individual who holds
30% ownership interest in Fil-Dragon entered into a guarantee contract with the local bank
whereby it guarantees that the principal amount and related interests will be paid as the
payments fall due. The guarantee contract will continue in effect until the end of two years
subsequent to the effectivity of the loan agreement obtained by Fil-Dragon (see Note 15).

26.9 Key Management Personnel Compensation

Salaries and other benefits given to key management personnel for 2010, 2009 and 2008 are
as follows (see Note 22.1):

2010 2009 2008
Short-term benefits P 34,456,347 P 23959255 P 23,147,052
Post-employment benefit 884,848 1,447,878 1,530,758

P 35341195 P 25407133 P 24,677,810

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS
27.1 Memorandum of Understanding with SPI

On July 1, 2003, SE Corp. entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with SPI
for network support for SPI and Aiwa products. Under the MOU, SPI authorized the

SE Corp. to perform in-warranty and out-of-warranty services to customers in the
Philippines for a fee equivalent to a certain percentage of SPI’s annual sales.

In-warranty services shall be rendered free of charge to customers. The actual cost of
replacement parts related to in-warranty services shall be shouldered by SPI. Also, SPI
agrees to pay the SE Corp. network support fees equal to 1% of net sales for SPI products
and 1% or P50,000 per month whichever is higher for Aiwa products. In the first quarter
of 2009, SE Corp. and SPI agreed to lower the network support fees to 0.45% of SPI’s net
sales. Subsequently, SE Corp. and SPI agreed that network support fees shall be fixed at
P1.25 million per month effective April 2009. Management believes that the MOU
continues to be effective unless revoked by any of the parties.
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The breakdown of network support fees and in-warranty service fees are shown below.

Amounts of Transactions Outstanding Balances
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
SPI Products P 43,665,418 P 37,536,329 P 27933816 P 3,196,959 P 3,180,606 P 22,207,796
AIWA Products - 601,080 600,000 - - 280,000

P 43,665,418 P_38,137,409 P 28533816 P__ 3,196,959 P 3,180,606 P 22,487,796

Network support fees and in-warranty services recognized are presented as part of
Rendering of Services in the consolidated statements of income. The outstanding
receivables arising from these transactions are included as part of Trade and Other
Receivables in the consolidated statements of financial position.

27.2 Distributorship Agreement with Sony Corporation of Hong Kong
Limited (Sony HK)

SVC has a non-exclusive Distributorship Agreement (the Agreement) with Sony HK, a
corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of Hong Kong. Under
the Agreement, SVC was designated by Sony HK as its non-exclusive distributor of

Sony products in the Philippines. In addition, SVC shall provide the customers in the
Philippines with repair and parts replacement services, including but not limited to repair
and parts replacement services rendered by SVC which are covered under the

12 month-warranty period at its own costs and expenses (see Note 16). Management
believes that the Agreement continuous to be effective although no formal renewal has
been made since 2007.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The following are the significant commitments and contingencies involving the Group:
28.1 Planned Acquisition of Investments — LARES

In 2005, SGI, together with other investors, entered into a negotiation with LARES, a
company engaged in computerizing and modernizing the land registration system of LRA.
Under the negotiation plan, the Group, through SGTC, will acquire 51% interest in
LARES. Realization of the planned acquisition depends on several conditions, including
government’s approval for LARES to continue the project.

Relative to the planned acquisition, SMFI granted loans to LARES amounting to

P2.0 million in 2006 and P0.9 million in 2005. The amount was paid in full by LARES in
2008. Also, Starworld entered into a loan agreement with LARES wherein LARES has
requested Starworld for a loan of P6.0 million to finance its operations and expenses
pertaining to the arbitration proceedings with the LRA. The use of the proceeds shall be
subject to the following limits:

(@)  P3.0 million shall be used for expenses pertaining to LARES arbitration proceedings
with the LRA; and,

(i) The balance of P3.0 million shall be used for working capital and operating expenses
of LARES.
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In September 2008, the Group decided not to pursue the LARES project. Another
investor took over the project and would provide the necessary funding requirements.
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the amount of P6.0 million was fully collected
(see Note 7).

28.2 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessor
Certain subsidiaries lease various properties for a period of one to ten years. Some of these

lease transactions are subject to 5% to 10% escalation rate. The future minimum rentals
receivable under these non-cancellable operating leases as of December 31 are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Within one year P 84,506,562 P  53,682958 P 75,120,679
After one year but not more
than five years 159,674,701 91,966,581 132,001,097
More than five years 865,866 1,810,700 5,467,962

P 245,047,129 P 147460239 P 212,589,738

28.3 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessee

The Group is a lessee to non-cancellable operating leases on land. As of

December 31, 2008, these leases have a remaining term of 11 years, expiring in 2019. Lease
payments are fixed for the first five years. Thereafter, the lease on land is subject to 100%
escalation rate every five years while the lease on land improvements is subject to an annual
escalation rate of 10%.

2010 2009 2008
Within one year P 6,984,946 P 6,664,895 P 5,884,690
After one year but not more
than five years 33,500,497 29,005,715 28,876,660
More than five years 36,195,820 52,122,286 55,692,029

P 76,681,263 P __ 87,852,896 P___ 90,453,379

Total rental expense from these operating leases amounted to P7.4 million each in 2010,
2009 and 2008, and are shown as part of Rentals under Cost of Services in the consolidated
statements of income (see Notes 18.2 and 20).

28.4 Legal Claims

Certain subsidiaries are involved in vatious litigations, which arose in the normal course of
business, desctribed as follows:

(@ SMC is involved in a number of litigations and is subject to certain claims relating to
the following, among others:

(i) a portion of land in Pililla, Rizal, with a carrying value of P3.3 million, subject to
expropriation coverage under the Agrarian Reform Act; and,

(i) a piece of land, with a carrying value of P309.0 million, subject to claims by third
parties who filed court cases against SMC.
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(b) SCisinvolved in litigation and is subject to certain claims by third parties. Also, a
portion of SC’s land located in Pamaldan, Cabanatuan City, with a carrying amount of
P7.6 million, is subject to expropriation coverage under the Agrarian Reform Act.

Management believes that the ultimate resolution of these cases will not materially affect
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

28.5 Estimated Liability for Land and Land Development Cost

The Group has commitment of about P68.3 million as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008, for the fulfillment of projects in the development and marketing of CPIP
(see Note 11).

28.6 Purchase Commitments

In 2007, ZTC has entered into several construction contracts with various suppliers for the
construction of the Tri Towers condominium building (see Note 10). The construction of
Tower 1 was fully completed in 2008 while the construction of Towers 2 and 3 has not yet
started as of December 31, 2010.

28.7 Possible Impact of Government Project

In 2005, ZTC received a notification from the Urban Roads Projects Office (URPO) of the
Department of Public Works and Highways (DPWH) that the location of the Tti Towers
condominium building project might be affected by the plans of the National Government
of the Philippines for the construction of the proposed 2™ Ayala Bridge. However, the
URPO stated that it has not yet undertaken the detailed engineering design that will
ascertain if the location of the ZTC’s property will be affected by the road’s right-of-way.

The Group decided to continue the Tti Towers condominium building project despite the
notification received from the DPWH because management believes that the likelihood of
a possible expropriation of the land is remote given the current status of the government
project.

28.8 Others

There are other commitments, guarantees, litigations and contingent liabilities that arise in
the normal course of the Group’s operations which are not reflected in the financial
statements because the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote or the amount to be provided cannot be
measured reliably.
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RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks in relation to financial instruments.
The Group’s risk management is coordinated with its BOD and focuses on actively
securing the Group’s short to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to
tinancial markets. Long-term financial investments are managed to generate continuous
returns.

The Group does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor
does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to
are described below.

29.1 Foreign Currency Sensitivity

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in Philippine pesos, its functional
currency. Exposutes to currency exchange rates arise from the Group’s foreign currency
denominated trade and other receivables, interest-bearing loans and trade and other
payables, which are primarily denominated in U.S. dollars and Chinese yuan renminbi. The
Group also holds U.S dollar-denominated cash and cash equivalents.

To mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Philippine peso cash flows
are monitored.

Foreign currency-denominated financial assets and liabilities, translated into Philippine
pesos at the closing rate are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
U.S. Chinese Yuan U.S. Chinese Yuan USs. Chinese Yuan
Dollar Renminbi Dollar Renminbi Dollar Renminbi
Financial assets P 429,590,753 P 129,100,783 P 637,642,672 P106,121412 P 326,998,187 P 154,746,371
Financial liabilities ( 8,929,698) (__706,843,136) (__430,290,137) (_215,074,453) (__464,333436) ( 110,922)
Total net exposure P42 1 (P_577,742,353) P 207,352,535 (P108,953,041) (P_137,335,249) P_154,635,449

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax with respect
to changes in Philippine pesos against foreign currencies exchange rates. The percentage
changes in rates have been determined based on the average market volatility in exchange
rates, using standard deviation, in the previous 12 months at a 99% confidence level.

2010 2009 2008
Reasonably Effect in Reasonably Effect in Reasonably Effect in
Possible Profit Before Possible Profit Before Reasonably Effect in
Change in Rate Tax Change in Rate Tax Dollar Renminbi
Php — USD 20.63% P 86,782,376 20.17% P 41,823,006 26.18% (P 35,954,368)
Php — RMB 12.21% (___70,542,341) 19.97% (__21,757,922) 25.71% 39,756,774
P_ 16,240,035 P 20,065,084 P 3,802,406

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of
overseas transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be representative of
the Group’s foreign currency risk.
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29.2 Interest Rate Sensitivity

At December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Group is exposed to changes in market interest
rates through its cash and cash equivalents, which are subject to variable interest rates
(see Note 0).

The following illustrates the sensitivity of profit before tax for the year to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates of +/-1.19% in 2010, +/-7.21% in 2009 and +/-7.25% in
2008. These changes in rates have been determined based on the average market volatility
in interest rates, using standard deviation, in the previous 12 months, estimated at 99%
level of confidence. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Group’s financial instruments
held at each reporting date, with effect estimated from the beginning of the year. All other
variables held constant, if the interest rate increased by 1.19%, 7.21% and 7.25%, profit
before tax in 2010, 2009 and 2008 would have increased by P7.5 million, P68.1 million, and
P62.2 million, respectively. Conversely, if the interest rate decreased by the same
percentages, profit before tax would have been lower by the same amounts.

29.3 Credit Risk

Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of
the financial assets as shown on the face of the consolidated statements of financial
position (or in the detailed analysis provided in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements), as summarized below:

Notes 2010 2009 2008
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 1,620,114,468 P 1,263,142,145 P 1,118,462,976
Trade and other receivables - net 7 1,531,894,847 1,181,048,096 980,096,080
Available-for-sale financial assets- net 8 150,712,692 313,805,880 70,980,542
Advances to related parties 26 201,193,407 504,328,415 192,327,778
Refundable deposits - net 14 12,386,030 13,075,903 15,516,724
Held-to-maturity investments 9 - - 161,289,378

P 3,516,301,444 P 3,275400439 P 2,538,673.478

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties,
identified either individually or by group, and incorporate this information into its credit
tisk controls. Where available at a reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports
and other counterparties are obtained and used. The Group’s policy is to deal only with
creditworthy counterparties. In addition, for a significant proportion of real estate sales,
advance payments are received to mitigate credit risk.

The Group’s management considers that all the above financial assets that are not impaired
or past due at the end of each reporting period are of good credit quality.

(a)  Cash and Cash Equivalents, Held-to-maturity Investments and Available-for-sale Financial Assets

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents and investments in foreign currency
denominated bonds, classified as held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets in the consolidated statements of financial position, is considered negligible,
since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.
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(b)  Trade and Other Receivables

Except for trade receivables arising from real estate sales, none of the financial assets are
secured by collateral or other credit enhancements. Trade receivables are secured by
industrial lots and condominium units sold to buyers and are covered by postdated checks.

Some of the unimpaired trade receivables and advances to related parties are past due at the
end of the reporting period. Trade receivables and advances to related parties past due but
not impaired can be shown as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Not more than 3 months P 162,017,197 P 296,399,509 P 89,878,519
Morte than 3 months but
not more than one year 68,330,159 33,817,343 37,143,280
More than one year 294,468,345 96,345 33.917,007

P 524,815,701 P 330,313,197 P__ 160,938,806

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit
risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in various
industries and geographical areas. Based on historical information about customer default
rates, management consider the quality of trade receivables that are not past due or
impaired to be good.

29.4 Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflows due in a day-to-day
business. Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day and
week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30-day projection. Long-term
liquidity needs for a 6-month and one-year period are identified monthly.

The Group maintains cash to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 60-day periods.
Excess cash is invested in time deposits, mutual funds or short-term marketable securities.
Funding for long-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to sell long-term financial assets.

As of December 31, 2010, the Group’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities which
are presented below.

Current
1 to 6 months 6 to 12 months

Interest-bearing loans P 993,779,229 P -
Trade and other payables 442,663,550 -
Advances from related parties - 168,911,611

P1,436,442,779 P 168,911,611
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This compares to the maturity of the Group’s financial liabilities as of
December 31, 2009 as follows:

Current
1 to 6 months 6 to 12 months

Interest-bearing loans P 419,206,324 P -
Trade and other payables 322,604,948 -
Advances from related parties - 201,439,920

P 741811272 P 201,439,920

This compares to the maturity of the Group’s financial liabilities as of
December 31, 2008 as follows:

Current
1 to 6 months 6 to 12 months

Interest-bearing loans P 458,760,609 P -
Trade and other payables 352,635,622 -
Advances from related parties - 111,704,972

P 811,396,231 P 111,704,972

The above contractual maturities reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ with the
carrying values of the financial liabilities at the reporting period.

CATEGORIES AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

30.1 Comparison of Carrying Values and Fair Values

The carrying amounts and fair values of the categories of assets and liabilities presented in
the consolidated statements of financial position are shown below.

2010 2009 2008
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Notes Values Values Values Values Values Values
Financial assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 1,620,114,468 P 1,620,114,468 P 1,263,142,145 P 1,263,142,145 P 1,118462976 P 1,118,462,976
Trade and other receivables - net 7 1,531,894,847 1,531,894,847 1,181,048,096 1,181,048,096 980,096,080 980,096,080
Advances to related parties 26 201,193,407 201,193,407 504,328,415 504,328,415 192,327,778 192,327,778
Held-to-maturity investments 9
Investments in bonds - - - - 161,289,378 59,500,000
Available-for-sale financial assets: 8
Investments in bonds 138,606,165 138,606,165 305,804,353 305,804,353 63,519,015 63,519,015
Golf club shares — net 10,670,009 10,670,009 6,605,009 6,605,009 6,245,009 6,245,009
Others 1,436,518 1,436,518 1,396,518 1,396,518 1,216,518 1,216,518
Refundable deposits 14 12,386,030 12,386,030 13,075,903 13,075,903 15,516,724 15,516,724
P 16,301 P 16,301 P 3275400,439 P 7 3 P 2538673478 P25 3,47
Financial liabilities
At amortized cost:
Interest-bearing loans - net 15 P 989,502,559 P 989,502,559 P 554,948324 P  554,948324 P 458,760,609 P 458,760,609
Trade and other payables 16 442,663,550 442,663,550 322,604,948 322,604,948 352,635,622 352,635,622
Advances from related parties 26 168,911,611 168,911,611 201,439,920 201,439,920 111,704,972 111,704,972
Refundable deposits - net 17 15,252,534 15,252,534 11,096,848 11,096,848 9,710,038 9,710,038

P_1,616,330,254 P_1,616,330,254 P_1,090,090,040 P_1,090,090,040 P 932811241 P 932,811,241

See Notes 2.5 and 2.10 for a description of the accounting policies for each category of
financial instruments. A description of the Group’s risk management objectives and
policies for financial instruments is provided in Note 29.
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30.2 Fair Value Hierarchy

The table below presents the hierarchy of fair value measurements used by the Group as of
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
December 31, 2010
Available-for-sale financial assets P 149,276,174 P - P 1,436,518 P 150,712,692
December 31, 2009
Available-for-sale financial assets P 312409362 P - P 1,396,518 P_313,805,880
December 31, 2008
Available-for-sale financial assets P 69,764,024 P - P 1,216,518 P 70,980,542

The different levels have been defined as follows:
(a)  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

(b)  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from
prices); and,

0 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
p ty
(unobservable inputs).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as presented on
the face of the consolidated statements of financial position. The Group’s goal in capital
management is to maintain a debt-to-equity structure ratio of not higher than 1:1 on a
monthly basis.

The following is the computation of the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio:

2010 2009 2008
Total liabilities (excluding advances
from related patties) P 2,361,585,929 P 1,788,668,072 P 1,716,179,937
Total equity 8,111,948,091 7,827,072,171 7,489,423,893
Debt-to-equity ratio 0.29:1 0231 0.23:1

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure,

i.e., equity and financial liabilities excluding amounts due to related parties. The Group
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shates or sell assets to reduce debt.
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SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule A - Marketable Securities (Current Marketable Equity Securities and Other Short-Term Cash Investments)
December 31, 2010

Name of issuing entity and association of each
Issue

Number of shares or
principal amount of
bonds or notes

Amount shown on
the balance sheet

Valued based on the
market quotation at
balance sheet

Income received
and accrued

Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments in foreign currency-denominated bonds

p 138,606,165




SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule C - Noncurrent Marketable Equity Securities, Other Long-Term Investments in Stock and Other Investments

December 31, 2010

Name of issuing entity and
association of each issue

Number of shares or
principal amount of bonds
or notes

Amount shown on the
balance sheet

Valued based on the
market quotation at
balance sheet

Income received and
accrued

Available-for-sale financial assets

Club shares P 13,095,000
Equity securities 8,580,000
Others 1436518
Subtotal 23111518
Impairment losses recognized ( 11,004,991 )
Total P 12,106,527




SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule D - Indebtedness of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates
December 31, 2010

Balance at beginning of
period

Name and designation of debtor

Balance at end of period

Amounts of Interest-bearing Loans, presented as part of Trade and Other Receivables:

Ultimate majority stockholders P - P -
Companies owned by the majority stockholders 117,437,085 111,177,118
Total P 117,437,085 | P 111,177,118
Amounts Due from Related Parties:
Ultimate majority stockholders P - P -
Companies owned by the majority stockholders 504,328,415 201,193,407
Total P 504,328,415 | P 201,193,407
P 621,765,500 | P 312,370,525




SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule G - Indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related Companies)
December 31, 2010

Balance at beginning of

Name of related party period Balance at end of period
Amounts Due to Related Parties:
Ultimate majority stockholders P 82,715,519 P 82,715,519
Companies owned by the majority stockholders 118,724,401 86,196,092

Total P 201,439,920 | P 168,911,611




SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule I - Capital Stock
December 31, 2010

Number of shares Number of shares

Number of shares held by

. Number of shares , reserved for options,
Title of Issue authorized issued and arrants, coversion Dii Y511
u . w. Ve irectors, officers
1 s . 'y
outstanding (1) and other rights Affiliates (2) and employees Others
Common shares - P1 par value

Authorized - 5,000,000,000 shares 5,000,000,000

Issued - 2,030,975,000 shates

Outstanding 1,821,542,000 - 1,083,377,816 320,395,480 417,768,704

Note 1: Number of shares issued and outstanding = 2,030,975,000 issued shares less 209,433,000 treasury shares
Note 2: This represents shares held by AA Commercial and AV Value Holdings Corp., affiliates which are ultimately owned by the Lim Family.




SOLID GROUP INC.
2285 Don Chino Roces Avenue Extension
Makati City

Schedule J - Reconciliation of Retained Earnings for Dividend Declaration
December 31, 2010

DEFICIT AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

(Figure as presented in the Reconciliation of Retained Earnings (P 296,403,177)
as of December 31, 2009)
Net Income Realized for the Year
Profit for the year per audited financial statements 354,382,402
Less: Recognized actuarial gains on defined benefit plans - net of tax 811,007
353,571,395

RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR P 57,168,218



SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule C - Noncurrent Marketable Equity Securities, Other Long-Term Investments in Stock and Other Investments

December 31, 2010

Name of issuing entity and
association of each issue

Number of shares or
principal amount of bonds
or notes

Amount shown on the
balance sheet

Valued based on the
market quotation at
balance sheet

Income received and
accrued

Available-for-sale financial assets

Club shares P 13,095,000
Equity securities 8,580,000
Others 1436518
Subtotal 23111518
Impairment losses recognized ( 11,004,991 )
Total P 12,106,527




SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule D - Indebtedness of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates
December 31, 2010

Balance at beginning of
period

Name and designation of debtor

Balance at end of period

Amounts of Interest-bearing Loans, presented as part of Trade and Other Receivables:

Ultimate majority stockholders P - P -
Companies owned by the majority stockholders 117,437,085 111,177,118
Total P 117,437,085 | P 111,177,118
Amounts Due from Related Parties:
Ultimate majority stockholders P - P -
Companies owned by the majority stockholders 504,328,415 201,193,407
Total P 504,328,415 | P 201,193,407
P 621,765,500 | P 312,370,525




SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule G - Indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related Companies)
December 31, 2010

Balance at beginning of

Name of related party period Balance at end of period
Amounts Due to Related Parties:
Ultimate majority stockholders P 82,715,519 P 82,715,519
Companies owned by the majority stockholders 118,724,401 86,196,092

Total P 201,439,920 | P 168,911,611




SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule I - Capital Stock
December 31, 2010

Number of shares Number of shares

Number of shares held by

. Number of shares , reserved for options,
Title of Issue authorized issued and arrants, coversion Dii Y511
u . w. Ve irectors, officers
1 s . 'y
outstanding (1) and other rights Affiliates (2) and employees Others
Common shares - P1 par value

Authorized - 5,000,000,000 shares 5,000,000,000

Issued - 2,030,975,000 shates

Outstanding 1,821,542,000 - 1,083,377,816 320,395,480 417,768,704

Note 1: Number of shares issued and outstanding = 2,030,975,000 issued shares less 209,433,000 treasury shares
Note 2: This represents shares held by AA Commercial and AV Value Holdings Corp., affiliates which are ultimately owned by the Lim Family.




SOLID GROUP INC.
2285 Don Chino Roces Avenue Extension
Makati City

Schedule J - Reconciliation of Retained Earnings for Dividend Declaration
December 31, 2010

DEFICIT AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

(Figure as presented in the Reconciliation of Retained Earnings (P 296,403,177)
as of December 31, 2009)
Net Income Realized for the Year
Profit for the year per audited financial statements 354,382,402
Less: Recognized actuarial gains on defined benefit plans - net of tax 811,007
353,571,395

RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR P 57,168,218



